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ACCOUNTANTS &
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Honorable Mayor _
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibiiity of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Siandards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

tn our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respacts, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30,
2003, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management's Discussion and Analysis, the schedules of funding progress, amployer contributions, and the
notes to the required schedules for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance, Public
Works Commission Retirement System, and Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
required supplementary information. However, we did not audit this information and express no opinion
thereon.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have aiso issued our report dated October 17, 2003,
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the resulis of our audit.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City. The combining and individual fund statements and
schedules for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, as well as the accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal and state awards required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circuiar A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizafions and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act, and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of passenger facility charges required
by the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation
Administration, for the year ended June 30, 2003, are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procadures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, in cur opinion, is fairly siated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statementis taken as a whoie.

C/wm% BakeaurtvHallamd oS2°

Fayetteville, North Carolina
Qctober 17, 2003
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Fayetteville ("the City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. We
encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in the City’s financiai statements, which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $766,688,520 (net assais).
Of this amount, $123,377,068 (unrestricted net assels) may be used to meet the government's ongoing
obfigations to citizens and creditors.

e The government's total net assets increased by 35,380,701, primarily due to capital contributions in the
Water and Wastewater Fund. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmantal funds
reported an ending fund balance of $44,812,312, an increase of $4,331,726 in comparison to prior year,
as restated. Approximately 70 percent of total fund balance, or $31,241,095 is available for spending at
the government's discretion (unreserved fund balance).

« At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $22,078,476 or
31.8 percent of total general fund expenditures for the fiscal year. Of this amount, $6,895.477 has been
designated for subsequent year expenditures, special purposes, or debt service, bringing the
undesignated general fund batance to $15,182,999 or 21.9 percent of general fund expenditures.

+ The City’s total debt decreased by -$2,028,855 during the current fiscal year. )

» The City's most recent bond issue (governmental activities) was rated Aa3 (Moody's Investor Services)
and AA- (Standard & Poor's). The City's most recent bond issue in the Electric and Water and
Wastewater Funds (business-type activities) are rated Aaa/VMIG1 (Moody's) and AAAJA-1+ (Standard &
Poor's) based on municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 1998, the Public Works Commission
received an underlying rating of A1 and A+ by Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectively. As of this
date, these ratings have been upheld.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial staiements. The
City’s basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present fwo different
views of the City through the use of government-wide statements and fund financial statemants. n addition to the
basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's
understanding of the financial condition of the City.




Required Components of Annual Financial Report

Figure 1
Management's Basic
Discussion and Financial
Analysis Statements
Government-wide ' Fund Notes to the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary P Detail

Basic Financial Statements

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statementis.
They provide both short and long-term information about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the individual
parts of the City's government. These statements provide more dstail than the government-wide statements.
There are four parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary
comparison statements; 3) the proprietary fund statements; and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.

The next section of the basic financial staiements is the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in
detail some of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, supplemental information is provided to
show details about the City’s non-major governmental and proprietary funds and the internal service funds. The
governmental and internal service funds are added fogether in one column on the basic financial statements.
Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's
finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements
provide short and long-term information about the City’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets are
the difference between the City’s total assets and total liabilities. Measuring net assets is one way to gauge the
City’s financial condition.




The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: 1) governmental activities; 2) business-type
activities; and 3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the City’s basic services such as
general administration, public safety, environmental protection, transportation, economic and physical
development, and recreation and community facilities. Property and other taxes and state and federal grant funds
finance most of these aclivities. The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to
provide. These include the electric, water and wastewater, airport and transit services offered by the City orits
Public Works Commission. The final category is the component units. Although legally separate from the City,
Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc. is important to the City because the City exercises control over the Board by
appointing a majority of its members and having the authority o remove appointed members at will.

The government-wide financial statements are on Pages 14 and 15 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used fo mainfain conirol over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. The City, like all other governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund
accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as
the General Statutes or the City’s budget ordinance. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two
categories. governmental funds and proprietary funds. .

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the City’s basic services are accounted for in
governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and
what monies are left at year-end that will be availabie for spending in the next year. Governmental funds are
reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting which provides a current financial
resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed short-term
view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the City's
programs. The relationship between governmental activities {reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities} and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial
statements.

The City adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as reguired by the General Statutes. The budget is a
legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the City, the management of the City, and
the decisions of the City Council about which services to provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the
City to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement
provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the City complied with the budget ordinance and whether
or not the City succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The budgetary
comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language,
and classifications as the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bzlance. The statement
shows four columns: 1) the criginal budget as adopted by the City Council; 2} the final budget as amended by the
City Council;, 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4)
the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.

Proprietary Funds — The City has two kinds of proprietary funds. Enferprise Funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its electric, water and wastewater, mass transit, and airport operations. These
funds are the same as those functions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities. [Infernal Service Funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among the functions of the City. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its flest
leasing program, fleet maintenance, and risk management activities. Because these operations benefit
predominately governmental rather than business-type activities, the internal service funds have been included
within the governmentai activities in the government-wide financial siatements.

Fiduciary Funds — Trust funds are used to account for the activities of funds the City holds in trust for others.
The City has three pension frust funds and two private-purpose trust funds.




Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financia! statements are on pages 27 — 62 of this report.

Other information — In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes
certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension benefits o its employees. Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 63 of
this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
Net Assets. The City’s combined net assets increased $5.4 million, or 0.7% from fiscal year 2002 to 2003. Net

assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The information
provided below provides a more detailed view of the City's net assets.

The City’s Net Assets
Figure 2

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003
Current and other assets 5 66,367,707 § 68,422,735 4 119,175,711 % 123,471,856 $ 185,643,418 § 181,854,691
Capital asseis 305,072,525 300,244,202 570,053,622 572,309,649 875,126,147 872,553,851
Total assets 371,440,232 368,665,237 688,228,333 695,781,605 1,080,669,585 1,064,448 542
Long-term liab#ities outstanding 59,806,189 59,959,087 190,469,556 188,296,908 250,275,745 248,255,995
Other liabilifies 10,049,797 9,228,333 39,036,204 40,275,694 44,086,001 49,504,027
Total labilities 69,855,586 69,187 420 228,505,760 228,572,602 299,361,748 297,760,022
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 248,607,997 248,602,580 379,321,259 384,181,318 627,929,258 632,783,898
Restricted 283,297 - 7,867,859 10,527,554 8,151,156 10,527,554
Unrestricted 52,692,952 50,876,937 72,534,455 72,500,131 125,227,407 123,377,068

Totat net assets  § 301,584,246 5§ 299,479,517 3 458,723,573 § 467,209,003 5 761,367,819 3§ 766,585,620




The assets of the City exceeded liabilittes by $766,688,520 as of June 30, 2003. Net assets is reported in three
categories: Invested in capital assets, net of related debt of $632.8 million, Restricted net assets of $10.5 million
and Unrestricted nat assets $123.4 million.

The invested in capital assets, net of related debt category is defined as the City's investment in City owned
capital assets (e.Q. infrastructure, land, buildings, automotive equipment, office and other equipment, and electric,
water, and wastewater systems), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.
The City uses these capital assets to provide services fo citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related
debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot
be used to liquidate these liahilities.

Another category of net assets is restricted net assets. This represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

The final category of net assets is unrestricted net assets. This balance may be used to meet the government's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. At June 30, 2003, $123.4 million, or 18% of the total net assets
reported of $766,688,520, is unrestricted.




The City’s Changes in Net Assets
Figure 3
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Govemmental Business-type
Activiies Activities Total
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003
Revenues:
Program revenues: :
Charges for services . $ 5025161 $ 4,228,266 $ 186,554,964 § 192,107,747 $ 191,580,125 $ 196,334,013
Operating grants and contribution 7,886,293 8,610,710 1,541,766 1,672,088 8,428,059 10,282,778
Capital grants and confributicns 183,122 133,554 11,255,325 14,464,226 11,438,447 14,597,780
General revenues:
Property taxes 33,613,509 34,004,378 - - 33,613,509 34,094,378
Other taxes 24,432,855 28,116,817 - - 24,432 855 28,116,817
Granis and coniributions not restricted
to specific programs 370,03z 547,091 - - 370,032 547,091
Other 2,215,252 2,076,524 2,056,162 1,807,802 4,311,414 3,884,326
Total revenues 73,726,224 77,805,340 201,448 217 210,051,843 275,174,441 287,857,183
Expenses:
Adminisiration 8,501,997 12,384,637 - - 8,501,997 12,384,637
Public safety 39,896,830 40,577,161 - - 39,896,830 40,577,161
Environmental protection 6,450,217 7,857,261 - - 6,450,217 7,957,261
Transportation 12,091,432 12,123,658 - - 12,091,432 12,123,858
Economic and physical development 7,407 147 5,459,943 - - 7,407,147 5,458,943
Recreation and community facilities 6,371,366 6,525,688 - - 6,371,366 6,525,688
Interest and fees 2,989,151 2,783,912 - - 2,989,151 2,783,912
Electric activities - - 123,644,452 141,370,184 123,644,452 141,370,184
Water and wastewater activities - - 43,949 463 44 649,994 43,849 463 44 649,094
Transit - - 5,223,850 5,073,264 5,223 850 5,073,264
Airport - - 3,435,908 3,570,780 3,435,608 3,570,780
Total expenses 83,718,140 87,812,260 176,253,673 194,664,222 259.971,813 282,476,482
Increase in net assets before transfers (9,991,916) (10,006,920 25,194,544 15,387,821 15,202,828 5,380,701
Transfers 7,142,178 7,902,191 (7.142,178) 7,902,191} - .
Increase in net assets {2,849,738) {2,104,729) 18,052,366 7,485,430 15,202,628 5,380,701
Net assets, July 1 304,433,984 301,584,246 441,671,207 459,723,573 746,105,191 761,307,819
Net assets, June 30 $ 301,584,246 $ 299479517 $ 459,723,573 $ 467,209,003 $ 761,307,819 $ 766,683,520

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City’s net assets by $2,104,729. Key elements
of this decrease are as follows:

» Investment earnings decreased by $440,000 in FY2003 compared to FY2002. This decrease is primarily
due to an overall lower rate of return on investments during the year.

» Adjustment related to change in deferred revenue.

+ Elimination of tax reimbursements by the State of North Carolina in FY2003, resulting in a $1 million
reduction in Other Taxes.

»  $683,000 in Storm Water consulting services, primarily due to the Storm Water Inventory project.




» These decreases were offset by the following:

o $1.6 million net increase in sales tax revenue generated from the new one-half cent tax, which
became effective in December 2002.

o In addition, certain utility franchise and excise taxes Were withheld by the State of North Carolina
in FY2002 and not withheld in FY2003, resulting in approximately $2.2 million in additionat
revenue in FY2003.

o $713,000 increase in Water and Wastewater Fund trénsfer to cover the General Fund's share of
the debt service associated with annexation infrastructura improvements.

o Propery taxes increased $481,000 primarily due 1o the elimination of the 2 percent early payment
discount in FY2003.

Business-type activities:  Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $7,485,430, or 139.1% of
the total increase. The majority of the increase was due to capital contributions in the Water and Wastewater
Fund.

Financial Anaiysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting io ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing
requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Af the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund
balance of the General Fund was $22,078,476, while total fund balance reached $29,255,778. As a measure of
the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 31.8 percent of tolal General Fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 42.1 percent of that same amount.

At June 30, 2003, the governmental funds of the City reported a combined fund balance of $44,912, 312, a .373
percent decrease from last year.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

During the budget process for fiscal year 2003, the City’s financial picture was clouded by the uncertainty
surrounding the State of North Carolina’s budget situation. By the conclusion of fiscal year 2003, the State had
efiminated tax reimbursements and provided iocal governments with an option to levy an additional one-half cent
sales tax to replace the reimbursements. Management fook budgetary steps to address the impacts of this
uncertainty and finished the year in sound financial condition.

The City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three
categories; 1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance
once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from externai
sources, such as Federal and Siate grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to cover
items encumbered or designated for a special purpose in the previous vear's budget but remain unexpended at
the end of the previous year. Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues and expenditures by
310,551,882 or 13.8%. The primary reasons for the increase were to reflect additional revenues {budgeted ai
$1.1 million) from the new one-half cent sales tax implemented in December 2002, a transfer from the Water and
Wastewater Fund of $713,473 for utility infrastructure debt service, a fund balance appropriation of $3.1 million to
cover items encumbered or designated as of June 30, 2002 and a $5.5 million appropriation {o reflect a general
obiigation refunding bond issue that occurred in December 2002,




Actual revenues and other financing sources for the General Fund were less than the final amended budget
amount by $3,580,838. This is primarily due to a fund balance appropriation of $4.9 million, which is an other
financing source that is not reflected as actual current year revenue. In addition, revenues exceeded the budget
by $1,376,133, of which $307,863 was due to higher sales tax revenues and $824,600 was due to higher utility
franchise, excise and sales tax revenues.

Actual expenditures and other financing uses were less than the final amended budget amount by $7,145,418.
This can be attributed to $1.4 million unexpended in the personnel budget (primarily due to a hiring freeze by City
management), operating costs less than $2.4 million of the budgated amount and $1.6 million in unspent funds for
equipment, vehicles and capital improvements. A significant portion of the unexpended equipment and capital
improvement funds were designated at June 30, 2003 to be re-appropriated in fiscal year 2004. In addition,
encumbrances of $734,253 were reported in the General Fund at June 30, 2003.

Proprietary Funds. The Cily's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-
wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Electric Fund at the end of the fiscal year
amounted to $38,601,288, and those for the Water and Wastewater Fund equaled $31,380,500. The total change
in net assets for both funds was an increase of $90,045 and $7,189,660, respectively. The majority of the
increase in Net Assets in the Water and Wastewater Fund was due to capital contributions.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2003, totals $872,553,851 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include infrastructure;
buildings; improvements; automotive equipment; office and other equipment; and electric, water, and wastewater
utility systems.

Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

e 31.1 million in land and land improvements, donated and purchased, for various parks and general
governmental purposes

$200,000 in general governmental computer equipment

$400,000 in street maintenance equipment

$700,000 in parks and museum improvements

$1.55 million in police vehicles and computer equipment

$3.6 million in street and sidewalk improvements

$1.4 million in airport improvements

$3.2 million of developer contributed water and wastewater utility infrastructures

$2.8 million to install water and wastewater utility infrastructure in newly annexed areas

$1.6 million to install agueous ammonia system for PO Hoffer and Glenvilie plants

$1.5 million to purchase electric meters

$1.4 million fo install standby power/peak at PO Hoffer plant

$1.2 million in telecom fiber optics to connect PWC plant sites and various city and county facilities
$1.1 million 1o relocate efectric facilities due to DOT road widening project

$1.0 million of computer hardware and software equipment

* & & & & & & & " ¢ 90
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The City’s Capital Assets
Figure 4
CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE'S CAPITAL ASSETS
{net of depreciation)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Land 33,925850 5 12,434,111 $ 46,359,761
Infrastructure 230,048,320 - 230,048,320
Electric utility system - 155,613,254 155,613,254
Wastewater system - 191,110,254 191,110,254
Water system - 115,549,287 115,549,287
Equipment and machinery - 7,404 657 7,404 657
Buildings and improvements 27,967,999 54,403,322 82,371,321
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 2,248,456 1,329,082 3,577,538
Computer programs - 3,636,872 3,636,872
Vehicles 2,873,670 3,695,057 6,568,727
Construction in progress 3,180,107 27,133,753 30,313,860
Total $ 300,244,202 $ 572,309,649 $ 872,553,851

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the Basic Financial Statements.
Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2003, The City had total bonded debt outstanding of $231,160,350, of which

$53,582,633 is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the City. In addition to a number of capital leases, tha
City has several installment notes outstanding. A summary of total long-term debt is shown in Figure 5.

General Obligation, Capital Leases and Installment Notes Payable

Figure 5
Govermnmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003

Bonded debt $ 49735000 $ 49867633 $ 183,069,763 $ 181,292,717 § 232804783 $ 231,160,350
Obligations under capital

leases 6,424,530 6,479,845 - - 6,424,530 6,479,845
Installment note payable 305,000 245,000 7,215,371 5,835,614 7,520,371 7,080,614

Total long-term debt $ 56464530 $ 56592478 $ 190285134 § 183128331 $ 246749864 § 244,720,809

The City's total debt decreased by $2,028,855, or 0.82%, during the past fiscal year. The decrease is due to
regularly scheduled principal payments, which were offset by the issuance of $3,625,000 Street Improvement
Bonds in December 2002, a new capial lease agreement, and the issuance of revenue refunding bonds in 2003.
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The City’s most recent bond ratings, received in connection with the Series 2003 general cobligation refunding
bonds and the Series 2003B variabie rate revenue refunding bonds, are shown below:

City (governmental activities):

Moody’s Investor Services Aa3
Standard & Poor's AA-

Public Works Commission (business-type activities).
Moody’s Investor Services Aaa/VMIGH
Standard & Poor's AAAA-+

PWC's ratings are based on municipal bond insurance policies. In fiscal year 1988, the Public Works Commission
received an underlying rating of A1 and A+ by Moody's and Standard and Poor's, respectiviely. As of this date,
these ralings have been upheld. '

The State of North Carolina limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can issue o 8
percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's boundaries. The legal
debt margin for the City is approximately $434,140,000. The City has no bonds authorized but unissued at June
30, 2003.

Additional information regarding the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 on pages 42 — 50 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2004

This budget considers the state and local economy, which has suffered from the recession and could be slow to
recover.

Governmental Activities: The City has approved a $84.5 million general fund budget for fiscal year 2004 which
represents a $5.6 million or 8.5% increase over the original budget for fiscal year 2003. The tax rate remains the
same at 53 cents per $100 value; however, a property revaluation was conducted in 2003 and is effective with the
fiscat year 2004 budget. One of the primary reasons for the budget increase is the reflection of the new one-half
cent sales tax (estimated at $33.5 million per year) in the fiscal year 2004 budget. The new one-half cent sales tax
was authorized by the state of North Carolina to replace the eliminated tax reimbursements in fiscal year 2003.
This revenue increase is also offset by a budgeted 32.1 million payment o Cumberland County in exchange for
maintaining the per capita distribution method for sales tax. Another primary reaseon for the budget increase is an
additional $2.1 million budgeted in property taxes. The budgeted increase in property taxes is due to the June 1,
2003 annexation of the Ashton Forest, Quailridge, Queensdale and Beaver Creek neighborhoods and the
property revaluation. In addition, the General Fund fiscal year 2004 budget reflects a $1.1 million transfer from
the Water and Wastewater Fund to pay debt service associated with the General Fund's share of utility
infrastructure debt. This debt service item was reflected as a direct expenditure of the Water and Wastewater
Fund in the original fiscal year 2003 budget.

Budgeted expenditures increased due to the $2.1 milion payment to Cumberiand County for the sales tax
agreement, the $2.4 million budget for the newly annexed areas, the $1.1 million budgeted debt service payment
for the General Fund's share of the utility infrastructure debt and an $800,000 increase in medicat and property
and liability insurance.

Business — type Acfivities: The City considered city and county population growth, annexation impacts, and the
economy when setting its budget. The cost of power has again increased this fiscal year and is reflected in the
fiscal year 2004 Electric Fund budget. The largest contributor fo the rising cost of energy is fuel pricing. The new
contract with Progress Energy Carclinas, Inc. was effective July 1, 2003. While savings were expectad to reduce
electric rates, the volatility of the fuel market has mitigated any savings at this time. Fuel costs over budgsted
amounts wil be recovered from the fuel adjusiment collected from customers. There are no increases in waier
and Wastewater rates in the fiscal year 2004 budget.

12




Transfers to the General Fund are expected to be $9.4 million in fiscal year 2004 due to the 5% electric sales
transfer policy, street lighting and a transfer fo pay the General Fund's share of utility infrastructure debt service.

The Electric Fund and Water and Wastewater Fund fiscal year 2004 budgets include funding for projects to
improve street lighting, underground utility conversions, downtown streetscape improvements, ufility extensions in
annexation and urban areas, development of a ceniral city indusirial park and rural water systems, and supporiing
and improving service to existing industry. The 2004 budget also includes an appropriation of $250,000 and
$276,200 from the Electric Fund to the Electric Rate Stabilization Fund and the Generation Maintaenance Fund,
respectively. In addition, an employee performance pay allowance, plus CPI increase is included in the Electric,
Water and Wastewater fiscal year 2004 budgets.

Since the fiscal year 2004 budget was adopted, several events have occurred that wili impact future budgets of
the City of Fayetteville.

On September 8, 2003, the City Council adepted a Resolution of Intent to annex areas west to the Hoke County
line, south to Fisher Road, north to Fort Bragg, and a few small areas with a total estimated population exceeding
43,000. On September 22, the City Council adopted the annexation report for the areas. If approved, the
annexation could occur as early as June 30, 2004.

On October 6, 2003, the City Council approved a sales tax agreement with Cumberfand County, and any other
municipalities that will be a party to the agreement, to reimburse each party 50% of its sales tax loss resulting
from annexations occurring on or after July 1, 2003. In addition, the City of Fayetteville will reimburse
Cumberland County $2.1 million in fiscal year 2005 and a relative percentage of sales tax in fiscal years 2006 and
2007. The agreement has a nine-year term, with opportunities to modify or terminate the agreement at the end of

each three-year period.

The City of Fayetteville issued three series of bonds after June 30, 2003:
* 39,000,000 General Obiligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 (Dated October 1, 2003)

This issue refunds $8,585,000 of the outstanding Refunding Bonds, Series 1993. The refunding bonds
are associated with the City’s General Fund and the PWC. In addition, the City's PWC will use
$10,615,000 from available sysiem revenues to call the balance of the outstanding bonds. The bonds will
be called on or about November 6, 2003.

» 355,150,000 PWC Variabie Rate Revenue and Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A (Dated
September 11, 2003)

This issue refunds a portion of the PWC Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993 and provides proceads
for the construction and installation of various capital additions to the utility system. The refunded bonds

will be called on or about November 6, 2003. There is a synthetic fixed rate swap agreement associated
with this bond issue.

» 330,065,000 PWC Variable Rate Refunding Bonds, Series 2003B (Dated October 2, 2003)

This issue refunds a portion of the PWC Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1893. The bonds will be
called on or about November 6, 2003.

Requests for Information
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Cily's finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requesis for additional information should be
directed to the Chief Financial Officer, City of Fayeiteville, 433 Hay Street, Fayetteville, NC 28301.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary of the financial
position of all governmental and business activities and the major and
nonmajor funds. They also serve as an introduction to the more detaiied
schedules that foliow in subsequent sections.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

Statement of Net Assets.

June 30, 2003

Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Internal balances
Assessment receivable
Due from other governments .
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Noncurrent portion of note receivable
Restricted assat - cash and investmentis
Restricted asset - accounts receivable
Restricted asset - collateral pledged
Other assets
‘Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets,
net of depreciation
Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Overdraft payable
Restricted liabilities - accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Unearned deposits
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one vear

Total liabilities

Net assets
invested in capital agsets, net of related
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service

Unrestricted
Total net assefs

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Total - Fayetieville
-Governmental Type Primary Air Cargo
Activities Activities Government Facilities
$ 45867612 $ 30,871,039 § 76738651 § -
3,645,530 - 3,645,530 -
2,448,316 36,841,176 39,289,492 1,584
54,569 (54,569) - -
478,421 - 478,421 -
5,805,510 261,562 6,067,072 -
380,660 11,075,805 11,466,565 -
422 680 195,835 618,515 -
4,531,198 - 4,531,198 248 537
4,705,856 35,962,469 40,668,325 -
- 469,080 469,080 -
- 148,060 148,060 -
72,383 7,701,399 7,773,782 -
37,105,757 39,567,864 76,673,621 -
263,138,445 532,741,785 795,880,230 -
368,666,937 695,781,605 1,064,448,542 250,121
8,422,669 23,892,687 32,315,356 1,584
- 6,384,188 6,384,188 -
© - 5,034,006 5,034,006 -
766,354 56,060 C 822414 -
39,310 4,908,753 4,948,063 -
7,473,448 11,063,333 18,536,781 58,404
52,485,639 177,233,575 229,719,214 190,133
69,187,420 228,572,602 297,760,022 250,121
248,602,580 384,181,318 632,783,898 -
- 25,695 25,695 -
- 10,501,859 10,501,859 -
50,876,937 72,500,131 123,377,068 -
$ 290470517 § 467,209,003 $ 766,688520 8 -
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2003

. Assets
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivable
Assessments receivable
Inventories

Restricted asset - cash and invastments
Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Unearned deposits
Deferred revenues
~ Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute
For encumbrances
For inventories
For downtown
For wireless 911
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years
For special purpose
For debt service
Undesignated
Unreserved, reported in nonmajor:
Designated for subsequent years
Special revenue
Capital projects
Undesignated
Special revenue
Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 26899566 $ 11,453,535 $ 38,353,101
3,289,863 117,856 3,417,719
7,430,142 5,336,974 12,767,116
423,798 - 423,798
472,269 6,152 478,421
81,256 - 81,256
- 4,705,856 4,705,856
$ 38606894 F 21620373 § 60,227,267
3 3280852 % 1,011963 $ 4,301,815
39,310 - 39,310
6,021,954 4,851 876 10,973,830
9,351,116 5,963,839 15,314,955
6,078,348 799 492 6,877,840
734,253 5,628,214 6,362,467
81,258 - 81,256
283,445 - 283,445
- 66,208 66,208
1,673,126 - 1,673,126
4,000,994 229,330 4.230,324
1,221,357 - 1,221,357
15,182,999 - 15,182,999
- 1,184,832 1,184,932
- 6,246,683 6,246,683
- 1,501,675 1,601,675
29,255,778 15,656,534 44 912 312
$ 38608894 $ 21620373 § 60,227,267

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconcll:atlon of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Ending fund balance - governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activifies are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Other ldng-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the funds.

Costs of bond issuance are current-period expenditures in the funds, but wilt be deferred
in the statement of net assets and amortized over the life of the ouisitanding debt.

Prepaid expenses are current-period expenditures in the funds, but are assets not
available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore, are capitalized.

Accrued fax penalties receivable are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds.

Internal service funds are used by management o charge the costs of Warranty fieet
expenses, fleet maintenance expenses and insurance expenses to individual funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activiiies.

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is not a current expenditure and therefore
not recorded in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 44912312

300,012,720

10,207,785

99,3538

284,280

227813

4,220,728

(581,138)

(59,904,316)

$ 299,479,517




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Revenues

Ad valorem taxes $ 33,720,313 § - § 33,720,313

Other taxes 24,767,471 - 3,083,211 27,850,682 -

Intergovernmental 4,884,358 3,632,317 8,516,675

Other functional 3,494,800 - 3,494,800

Miscellaneous 1,165,788 987,450 2,153,238

Interest earned on invesiments 867,291 200,651 1,067,942

Total revenues 68,800,021 7,903,629 76,803,650
Expenditures

Current:

- Administration 8,005,040 200,945 8,205,985
Public safety 38,526,878 1,903,373 40,430,251
Environmental protection 4,614,983 3,379,044 7,994,027
Transportation 5,284,977 1,846,676 7,131,653
Economic and physical development 702,591 6,219,433 6,922,024
Recreation and community facilities 6,270,473 308,802 8,578,275

Debt service: .
Principal 3,852,232 895,000 4,747,232
Interest and fees 2,100,426 711,035 2,811,461
Issue costs 65,737 38,248 103,985

Total expenditures 69,423,337 15,502,556 84,825,893
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (523,318) {7,598,927) (8,122,243)
Other financing sources (uses) :

Bonds 5,543,741 3,644,293 9,188,034

Capital leases 1,162,548 - 1,162,548

Transfers in 9,257,917 5,221,778 14,479,695

Transfers out (6,407,096) {500,000} (6,907,096)

Payment to refund bond escrow agent (5,468,212) - (5,4698,212)

Total other financing sources {(uses) 4,087,898 8,366,071 12,453,969
Net change in fund balances 3,564,582 767,144 4,331,726
Fund balance - beginning {as previously stated) 30,191,196 14,889,390 45,080,586
Prior period adjustment - {4,500,000) - (4,500,000)
Fund balance - beginning (restated) 25,691,196 14,889,390 40,580,586
Fund balance - ending § 20255778 § 15,656,634 % 44912312

The noies to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILL.E, NORTH CAROLINA

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds _ $ 4,331,726

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

depreciation exceeded capital outtay in the current period. (4,312,522)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e. sales, trade-ing, and donations) is to increase net assets. 7 {515,801)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. {2,700,151)

The issuance of iong-term debt {e.g. bonds, leases) provides current financial

resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-

term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any efiect on net assets. Also, governmental

funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar

items when debt is first issued, whereas these ameunts are deferred and

amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these

differences in the treament of long-term debt and related accounts. B,234

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. ' {12,564}

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities. 1,096,349

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (2,104,729)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Acfual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
Variance
With Final
Original Finat Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 34330007 $ 33786603 $ 33,720,313 § (66,290)
Other taxes : 22,092,674 23,468,437 24 767,471 1,299,034
intergovernmental : 4,841,498 4,774,211 4,884,358 110,147
Other functional 3,149,657 3,445,392 - 3,494,800 48,408
Miscellaneous 874,760 1,213,346 1,165,788 (47,558)
interest earnad on investments 799,701 835,899 867,291 31,392
Total revenues 66,087,297 67,523,888 68,900,021 1,376,133
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Administration 8,308,208 9,051,618 8,005,040 1,946,578
Public safety 39,596,614 39,603,521 38,526,878 1,076,643
Environmental protection 5,561,726 5,623,082 4,614,983 1,008,109
Transportation 6,113,342 6,122,227 5,284 977 837,250
Economic and physical development 960,996 989,089 702,591 286,498
Recreation and community facilities 6,732,181 7.528,197 6,270,473 1,257,724
Debt service: )
Principal 7,184,858 7,689,546 3,852,232 ) 3,837,314
Interest and fees : 42,378 42,378 2,100,426 (2,058,048}
issue costs . - 65,737 65,737 -
Total expenditures 74,500,303 77,615,405 69,423,337 8,192,068
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (8,403,008) (10,081,517} (523,316} 9,568,201
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bonds - 5,543,741 5,543,741 -
Capital leases 1,686,362 1,356,344 1,162,548 {193,796)
Transfers in 8,395,597 9,109,070 9,257,917 148,847
Transfers out (3,392,898) (5,356,217) (6,407,096} {1,050,879)
Appropriated fund balance 1,713,945 4,912,020 - (4,912,020)
Payment to refund bond escrow agent - (5,473,441) (5,469,212) 4,229
Tatal other financing sources (Uses) 8,403,006 10,091,517 4,087,898 (6,003,619)
Net change in fund balances $ - % - 3,564,582 § 3.564 582
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING {AS PREVIOUSLY STATED) 30,191,196
PRIOR FPERIOD ADJUSTMENT (4,500,000}
- FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (RESTATED) 25,601,196
FUND BALANGCE - ENDING $ 29255778

The notes to the financial statements are an integral parti of this statement.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Balance Sheet

Proprietary Funds
June 340, 2003
Enterprise Funds
Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Assets
GCurrent assets
Cash and investments $ 20,081,781 3§ 8087217 $ 2702041 § 30,871,038 § 7514510
Accounts receivable 21,542,271 14,658,241 902,226 37,102,738 17,908
Interfund receivable 389,714 {20,485) - 369,229 -
Inventories 9,929,150 1,138,204 8,551 11,075,905 309,404
Prepaid expenses 88,137 107 698 - 185,835 138,400
“Total unrestricied current assets 52,031,053 23,970,875 3,612,518 79,614,746 7.980,222
Restricted current assets
Cash and investments 13,393,154 22,563,315 - 35,962,469 -
Accounts receivable 3,338 485,744 - 469,080 -
Coliatera! pledged in lieu of deposits 148,060 - - 148,060 -
Total resiricted current assets 13,550,550 23,029,059 - 38,579,609 -
Total current asseis 65,581,603 46,899,934 3,612,818 116,194,355 7,980,222
Noncurrent assets
Cther assets : 2,719,017 4,850,332 132,000 7,701,399 -
Capital assets 217,740,347 329,360,026 25,209,276 572,308,649 231,482
Total noncurrent assets 220,459,364 334,210,408 25,341,276 580,011,048 231,482
Total assets $ 288,040,967 $ 381,210,342 § 28,954,084 $ 696205403 $ 8211704
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities to be paid from
unrestricted assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 17,177,185 & 6,137,482 § 578,040 $ 23,892,887 $ 3,908,946
Overdraft payable 5,384,188 - - 6,384,188 -
Current poriion of long term debt 3,362,345 7,532,411 - 10,894,756 -
Interfund payables - - 423,798 423,798 -
Accrued vacation - - 168,577 168,577 81,741
Total current liabilities to be paid
from unrestricted assets 26,923,688 13,665,903 1,170,415 41,764,008 3,990,687
Current liabilities {o be paid from
restricted assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,191,032 1,842,974 - 5,034,006 -
Tota! current liabilitias o be paid
from restricted assets 3,191,032 1,842,974 - 5,034,006 .
Total current liabilities 30,114,720 15,512,877 1,170,415 46,798,012 3,890,687
Norncurrent fiabilities
Unearned depesits - 4,908,753 - 4,908,753 -
Deferred revenues - - 56,060 56,060 289
Long-term dabt 51,750,847 125,482,728 - 177,233,575 -
Total noncurrent liabilites 51,750,847 130,391,481 58,060 182,198,388 288
Tota! liabilities 81,865,567 145,904,358 1,228,475 228,996,400 3,980,976
Net asseis
Invested in capiial assets, net of related debt 162,627,155 196,344 887 25,209,276 384,181,318 231,482
Restricted nst assets
Capital projects - 25,695 - 25,695 -
Debt service 2,946,957 7,554,802 - 10,501,859 -
Unrestricted 38,601,288 31,380,500 2,618,343 72,500,131 3,889,246
Total net assets 204,175,400 235,305,984 27,727,618 467,209,003 4,220,728
Total liabilities and net assets $ 286,040,967 $ 381,210,342 § 28,954,094 $ 696205403 $ 8,211,704

The notes o the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 21



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 145817727 & 43,008,035 8 3356280 § 191982042 3 -
Other revenue from operations - - 125,705 125,705 133,355
Interfund charges and employee contributions - - - - 11,234,748
Total operating revenuss 145,617,727 43,0085 035 3,481,985 192 107 747 11,368,103
Operating expenses
General and administrative 8,304,691 8,639,521 - 16,944,212 -
Powsr supply and generation 145,804,320 - - 115,804,320 -
Waier purification and distribution - 9,222,850 - 9,222,880 -
Sewer collection and treatment - 8,220,611 - 8,220,611 -
Personnel - - 3,528,423 3,529,423 1,411,897
Maintenance and operations - - 2,319,958 2,319,988 9,372,086
Depreciation 12,890,217 11,407,197 2,312,571 28,609,835 53,278
Total cperating expenses 137,099,228 37,480,209 8,161,982 182,751,419 10,837,262
Operating income (loss) 8,518,499 5,517,826 {4,679,897) 9,356,328 530,841
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Interest earned on invesiments 876,930 817,065 41,586 1,735,571 182,637
Federal and State grants - - 1,660,002 1,660,002 -
Passenger faciiity charges - - 322,372 322,372 -
Miscellaneous revenue - - 84,297 84,297 -
Gain (loss) on disposai of capital assets {864,850} (13,386) - {878,238) -
Interest expenss (2,955,731} (8,393,205} (26,1986) (9,375,132) -
Amortization {450,375} (753,194) {22,000} {1,225,569) -
Miscellaneous expense - -~ {263,085) {263,085) -
Total nongperating revenue (expense) (3,384,028} {6,342,730) 1,796,976 (7,939,78C) 182,637
income {loss} before transfers -
and contributions 5,124,473 (824,804) {2,883,021) 1,416,548 713,478
Transfers in - - 1,355,726 1,355,726 329,592
Transfers out (8,667,130) (5590,787) - {8,257,917) -
Capitaf contributions 3.632,702 8 605,351 1,733.020 13,871,073 .
Change in net assets 90,045 7,189,660 205,725 7,485,430 1,043,079
Total net assets - beginning 204,085,355 228,116,324 27,521,894 459,723,573 3,177,658
Total net assets - ending $ 204,175400 5 235305884 § 27727619  § 467208003 % 4,220,728

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement. 22
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
Operating activities
Cash recelved from customers 145,036,392 $ 42,696,848 $ 3,657,550 $ 191,380,590 $ 11,597,423
Cther operaiing revenue . - 81,701 181,701 133,355
Cash received as deferrad revenues - - - - (2,970}
. Cash paid to or on behalf of erployees for services (8,928,987} (10,048,129) (3,545,268) (22,522,284) (1,407,743)
Cash paid for goods and services (24,627,086) {14,490,682) {2,083,624) (41,201,392 (9,586,834)
Cash paid for power supply and generation (88,156,736) - - {88,156,736) -
Net cash provided by {used in)
operating activities 23,323,883 18,157,837 (1.789,841) 39,691,879 733,231
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in - 122,686 1,355,726 1,478 417 325,592
Federal and state grants - . 1,860,002 1,660,002 -
Nonoperating revenues - - 406,669 406,669 -
Transfers out (8,867,130) {713,473) - (2,380,603} -
Other - - {263.085) {263,085} -
Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities {8,667,130) (590,787) 3,158,312 {6.098,605) 329,592
Capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of assets {659,555) (9,655) - (669,210Q) -
Proceads from debt issuance 8,335,380 71,944,620 40,213 78,320,213 -
Gain on refunding {473,626) (7,187,992} - (7,661,618) -
Amocunt paid for refunding (5,185,000) (57.475,000) - (62,660,000) -
Contributed capital received 3,586,750 4,296,308 64,103 7,847,161 -
Capital coniributions - State grant - - 78,138 78,138 -
Capital conirfbutions - Fedaral grant - - 1,466,745 1,486,745 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {13.779,554) {10,537,841) (1,540,427) {25,857,822) (4,210)
Principal paid on debt maturities (3,669,280) (7,110,477) (63,644) {10,843,401) -
Interest paid on debt maturities (2,855731) {6,393.205) (26,196) (9,375,132) -
Net cash provided {(used) by capital and
related financing activities {16,800,616) (12,473,242) 18,932 (29,254,926) {4,210}
Investing activities
Interest a2nd dividends 876,930 817,055 41,586 1,735,571 182,637
Net change in investments 7,855,065 {4,104,37%) = 3.750.688 -
Net cash provided (used)} by investing activities 8,731,895 (3,287,324) 41,585 5,486,257 182,637
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalentsfinvestments 6,587 932 1,806,484 1,430,188 3,824 605 1,241,250
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 13,944,268 15,643,469 1,271,852 31,758,589 5,273,260
End of year 20,532,200 $ 18,349,953 $ 2702041 5 41,584,154 5 7,514,510
Cash and cash equivaients 20,532,200 5 18,349,953 3 2,702,041 $ 41,584,194 $ 7,514,510
Investments 12,948,735 12,300 579 - 25,249,314 -
Total cash and cash eguivalentsfinvestments 33,480,935 $ 30,650,532 $ 270204 $ 66,833,508 5 7,514,510
Unrestricted cash and equivalentsfinvestments 20,081,781 $ 8,087,217 5 2,702,044 $ 30,871,039 3 7,514,510
Restricted cash and equivalents/investments 13,389,154 22.563.315 - 35,862,488 -
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments 33,480,935 $ 30,650,532 $ 2,702,041 3 56,833,508 3 7,514,510

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 23




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Reconciliation of operating income {loss)

to net cash provided by

[used in) operating activities

Operating income {loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided by {used in) operating
activities:

Depreciation
Allowance for uncollectible accounts

Change in asseis and liabilities

{increase) decrease in accounts receivable

{increase) decrease in inventory

{increase) decrease in prepaid items

{increase) decrease in internal balances

{Increase) decrease in other current assets

{increase) decrease in other assets

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabitities

Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues

Increase (decrease) in overdraft payable

Increase (decrease) in unearned deposits

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities §

Enterprise Funds

Water and Other Internal
Electric Wastewater Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
k3 8,518,455 3 5,517,826 $ (4879997 3 9,356,328 530,841
12,890,217 11,407,187 2,312,571 26,609,985 53,279
{78) {4,824) - (4,900} -
(585,554) (308,563) 302,452 {589,565) 369,851
972,773 (187,867) (1,483) 783,423 -
- - - - (87,584)
{1,618,370C) 1,618,370 - - -
{28,757} {23,005) - {51,752) -
196,070 1,030,878 “ 1,227,048 -
1,471,855 {887,141) 236,665 821,379 (134,340)
- - (15,845) {15,845) 4,154
- - 55,998 55,996 (2,870)
1,507,026 - - 1,507,026 -
- {7.132) - (7,132) -
14,805,184 12,640,011 2,890,358 30,335,551 202,390
233236583 % 18157837 & (1.,789841) § 39,691,879 733,231

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 24




City of Faystteville, North Carolina

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2003

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Funds Trusts
Assets
Cash and investments $ 5576050 % 1,331,885
Accounts receivabie 4,231 75,324
Total assets 5,580,281 1,407,219
Liabilities
Accounts payable 8,865 -
Total liabilities 8,865 -
Net assets
Held in Trust for;
Pension benefits 5,571,418 -
Private purpose - 1,407,219
Total net assets $ 5571416 $ 1,407,219

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 25




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Pension Private-purpose
Trust Funds Trusts
Additions
Other revenue from operations $ - 5 20,292
Contributions 2,698,000 71,275
Investment earnings (2,733,417) 42,428
Total additions (35,417) 133,995
Deductions
Beneiit payments and premiums 2,830,251 52,701
Transfer to Local Government Employee
Retirement System Plan 49,671,773 -
Transfer in 4,000,000 -
Transfer out _ (4,000,000) -
Total deductions 52,502,024 52,701
Change in net assets (62,537,441} 81,294
Total net assets - beginning 58,108,857 1,325,925
Total net assets - ending $ 5571416 § 1,407,219

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 26
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are intended to communicate information necessary for a
fair presentation of financial- position and results of operations that are
not readily apparent from, or cannot be included in, the financial
statements themselves. The notes supplement the financial statements,
are an integral part thereof, and are intended to be read together with the
financial statements.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Fayetteville, North Carolina (the “City”) was established in 1783. The City operates under a
council-manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety, environmenial
protection, transportation, economic and physical development, recreation and community facilities, electric,
water and wastewater utility services and general administrative services. The City receives substantial
revenues from Federal and State sources. Ad valorem taxes on the City of Fayetteville's citizens represent a
significant portion of the general government revenues. :

The financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Garolina have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City's
accounting policies are described below.

A - Reporting Entity

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of "America, these financial
statements present the City and its component units. GASB Statement number 14 defines component units
as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. The primary government is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization's governing body and a) it is able to impose its will on that organization or b) there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens upon, the
_ primary government.

This statement provides two methods for reporting compenent units in the financial statements of the primary
government: discrete presentiation and biending. Discrete presentation means that data will be presented in
one or more separate columns to the right of the primary government data columns. Blending means that
the component unit's financial data is reported as though the unit is part of the primary government. If the
units provide services or benefits exclusively, or almost exclusively, to the primary government, or if the
component units and the primary government have "substantively identical boards,” the legally separate
component units should be incorporated by blending. If the units do not meet these criteria, their data should
be incorporated by discrete presentation.

Based on evaluating these characteristics, the following is a brief review of the component units in the City's
reporting entity:

City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation

The City of Fayetteville Finance Corporation is a non-profit corporation formed for the purpose of issuing
bonds to build a new police administration building and defease the City’s outstanding 1989 certificates of
participation. The City leases the new police building from the Corporation, with rental revenues being used
by the Corporation to retire the bonds. The Corporation is shown in a blended presentation as the
Corporation provides services exclusively to the City. The operating fund of the Corporation is presented in
the accompanying financial statements as a nonmajor special revenue fund.

City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc.

The City of Fayetteville Linear Park, Inc. is a non-profit corpbration formed for the purpose of assisting in the
development of the Linear Park downtown. The corporation had no activity during the year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Pdlicies {continued)
A — Reporting Entity {continued)
Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc.

Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities; Inc. (FACF) is a non-profit carporation formed for the purpose of acquisition,
construction, equipping, expansion, enlargement, improvement, financing, refinancing, leasing, management
and operation of air cargo faciliies in Fayetteville, North Carolina. ' FACF has issued industrial revenue
bonds for the construction of air cargo facilities at the Fayeiteville Regional Airport. The proceeds of the
bonds have been loaned to a private corporation, which is responsible for the actual construction. The City
has leased the land for the construction to FACF, which has subleased it to the private corporation. In
consideration of the sublease and lease, the private corporation pays rent to FACF, which in turn pays rent
to the City. A voting majority of the board of directors is appointed by the City Council. The City can remove
any director with or without cause. FACF is an enterprise fund type and is shown in a discrete presentation.
it does not issue separate financial statements.

B - Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of
the City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, -and
other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particutar function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds have been
reversed for the statement of activities. Program revenues inciude (a) fees and charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

The Government-wide Statements are presented on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Fiduciary funds are not included in these
staiements.

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds,
including its fiduciary funds and blended component unit. Separate statements for each fund category —
govemmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on
major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROL[NA.
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Sumtﬁary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
B - Basis of Presentation {continued)
The City reports the following ﬁajor govefnmenta! fund:

General Fund. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those that are required to be accounted for in-another fund.
The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various other taxes and licenses. The
primary expenditures are for public safety, street maintenance and construction, and sanitation services.

The City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds. Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The Emergency Response Fund accounts for Enhanced
and Wireless 911 revenues and related expenditures. The Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund
accounts for federal and state grants. The Storm Water Management Fund accounts for specified taxes and
maintenance of the storm water system. The Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund accounts for debt service on
certain municipal buildings. '

Capital Project Funds. Capital Project Funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition
or construction of governmental capital assets. The General Government Fund accounts for information
technology and other projects supporting the entire government. The Public Safety Fund accounts for
projects supporting the public safety services provided by the City. The Recreational and Cultural Fund
accounts for parks and similar projects. The Transportation Fund accounts for projects to improve
transportation and related services throughout the City. The Bond Improvement Fund accounts for bond
proceeds and their use. The Economic and Physical Development Fund accounts for construction and
improvement of various public facilities.

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

Electric Fund. This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Butler-Warner Generation
Plant and the transmission and distribution of electricity to the City of Fayetteville and surrounding areas.

Water and Wastewater Fund. This fund accounts for the operations of the water and wastewater facilities
for the City of Fayetteville, and surrounding areas.

The City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds: The Transit Fund accounts for operation of the
municipal fransit system. The Airport Fund accounts for the operation and capital asset
acquisition/construction of the Fayetteville Regional Airport.

The City reports the followirig fund types:

Internal Service Fund. Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost reimbursement basis. The
Warranty Fleet Fund is used to account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with
internally leasing vehicles. The Fleet Maintenance Fund is used to account for the accumulation and
allocation of costs associated with maintenance of the City’s vehicles. The Insurance Fund is used to
account for the accumulation and allocation of costs associated with health, workers compensation, and
liability claims.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements {continued)
June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
B - Basis of Presentation (continued)

Pension Trust Fund. These funds accumulate contributions in order to pay retirement benefits to eligible
participants. The Special Separation Allowance Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Oificers’ Special
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, public employee retirement system. The PWC Pension Fund
accounts for the Public Works Retirement System, a single-employer, defined benefit pension pian; this was
its final year. The Supplemental PWC Pension Fund accounts for the PWC Supplemental Employees’
Retirement Plan, a single-employer defined benefit pensicn plan.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund. These funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for use by
others. - The Police Benefit and Fireman's Benefit Funds account for rescurces held in trust for these two
groups of individuals. All resources of the funds, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used
to support the organizations' aclivities. There is no requirement that any portion of these resources be
preserved as capital.

C - Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the C|ty are mamtamed during the year
using the modified acerual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
governmeni-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City
gives {or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The City's enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenuas and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the funds’ principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City’s utility funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the City’'s utility
funds include the costs of sales and services, general and administrative services and depreciation of capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Govemnmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmential funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the medified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues
are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the retated fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures o the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

The City considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end, except for
properly taxes. Ad valorem taxes receivable are not accrued as a revenue because the amount is not
susceptible to accrual at June 30, since taxes receivable are materially past due and are not considered to
be an availabie resource to finance the operations of the current year.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA -
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
C- Méasurement Focus and Basis of Accounting {continued)

Also, as of January 1, 1993, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property
taxes on all registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. - Effective with this change in the law, Cumberland
County is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered moter vehicles on behalf of all
muricipalities and special tax districts in the County, including the City of Fayetteville. For motor vehicles
registered under the staggered system, property taxes are due the first day of the fourth month after the
vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they become due.
Therefore, the City's vehicle taxes for vehicles registered in Cumberland County from March 2002 through
February 2003 apply to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. Uncollected taxes which were billed during this
period are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred revenues. Those
taxes for vehicles registered from March 1 through the fiscal year-end apply to the 2003-2004 fiscal year and
are not shown as receivables at June 30, 2003. For vehicles registered under the annual system, taxes are
due on May 1 of each year. For those vehicles registered and billed under the annuai system, uncollected
taxes are reported as a receivable on the financial statements, If material, and are offset by deferred
revenues hecause the due date and the date upon which interest begins to accrue is prior to June 30. The
taxes for vehicles registered annually that have already been collected as of year-end are also reflected as
deferred revenues at June 30, 2003 because they are intended to finance the City's operations during the
2004 fiscal year. '

All GASB Statements and all Financial Accounting Standards Board (“"FASB"} Statements issued on or
before November 30, 1988, except those that conflict with the GASB are applied in both the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the City are recognized as revenue.
Intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they
are not measurable uniil received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearmned at year-end are recorded as
unearned revenues.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted
resources first then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D —- Budgetary Data

Budgets are adopted as required by the North Carclina General Statutes. An annual budget is adopted for
the general, selected special revenue, and enterprise funds. Al annual appropriations [apse at fiscal year
end. Project and grant ordinances are adopted for the Federal and State Financial Assistance special
revenue fund and capital project funds. Enterprise capital project funds are consolidated with the operating
funds for reporting purposes. The City's internal service funds are intfra-governmental service funds, which
operate under financial plans that were adopted by the governing board at the time the City's budget
ordinance was approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the deparimental level
for the general, selected special revenue, and proprietary funds and at the project level for selected special
revenue and capital project funds. Any revisions that alter total appropriations at the department or project
level, as appropriate, of any fund must be approved by the City Councl. During the year, several
amendments to the original budget were necessary. The budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the
fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim budget thai covers that time until the annual
ordinance can be adopted.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Deposits and Investments

All deposits of the City are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by
State law (G.S. 159-31). The City may designate, as an official depository, any bank or savings association
whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the City may establish time deposit accounts such
as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law (G.S. 159-30{c)) authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina;
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or pubiic authority; obligations of certain
nonguaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances;
and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT).

The City’s investments with a maturity of more than one year at acquisition and non-money market
investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. The securities of the NCCMT
Cash Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) money market mutual fund, are vaiued at fair value, which is the
NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value. Money market
investments that have a remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at
amortized cost. Nonparticipating interest earning investment contracts are reported at cost.

In accordance with State law, the City has invested in securities which are callable and which provide for '
periodic interest rate increases in specific increments until maturity. These investments are reported at fair
value as determined by quoted market prices.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to maximize
investment income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are
considered cash and cash equivalents. The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds consider demand
deposits and investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash
equivalents.

Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable

In accordance with State law, the City levies ad valorem taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July
1, the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, interest does not
accrue until the following January 6. The taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2002.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The City operates enterprise funds that provide credit in the normal course of business to customers
primarily located in Fayettevile, North Carolina. The City performs on-going credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains allowances for doubtful accounts by using the experience method to estimate
collaction losses to be incurred. Credit losses, when realized, have been within the range of the City's
estimations and historicalty have not been significant.  Other receivables that historically experience
uncollectible accounts are also shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated
by anaiyzing the percentage of receivables that were written off in prior years.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued) |
Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables {continued)

The receivables shown on the Statement of Net Assets are presented net of the following allowances for
doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2003:

Fund
General Fund: _

Taxes receivable $ 688,096

Accounts receivable 6,203,976

Assessments receivable 129,350

Tax penalties receivable 492 831
Special Revenue Fund

Taxes receivable 12,005
Capital Project Fund _

Accounts receivable 750
Transit Operating

Accounts receivable 5,851
Airport Operating

Accounts receivable 1,467
Electric Fund:

Accounts receivable 292,541
Water and Wastewater Fund:

Accounts receivable 54,056

Total $§ 7880923

Receivables for Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc. are presented net of a $0 allowance for doubtful
accounts.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individuatl funds for goods provided
or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as “Interfund receivable” or “interfund
payable” on the balance sheet in the fund financial statements and as “internal batances” on the statement of
net assets in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market. The costs of governmental fund-type
inventories, which consist of materials and supplies, are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed
rather than when they are purchased. The cosis of enterprise fund-type inventories, which consist of
generation fuel, materials and spare parts, are expensed when used rather than when purchased.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2003, are recorded as
prepaid items.
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June 30, 2003
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued}
E- Asséts, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Restricted Assets and Liabilities

In the capital project and enterprise funds the City has classified as restricied the assets representing
deposits, reserves, capital project appropriations and unexpended bond proceeds because their use is
completely restricted to the purpose for which the bonds were issued or the purpose for which the funds
were set aside. Liabilities due to be repaid from restricted assets are classified as restricted liabilities.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initia!, individual cost of more than $3,000 {$2,500 in
the Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital
assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. With the exception of the storm
water network, general infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2001 are reported at estimated
historical cost using deflated current cost. As allowed by GASB 34, retroactive reporting of the storm water
network infrastructure will be delayed until June 30, 2007. Utility (electric, water, and wastewater) capiial
assets purchased or constructed since 1958 are recorded at cost. Contributed utility assets are recorded at
estimated value at the date of acquisition. Utility assets acquired prior to 1958 are carried on an estimated
cost basis. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets, as applicable. Gains and losses on dispositions of capital
assets are credited or charged to operations.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Useful Lives

Asset Class {Years)

Infrastructure 15-50
Buildings 40
Utility plant systems 20 - 50
Improvements 4-15
Vehicles 4-20
Fumiture and equipment 4 —10
Computer equipment 3

Interest expense that relates to the cost of acquiring or constructing fixed assefs in enterprise funds is
capitalized. Interest expense incurred in connection with construction of capital assets is reduced by interest
earned on the investment of funds borrowed for construction in accordance with FASB 62 "Capitalization of
Interest Gost in Situations Involving Certain Tax Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants."
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.Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liébilities, and Fund Equity (continued)
Other Assets

Facility investment fees credit is given on a dollar per dollar basis for off-site water/wastewater approach
mains necessary to serve City approved projects. The facility investment fees credit, if not utilized in the
initiat development, will be available to the developer for use in other City approved projects for a period not
to exceed 5 years from the original contract date, unless otherwise stated in contract.

Compensated Absences

The vacation policy of the City provides for the accumulation of up to seven (7) weeks eamned vacation leave
with such leave being fully vested when earned. For the City’s government-wide and proprietary funds, an
expense and a liability for compensated absences, including compensatory time and holiday pay, and the
salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The City's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of eamed sick leave. Sick leave does not
vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of
length of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since the City has no obligation for the accumulated sick
leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for that sick leave has been made. However, the City’s sick leave
policy for Electric and Water and Wastewater Fund employees allows 25% of accumuiated sick leave to be
paid at the time of retirement. A liability for the estimated amount of this sick leave to uitimately be paid is
included in the financial statements. :

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premiums or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized
over the term of the related debt.

In fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

Net assets in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are classified as invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted. Restricted net assets represent constraints on
resources that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments or imposed by law through state statute.

In the governmental fund financial statements, reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not

appropriable or are legally segregated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accbuntin'g Policies (continued)
E - Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity {continued)
Net Assets/Fund Balances (continued)
State law (G.S. 159-13(b) (16)) restricts appropriation of fund balance for the subseguent year's budget to an
amount not to exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts as those amounts stand at the close of the fiscal year
preceding the budget year.
The governmental fund types classify ﬁmd balances as follows:
Reserved
Reserved by State statute - portion of fund balance, in addition to reserves for encumbrances and reserves
for inventories, which is not available for appropriation under State law (G.S. 158-8(a)). This amount is
usually comprised of accounts receivable and interfund receivables which have not been offset by deferred

revenues.

Reserved for encumbrances - portion of fund balance available to pay for commitments related to purchase
orders or contracts which remain unperformed at year-end.

Reserved for inventories - portion of fund balance that is 591 available for appropriation because it represents
the year-end fund balance of ending inventories, which are not expendable, available resources.

Reserved for downtown - portion of fund balance available for appropriation for projects in the Central
Business District.

Reserved for wireless 911 - portion of fund balance available to pay for the acquisition and operation of
wireless 911 services.

Unreserved

Designated for special purpose - portion of fund balance identified for specific uses in the general fund and
special revenue funds.

Designated for subsequent year's expenditures - portion of the total fund balance available for appropriation
that has been designated for the adopted 2003 - 2004 budget ordinance.

Designated for debt service - portion of fund balance designated to meet future principal and interest
payments on outstanding debt.

Undesignated - portion of total fund balance available for appropriation that is uncommitted at year-end.
F - Reclassification

For comparability, the 2002 figures have been reclassified, where appropriate, to conform with the financial
statement presentation used in 2003.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Po!icieé (continued)
G - Prior Perioc_i Adjustment

Beginning fund balance in the General Fund has been adjusted and restated to properly refiect deferred
revenue under the modified accrual basis of accounting.

H - Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
A - Deposits

All -of the City's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under the
Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the Federal Depository Insurance coverage level are
collateralized with securities held by the City's agents in the City’s name. Under the Pooling Method, which
is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's
agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the
City, these deposits are considerad to be held by the City's agents in their names. The amount of the
pledged collateral is based on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and- the
actual current balance for interest-bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the
State Treasurer the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer
does not confirm this information with the City or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the
exact amounis of collateral pledged for the CHy under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for
undercollaterization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer
of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public
deposits under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2003, the City's deposits had a carrying amount of $7,621,828 and a bank balance of
$8,384,557. Of the bank balance, $317,405 was covered by Federal Depasit Insurance, and $8,067,152
was covered by collateral under the Pooling Method.

B - Investments

The City's investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at year-
end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by
the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for
which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the City's name. Category 3
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City's name. Investments of the Supplemental PWC Pension
Trust Fund are exempt from risk categorization because third-party custodians take delivery of the
investment securities on behalf of the City. Investments in the North Carolina Capital Managemeni Trust are
exempt from custodial risk categorization because the City does not own any identifiable securities, but is a
shareholder of a percentage of the fund.
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Note 2 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments {(continued)

B — Investments (continued)

Reported . Fair
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Value Value

U. S. Government Agencies  $29,878,732 $15,407,302 § - $45286,034 $ 45,352,241
Commercial Paper - 16,025,228 9,355,559 - 25,380,787 25,390,553
Other investments - - 4,250,000 - 4,250,000 4,250,000
$ 45,903,960 $29,012,861 $ - 74,916,821 74,892,794

Supplemental PWC Pension Trust 3,991,154 3,991,154

- N. C. Capital Management Trust ' 31,387,305 31,387,305

$110205280 $§ 110,371,253
The above investments with maturities of more than three months amounted to $57,802,137.

Reconciliation to cash and investments:

Totals per Footnote:

Total investments $ 110,295.280
Cash (demand deposits) 7,621,828
Petty cash 13,625
Total cash and investments § 117,830,733

Totals per Balance Sheet

Cash and investments - unrestricted 3 76,738,651
Cash and investments - restricted 40,668,325
Overdraft (6,384,188)
Pension trust cash and investments 5,576,050
Private-purpose trust cash and investments 1,331,895
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents § 117,830,733

The City invests in callable securities to hedge against a rise in interest rates. The first permitted call date is
July 24, 2003, and the security may be called by the issuer at any interest payment date, The issuer will be
required to pay a call premium on the redemption based on the call date at which the issuer elects to redeem
the securities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Note 3 —~ Notes Receivable

June 30, 2003

Notes receivable include loans made under the federal Community Development Block Grant and HOME
Partnership programs at rates of 5-8%. Included in accounts receivable is a note receivable for $4,500,000.

This note includes interest at the rate of 5.83%.

accrued interest.

Note 4 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2003, was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities:
Capitat assets not heing depreciated:
Lang ’
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixdures
Vehicles
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
tnfrastructure
Buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Vehicies
Total accumulated depreciation

Totai capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activity capital assets, net

The note carries a 100% allowance for the principat and

Balance Balance

July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2003
$ 33,101,771 $ 1,297,879 § (4740000 § - $ 33,825650
2,373,488 2,449,892 - (1,643,273} 3,180,107
35,475,259 3,747,771 (474,000} (1,643,273) 37,105,757
292,533,907 1,796,002 3) 1,643,273 295,973,179
42,248 332 224,063 {55,705) - 42 416,690
14,284,431 1,140,578 {59,208) (856,209) 14,469,504
19,687,756 1,081,883 {198,330) 896,299 21,467,808

368,754,428 4,242,526 (313,244) 1,643,273 374,326,981
(57,642,094} (8,282,765) - - (65,924,859)
{13,130,185) (1,341,309 22,893 - (14,448,691)
(11,251,859) (1,019,493} 50,304 - (12,221,048)
(17,133,022) (1,659,182} 198,246 - (18,593,938)
(99,157,160) § (12,302,818) § 271,443 $ - (111,188,538)

269,597,266

_8 305,072,525

263,138,445

$ 300,244,202

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the governmental activities of the primary

government as follows:

Administration

Public safety

Environmental protection
Transportation

Economic and physical development
Recreation and community facilities
Capital assets held by certain internal

service funds are charged to the various

governmential functions based on the
usage of the funds.
Total depreciation expense
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$ 300,395
2,024 644
385,363
8,960,659
4,014

574,463

53,281
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2003

Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued)

Weater and Wastewater fund capitai assets, net

$ 327,061,849

40

Balance Balance
July 1, 2002 increases Decreases Transfers June 30, 2003
Business-type activifies:
Eleciric Fund
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land $ 4,305,881 $ 79,730 & - $ - % 4,385,611
Construction in progress 15,185,427 10,861,296 (8,807,438) - 17,239,285
Total capital assets not being depreciated 19,291,300 10,941,026 15,807 438) - 21,624,808
Capital asseis being depreciated:
Electric ufiiity system 275,409,464 9,235,134 (567.665) - 284,076,932
Buildings and improvements 37,880,300 98,757 - - 37,977,057
Equipment and machinery 9,147,678 1,745,001 {6,459} - 10,886,220
Computer programs 6,595,444 504,212 (20,424) 1,988 7,381,224
Vehicles 4,443,094 97,874 (80,77%) - 4,460,197
Office equipment 1,899,864 12,797 (80,546) (7.876) 1,824,239
Total capital assets being depreciated 335,610,843 11,691,715 {755,566) G587} 345,505,506
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Electric utility system (119,084,057) {9,748,704) 369,173 - (128,463,678)
Buildings and improvements (5,008,153) {1,263,771) - - (8,361,924)
Equipment and machinery (4,312,765) (617,868) 1,655 - (4,928,978)
Computer programs {4,594,522) (842,175) 20,424 (1,479} (5,417,752}
Vehicles (3,881,244) (283,472) 79,974 - (4,084,742}
Office equipment (1,186,058) (134,137) 78,345 7,509 {1,233,341)
Total accumulated depreciation (138,156,799) "¢ (12.89C.2T7) % 350,571 3 B,030 (150,830,415)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 197,619,045 196,115,451
Electric fund capital assets, net $ 217,010,353 § 217,740,347
Water and Wastewater Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 6,728,908 $ 186,891 $ - $ - % 8,915,799
Construction in progress 7.845,108 12,507,194 (12,205,773} - 8,246,529
Total capital assets not being depreciated 14,674,076 12,684,085 ,200, . 15,762,308
Capital assets being depreciated:
Wastewater system 266,042,303 4,614,471 - - 270,656,774
Water system 171,063,170 7,224,081 - . 178,287,251
Buildings and improvemenis 5,354,900 19,240 - - 5,374,140
Equipment and machinery 6,642,648 357,574 {25,552) - 7,004,670
Computer programs 6,141,229 500,466 (36,896) {1,989) 6,602,810
Vehicles 4,145,147 473,156 (36,275) - 4,582,028
Office equipment 912,494 1,947 {4,075) 7.876 918,242
Total capital assets being depreciated 480,307,897 13,220,935 (A02,798) GB87 T RIS AZEEIE
Less accumulated deprediation for:
Wastewater system (73,708,202) (5,838,318) - - (79,548,520)
Water system (58,823,743) (3,814,221) - - (62,737,964)
Buiidings and improvements (1,639,794) (184,150} - - (1,823,944)
Equipment and machinery (5,251,871} (329,205) 23,821 - (5,657,255)
Computer pragrams (4,225,198) (742,583} 36,805 1,479 {4,929,407)
Vehicles (3,501,856) (344,507} 35477 - {3,810,888)
Cffice equipment : {763,394} (54,213) 2,875 (7,509) (822,241)
Total accumulated depreciation (1af914058y % (11,407,197 3 89,068 3 (0,030F (158,225,277
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 312,387,833

314,197,698

$ 320,360,026



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2003
Note 4 - Capital Assets (continued)
Balance Balance .
July 1, 2002 Increases Decraases Transfers June 30, 2003
Business-type activities (continued):
Nonmajor funds
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 5 1,132,701 3 - $ - $ - 3 1,132,701
Construction in progress 247,923 1,400,018 i - ’ - 1,647,939
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,380,624 1,400,016 - - 2,780,640
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 39,282 306 38,433 - : - 39,320,738
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2,081,809 101,978 {4,292} - 2,179,495
Vehicles 7,182,875 - - - 7,182,876
Total capital assets being depreciated 48,546,991 140,411 (4,292) - 48,683,110
Less accumulated depreciation for: .
Buildings and improvemenis (18,582,016) (1,500,730} - - (20,082,746)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment (1,293,875) (247,729) 4,292 - (1,537,312)
Vehicies (4.070,304) {564,112) - - (4,634,416)
Total accumulated depreciation 123,946,105) & (2.312,571) & 4,292 S - (26,254,474)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 24,600,796 22,428,636
" Nonmajor fund capital assets, net $ 25,981,420 $ 25,209,276
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 570,053,622 $ 572,309,649
*Disposals in Consiruction in progress are shown as additions to Capital assets being depreciated.
Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities of the primary government as follows:
Electric $ 12,890,217
Water and Wastewater 11,407,197
Transit 842,009
Airport 1,470,562
Total depreciation expense $ 26,609,985
Note 5 — Accounts Payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:
Nonmajor
General Governmentai Internal Service Subtotal Enterprise Fiduciary
Accounts payable 3 822,597 $ 300,076 $ 3,850,657 § 4,973,330 $ 28,475,558 % -
Contracts payable 121,589 256,121 - 447,710 488,190 -
Retainage payable - 45,676 - 45,676 130,562 -
Interfund pavable - 369,229 - 369,229 - -
Salaries and -
benefits payable 2,345,666 861 58,289 2,404,816 131,883 8,865
Total $ 3289852 § 1,011,863 & 3,908,946 8,210,761 $ 28926693 % 8,865
Adjustment for interest payable 581,138

5 8,791,899
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June 30, 2003

Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations
" A - General Obligation Indebtedness

The City has issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities and infrastructure. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith,
credit, and taxing power of the City. They are serviced by the general fund, with the exception of
$15,560,000, which is serviced by the Electric/Water and Wastewater Funds. Principal and interest
. payments are appropriated when due. General obligation bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30,
2003, are as follows: :

Governmental activities
$4,300,000 1987 Public Improvement Bonds
due in various annual instaliments through April 1, 2009;
interest at various rates between 5.8% and 6.0%. $ 1,100,000

$6,933,215 1993 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual installments through May 1, 2010; :
interest at various rates between 4.7% and 5%. 3,640,000

$6,900,000 1994 Public Improvement Bonds due
in various annual installments through
December 1, 20186; interest at rates 6.2% and 6.25%. 700,000

$2,770,000 1996 Street Improvement Bonds due in various
annual instaliments through December 1, 2015:
interest at various rates between 4.09% and 5%. 2,345,000

$13,800,000 1996 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annual installments, through December 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 4.9% and 5%. 9,925,000

$2,750,000 1999 Public Improvement Bonds due in various
annual instaltments beginning March 1, 2001 through
March 1, 2017; interest at 4.30%. 2,150,000

$4,900,000 1999 Street Improvement Bonds duein various
instaliments beginning March 1, 2001 through March 1, 2017,
interest at 4.32%. 3,800,000

$3,610,000 2000 Public Improvement Bonds due in
various annual instaliments beginning April 1, 2002
through April 1, 2021; interest at various rates between
4.9% and 5.1%. 3,500,000

$2,400,000 2000 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various installments beginning April 1, 2002 through
April 1, 2018; interest at various rates between 4.9%
and 5%. 2,300,000

42




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2003

Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
A - General Qbiigaﬁon indebtedness (continued)

$3,625,000 2002 Street Improvement Bonds due in
various installments beginning June 1, 2004 through
June 1, 2021; interest at various rates between 3.5%
and 4.5%. $ 3,625,000

$5,335,000 2002 Refunding Bonds due in various
annuai installments through June 1, 2016;
interest at various rates between 2% and 4%. 5,335,000
__38,420,000
Business-type activities
$27.835,000 1993 Refunding Bonds due in various
annual instaliments through May 1, 2009,
interest at various rates between 4.75% and 5%. 15,560,000

$ 53,980.000

B - Revenue Bonds

The City has issued revenue bonds, which have been used to finance the defeasance of certificates of
participation and the construction of facilities used in the City’s operations. The bonds are being retired by
resources generated by the facilities’ operations. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year ended June 30,
2003, are as follows:

Governmental activities:
$16,390,000 1996 Municipal Building Projects Bonds due in
various annual installments through February 1, 2018; interest
at 5.83%. 3 11,845,000

Business-type activities:
$73,955,000 1993 Revenue Refunding Bonds Electric/Water
and Sewer Bonds due in various annual installments
through March 1, 2014; interest at various
rates between 4.3% and 5.125%. 62,080,000

$34,985,000 1995 Series A Revenue Buildings/Water and
Sewer Bonds due in various annual instaliments
through March 1, 2008; interest at various
rates between 5.15% and 6.75%. 8,625,000

$40,755,000 1997 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various
installments through March 1, 2010; interest at
various rates between 4.3% and 5.25%. 6,745,000

$19,325,000 1999 Water and Sewer Bonds due in various

installments through March 1, 2010,
interest at various rates between 4.40% and 5.00%. 5,250,000
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‘Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)

B - Revenue Bonds (continued)

$19,175,000 2001 Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and
Wastewater Bonds due in various semiannual installments
through March 1, 2016; interest at various rates between

3.5% and 5.50%. $ 18,810,000

$78,280,000 2003 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in various
instaliments through March 1, 2024; fixed rate swap at 3.42%. _ 77,400,000
Total business-type revenue bonds 178,910,000

Total revenue.bonds : $ 190,755,000

The City has entered into an interest rate swap agreement for $78,280,000 of its variable rate 2003 Series
Revenue Refunding bonds. Based on the swap agreement, the City owes interest calculated at a fixed rate
of 3.42% to the Swap Provider. In return, the Swap Provider owes the City interest based on a variable rate
that is intended to approximate the variable rate payable on the bonds while the bonds bear interest at the
weekly interest rate as defined by the swap agreement. Only the net different in interest payments is
actually exchanged with the Swap Provider. The $78,280,000 in bond principal is not exchanged; it is only
the basis on which the interest payments are calculated.

The City continues to pay interest to the bondholders at the variable rate provided by the bonds. However,
during the term of the swap agreement, the City effectively pays a fixed rate on the debt. The debt service
requirements to maturity for these bonds presented in this footnote are based on that fixed rate. The City will
be exposed to variable rates if the Swap Provider to the swap defaults or if the swap is terminated. A
termination of the swap agreement may also result in the City making or receiving a termination payment.

C - Notfes Payable

Notes payable financed by the governmental funds are serviced by the federal and state financial assistance
fund. Notes payable financed by the Electric/Water and Wastewater Funds are accounted for in the
Enterprise Fund.

The City has incurred debt to finance certain community development and capital project activities. The City
has also entered into a revolving loan agreement for $7,595,127 with the State of North Carolina. The loan
was used for a Wastewater Project. This note payable is junior, inferior and subordinate in all respects to the
Revenue Bonds and General Obligation Bonds of the City of Fayefteville as to lien on and source and
security for payment from the revenues and in all other respects.
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Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
C - Notes Payable (continued)
Notes payable in the accompanying financial statements are comprised of the following:
Governmential activities
Note payable due in various quarterly instaliments

through September 2008; interest at various rates between

5.87% and 6.49%. $ 245,000
Business-type activities

$7,595,127 State revolving loan due in various annual
instaflments through May 1, 2021; interest at 2.6% paid

semiannually on May 1 and November 1. 6,835,614
Total $ 7080614

D - Lease Agreements

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing certain equipment, vehicles and fixtures.
These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been

recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments as of the date of their inception.
Capital lease obligations are comprised of the following:

Governmental activities
Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
instaliments of approximately $50,000 in 2003
including interest at 4.55% . $§ 5,225,037

Capital lease obligations payable in various monthly
installmenis of approximately $100,000 in 2003 :
plus interest at rates ranging from 3.40% to 5.87%. 2,441,608
7,666,645
Less: amount representing interest 1,186,800
Present value of the minimum iease payments $ 6479845

The following is an analysis of ieased property under capital leases as of June 30, 2003:

Classes of Property Cost Depreciation Value
Equipment 3 55808 % 2079 % 53,729
Vehicles 3,722,972 + 1,689,671 2,033,301
Buildings and improvement 5,647,518 1,017,063 4,630,455

Total 3 04726298 § 27068813 3 6,717,485
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Note 6 - Long-Term Debt {continued}

E - Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of changes in the City's long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2003:
Balance . Balance
Governmental activities: July 1, 2002 increases Decreases June 30, 2003 Current Portion
Baonded dsbt 5 49,735,000 $ 9,160,000 $ 8,630,000 % 50,265,000 S 3,855,000
Capitalized leases ' 6,424,530 1,162,548 1,107,233 6,479,845 1,220,181
-‘Notes payable 305,000 - 60,000 245,000 60,000
Arbitrage payable 144,077 - 14,299 129,778 129,778
Compensated absences 3,197,582 3,706,982 3,667,740 3,236,831 2,208,489
53,806,189 $ 14,029,537 $ 13,479,272 60,356,454 7,473,448
Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization) - (397,367) -

Total governmental activities 3 59,806,189 H

59,859,087 $ 7473448

Governmental compensated absences typically have been liquidated in the genefal fund.

Bafance Balance

July 1, 2002 Increases Decreases June 30, 2003 Current Porticn
Businass-type activities:
General cbligation debt 3 18,335,000 5 - $ 2,775,000 $ 15,560,000 5 2,730,000
Revenue bonds 170,915,000 75,280,000 70,285,000 178,910,000 7,785,000
Notes payabie 7,218,371 - 379,757 6,835,614 379,756
Compensated absences 184,422 166,580 182,425 168,577 168,577
196,648,793 $ 78,446,580 $ 73,622,182 201,474,191 11,063,333
Less: loss on defeasance

{net of amortization (6,180,237) (13,177,283) -
$ 188,296,908 $ 11,063,333

Total business-type activities $ 190,469,556

Discretely presented component units:
Revenue bonds 3 306,841 3 - % 58,404

$ 248537 % 58,404

Total discretely presented component
units long-term liabilities 3 306,941 3 - $ 58,404

$ 248,537 $ 58,404
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Note 6 — Long-Term Obligations (continued)

F - Maturities of Long-Term Cbligations

The following table summarizes the annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt outstanding
{(excluding compensated absences and arbitrage payable).

Governmental activities:

Year Bonds Payable Lease Revenue Notes Note Payable
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2004 % Zggn000 § 1,727,305 5 865,000 T 651,768 & 60,000 $ 13,756
2005 3,085,000 1,686,305 915,000 807,853 60,000 9,954
2006 3,055,000 1,451,170 965,000 559,615 60,000 6,124
2007 3,105,000 1,314,213 1,015,000 508,470 60,000 2,262
2008 3,135,000 1,174,562 1,070,0C0 453,660 5,000 162
2009-2013 13,720,000 3,818,738 3,180,000 1,604,316 - -
2014-2018 8,105,000 1,114,574 3,835,000 670,781 . - -
2019-2023 1,225,000 117,875 - - - -
Less: loss on defeasance
{net of amortization} (397,367} -

Construction and

Year Improvement Leases Capitalized Leases Total Debt Due
Ended Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2004 5 376,501 5 184,156 % 843,679 ] 59,632 § 5,135,180 § 25636417
2005 376,501 167,025 857,164 31,386 5,293,665 2,402,323
2006 378,501 149,895 493,237 9,520 4,949,738 2,176,324
2007 378,501 132,764 99,400 2,304 4,655,901 1,960,013
2008 376,501 115,633 44,851 434 4,631,352 1,744,451
2009-2013 1,882,506 321,202 - - 18,782,506 5,744,256
2014-2018 376,503 12,848 - - 12,316,503 1,798,203
2019-2023 - - - - 1,225,000 117,875
Less: loss on defeasance

(net of amortization) - - - - (397,367) -

5 4,141,514 3 1,083,523 § 2,538,337 T 103,276 T 56,502,478 T 18,570,802
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Note 6 - Long-Term Obligations (continued)
F - Maturities of Long-Term Obligations (continﬁed)

Business-type activities:

Year : Bonds Payable Notes Payable Total Debt Due
Ended "~ Principal Interest * Principal interest Principal Interest

2004 T 10515000 § 8,326,820 & 379,756 & 177,726 & 10894756 § 8504546

2005 ) 11,025,000 7,846,830 379,756 167,852 14,404,756 8,014,882

2006 11,595,600 7,321,170 379,756 157,979 11,874,758 7,479,149

2007 12,175,000 6,755,578 379,756 148,105 12,554,756 6,903,683

2008 11,545,000 6,189,261 379,756 138,231 11,824,758 6,327,492
2009-2013 68,385,000 22,056,197 1,898,782 543,052 70,283,782 22,599,249
2014-2018 42,040,000 8,637,524 1,898,782 256,210 43,838,782 8,833,734
2019-2023 17,370,000 3,168,887 1,139,270 59,242 18,509,270 3,228,129
2023-2024 9,820,000 335,844 - - 9,820,000 335,844

104,470,000 70,638,111 B.835.6814  1.688,397 201,305,614 72,326,508

Less: Loss on defeasance :
{net of amoriizaticn) (13,177,283} - - - (13,177,283} -

In September 2002, the City entered into an agreement with the State of North Carolina to accept an additional
$17,442,000 State Revolving Loan. The City has incurred reimbursable expenditures under this agreement in
the amount of $780,930. The City expects to draw this amount and the remainder of the loan amount during
- fiscal year 2004. This note will be junior, inferior, and subordinate in all respects to the Revenue Bonds and
General Obligation Bonds of the City.

G - Legal Debt Margin

The legal debt margin of the City at June 30, 2003, approximated $434,139,916.

H - Authorized but Unissued Debt

At June 30, 2003, the City had no bonds authorized but unissued.

| - interest Expense

Interest expense during the year totaled $12,219,398. No interest was capitalized this year.

J - Restrictive Covenants

The revenue bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictioﬁs on annual debt service
requirements, use of the utility system, minimum revenue bond coverages and require that a reserve fund be
established and maintained. The reserve fund requirements have been met by the City through the

purchase of surety bonds in the full amount of the bond requirement. The City is in compliance with all such
significant financial limitations and restrictions at June 30, 2003.
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K- Componeht Unit Debt
Fayetteville Air Cargo Facilities, Inc. has issued industiial revenue bonds which have been used to finance
the construction. of facilities at the City’s airport. The bonds are being retired by repayments of a note

receivable which was issued for the same amount as the bonds. Revenue bonds outstanding for the year
ended June 30, 2003, are as follows:

$1,200,000 1985 Industrial Revenue Bonds due in various
monthly instaliments through September 1, 2007, interest at
75% of the purchaser’s prime rate but no lower than 7.5%. 3 248,637

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for this outstanding debt:

Year
Ended Principal Interest
T 2004 3 58,404 § 16,525
2005 58,404 12,145
2006 58,404 : 7,765
2007 58,404 3,384
2008 14,921 161

$ 248,537 3 39,880

L - Subsequent Events — Bond Issuance

During September and October 2003, the City issued Public Utility Revenue Bonds. The $55,150,000
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A were issued September 11, 2003. The $30,0865,000 Revenue
Bonds 2003B were issued Qciober 2, 2003. The bonds were issued to refund existing bonds and to fund
additional capital projects in the Public Utility System.

Additionally, General Obligation Bonds were issued in October 2003. The $2,000,000 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003, were issued to refund $8,585,000 of the ouistanding Refunding Bonds,
Series 1993, which are associated with General, Electric, and Water and Wastewater funds. [n addition, the
Electric and Water and Wastewater funds will use $10,615,000 from available system revenues to call the
balance of the outstanding bonds.

Note 7- Defeasance of Debt

On December 18, 2002, the City issued $9,160,000 in General Obligation Bonds, of which $5,535,000 was
Refunding Bonds. These Refunding Bonds, with an average interest rate of 3.54%, were issued to currently
refund $1,300,000 of outstanding 1991 Public Improvement Bonds and advance refund $3,750,000 of a
portion of the outstanding 1994 General Obligation Public Improvement Bonds with a combined average
interest rate of 6.25%. Both series were net of outstanding accrued interest payable of $0. Of the net
proceeds, $4,169,210 ($5,535,000 plus premium of 8,741 minus payment of issuance and other related
costs of $74,531 and $1,300,000 for the current refunding) was used to purchase U.S. government
securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all
future debt service payments on a portion of the 1994 Series bonds. As a result, the 1991 and a portion of
the 1994 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the
governmental funds.
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Note 7- Defeasance of Debt (continued)

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt of $419,210. This difference net of the current year's amortization of $21,843, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction from general obligation bonds, is being charged to
operations through the year 2015 using the straighi-line method, which approximates the effective interest
method. The City completed the advance and current refundings to reduce its total debt service payments
over the next 13 years by $378,364 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values
of the old and new debt service payments) of $362,480.

On January 22, 2003, the City issued $78,280,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds with an average interest
rate of 3.42% (after the execution of a fixed rate swap) to advance refund $61,977,543 ($62,660,000, net of
unamortized bond issue costs of ($1,582,051) and outstanding accrued interest payable of $899,594) of
outstanding 1995 Series A, 1997 and 1999 Revenue Bonds with a combined average interest rate of 5.26%.
The net proceeds of $69,639,162 ($78,280,000 minus payment of issuance and other related costs of
$872.948 and a cash reserve of 7,767,880) were used to purchase U.S. government securities. Those
securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments on the 1995 Series A, 1997 and 1999 bonds. As a result, the 1995 Series A, 1997 and 1999
bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the electric
and water and wastewater funds.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt of $7,661,619. This difference net of the current year's amortization of $151,415, reported in
the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from revenue bonds, is being charged to operations
through the year 2024 using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. The
City completed the advance refunding to reduce its fotal debt service payments over the next 22 years by
$5,476,383 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and new debt
service payments) of $3,925,266.

In prior years, the City has defeased various bond issues by creating separate irrevocable trust funds. New
debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase U.S. government securities that were
placed in trust funds. The investments and fixed eamnings from the investments are sufficient to fully service
the defeased debt untit the debt is called or matures. For financial reporting purposes, the debt has been
considered defeased and therefore removed as a liability from the City's non-current liabilities. As of June
30, 2003, the amount of defeased debt outstanding but removed from the non-current liabifities of the City
amounted to $897,346.

Gains and losses from debt refundings must be deferred and amortized over the lesser of the original
remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt. In addition, gains or losses related to debt
refundings are to be used in determining the carrying value of the new debt issued to finance debt
refundings. The carrying value of the 1993 Revenue Refunding Bonds and the 2001 Revenue Refunding
Electric/Water and Wastewater Bonds have been adjusted for the loss from defeasance (net of amortization)
. of $5,667,079 in 2003 combined with the carrying vaiue of $7,510,204 related to the 2003 Variable Rate
Revenue Refunding Electric/Water and Sewer Bonds, which results in a total loss on defeasance of
$13,177,283.
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The balance in deferred revenue on the fund statements and unearned revenues on the government-
wide statements at year-end is composed of the following elements:

Deferred Unearned

Revenue Revenue
Prepaid licenses and fees not yet earmned (General) $ 473,869 $ 473,869
Prepaid retiree insurance premiums (Internal Service) 289 - : 289
Unearned rent (General) 360 360
Unearned rent (Proprietary) ' 56,060 56,060
Unearned grant receipts (Special Revenue) 280,386 290,386
Unearned grant receipts {Capital Projects) 1,450 1,450
Taxes receivable, net (General) 3,299,864 -
Taxes receivable, net (Special Revenue) 117,856 -
Accounts and notes receivable (General) 1,644,744 -
Accounts and notes receivable {Special Revenue) 4,633,923 -
Special assessments receivable, net (General) . 603,117 -
Special assessments receivable, net (Special Revenue) 8,261 -
Total $ 11,030,179 § 822414

Note 9 - Risk Management

The City is self-insured (self-funded) with respect o insurance claims as follows: health insurance (up to
$100,000 per employee and approximately $5,468,776 for all employees for the policy ending December 31,
2002), general liability (up to $500,0000 per occurrence), workers’ compensation ($400,000 per occurrence),
public officials liability (up to $500,000 per occurrence), law enforcement liability ($500,000 per occurrence),
and automobile liability {up to $500,000 per occurrence). Property insurance on city buildings is insured to
replacement value (less $100,000 seli-funded retention). The health insurance plan's excess coverage
allows expenditures by the City up to 125% of expected claims adjusted for industry standard trend
adjustments, and for expenditures by the City of up to $100,000 per employee. Losses from asserted
claims and from unasserted claims identified under the City's incident reporting system are accrued based
on estimates that incorporate the City's past experience, as well as other considerations including the nature
of each claim and relevant trend factors.

The City carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. Claims have not exceeded coverage in any
of the last three fiscal years.

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds are self-insured with respect to workers' compensation, and
self-insured with respect to health insurance claims (up to approximately $2,000,000). In addition, these
funds are self-insured with respect to certain policy deductibie amounts as follows: public officials liability (up
to $50,000 per occurrence) and property ($250,000 per occurrence). In addition, the Electric and Water and
Wastewater Funds maintain excess liability insurance ($1,000,000) to cover catastrophic losses. These
funds maintain an investment account amounting to $3,500,000 to cover possible worker's compensation
claims. This investment is classified under restricted assets in the financial statements. No accrual for
possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred but that have not been identified under the
incident reporting system has been made because the amount cannot be reasonably estimated. Further, a
liability for outstanding claims at June 30, 2003, is not accrued as the amount of outstanding claims is not
material to the financial statements. Professional insurance consultants have been retained 10 assist the
Electric and Water and Wastewaier Funds with determining all accruals.
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Note 9 - Risk Management (continued)

The Electric and Water and Wastewater Funds carry commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage since the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded.coverage in any of the last three fiscai years.

An analysis of claims activily for the City and the Electric and Water andr Wastewater Funds is presented
below. :

2003 2002
Liability at June 30, $ 4361852 $ 3961620
Current year claims and changes
in estimates 11,373,647 11,223,529
Actual claim payments (11,353,015) (10,823.297)
Liability at June 30, : § 4382484 $ 4361852

Note 10 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected,
may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial. No provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of
grant money.

The City is a defendant in various fawsuits. Aithough the outcome of these proceedings is not presently
determinable, it is the opinion of management that the resotution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

The City is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. While it is not
possible to quantify with certainty the potential impact of actions regarding environmental matters,
particularly any future remediation and other compliance efforts, in the opinion of management, compliance
with the present environmental protection laws will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cash fiows of the City.

The City's bond issues are subject to Federal arbitrage reguiations, and the City has elected to review its
potential arbitrage liability annually on the bond issue dates. The arbitrage rebate payments are payable on
the fifth anniversary of the bond issue date and every fifth year subsequent to that date. Although the actual
amount to be paid is not presently determinable, the City believes that an adequate provision for arbitrage
payables has been provided for in the accompanying financial statements.

The City has authorized expenditures totaling approximately $72,010,255 for capital additions and
construction of various electric, water and wastewater projects. At June 30, 2003, cumulative expenditures
to date totaled approximately $37,770,813 leaving an unexpended balance of $34,239,442 for projects that
are expected to be completed at various dates through the year ended 2004.
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Note 10 - Commitments and Contingent Liabilities {continued)

The Electric Fund purchased most of its fiscal year 2003 annual energy requirements under its 1994 Power
Supply and Coordination Agreement (1994 PSCA”) with Progress Energy Carolinas, Inc. {(*PEC") (formerly
Carolina Power and Light company) and less than 1% from Southeastern Power Administration. In March
1994, the City entered into the 1994 PSCA with PEC for an initial term of 10 years, effective on July 1, 1594,
for the purchase of electric power and energy. The City is required to purchase power and energy from PEC
in amounts required to serve the City’s load (but in no event less than specified minimums ranging from 152
mW per month o 160 mW per month over the term of the contract) at rates specified in the contract. * All
remaining power and energy was suppiied by PEC under two other sources. Replacement capacity and
energy up to 229 mW is supplied in the interest of mutual cost savings. In the interest of mutual cost
savings, PEC may have supplied the necessary power and energy to the City by running its own generation
plant, or when the City is experiencing lower fuel costs, PEC may instead run the City's plant and divided the
cost savings. In return, PEC reimbursed the City for various costs of running the plant. All other power
needs were supplied by a supplemental power arrangement with PEC. ’

“This contract extends automatically for five additional years after the initial term, unless written notice of
termination is provided by either party at least five years before the expiration of the initial term. During the
year ended June 30, 1999, the City notified CP&L in writing that the contract will expire at the end of the
initial term and will not be automatically extended for an additional five years.

In 2002, the City entered into a new purchased power arrangement with PEC. Starting in July 2003, the City
is committed to purchasing 279 mW and increasing to 301 mW in July 2008 until the end of the contract in
June 2012. The remaining capacity and energy will either be produced at the Butler-Warner Generaiion
Plant or bought on the open market. The lowest available price will be used to meet the City’'s needs. When
the market price goes above the price at the Butler-Warner Generation Plant, the City may permit the
marketing of its capacity and energy for sale to the open market.

During the year ended June 30, 2003, the net purchased power costs paid to PEC was $88,156,736.

The City leases a portion of the office space located in the Robert C. Williams Business Center at Lafayeite
Plaza. These lease agreements provide for minimurn rental and have terms of 5, 7 and 10 years and are
due fo expire at various dates from 2006 to 2011. Minimum !ease provisions now in force will result in rental
income for future years as follows:

Year ending June 30 Rent
2004 $ 197,045
2005 182,221
2006 196,014
2007 214,044
2008 208,308
Future years 659,673
Total _ $1,667.305
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
June 30, 2003
Note 11 - On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the City has recognized on-behalf payments for pension
contributions made by the State as a revenue and an expenditure of $20,292 for the 114 employed firemen
who perform firefighting duties for the City's fire department. These employees elected to be members of
the Firemen's and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public
employee retirement system established and administered by the State of North Carolina. The plan is
funded by a monthly contribution paid by each member, investment income, and a State appropriation.

Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems

The City has maintained two single-employer, defined benefit pension plans {(Public Works Commission -
Retirement System -and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance System), which cover
the utilities employees and law enforcement officers of the City. In addition, the City continues to participate
in the statewide local governmental retirement system, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing public employee
pension plan which covers substantially ali employees.

Effective April 1, 2003, the City transferred the assets of the Employee’s Retirement Plan of the Public
Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina ("ERP plan”), a single-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Public Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees
into two other retirement plans: The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System plan ("LGERS") (a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by the State of North Carolina which other
City departments have been participating in) and a new plan, the Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan
of the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville (“SERP plan”) (a single-employer defined benefit
plan administered by the Public Works Commission Empioyees’” Retirement Plan Board of Trustees). Afthe
date of transition, approximately $49.7 million of the plan assets were transferred to the LGERS pian and $4
million of the plan assets were transferred to the SERP plan.

A - Public Works Commission Retirement System
Plan Description

As noted above, the assets of this plan were transferred to the LGERS and SERP plans on April 1, 2003.
The following describes the plan as it existed up to the transition date of Aprit 1, 2003.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
was a single-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Works Commission
Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. All full-time Electric and Water and Wastewater fund
employees were required to participate in the plan. Benefits vested after five years of credited service.
Commission employees reaching the defined retirement age were entitied to an annual retirement benefit,
payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.8% of their final average compensation times years of
credited service. The Employees’ Retirement Plan provided retirement benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments were provided to members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the
Public Works Commission. The City of Fayetteville City Council had the authority to establish and amend
the retirement pian provisions. The Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City
of Fayetteville did not issue a separate report. Rather, the plan is reported in the City’s report as a pension
trust fund.

At June 30, 2003, the Plan’s membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits
Current employees

Tofal
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June 30, 2003
Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
A - Public Works Commission Retirement System (continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis ‘of accounting: Financial statements for the Plan are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the Commission has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plan.

Methqd Used to Value Investmenis: Investments are reported at market value.
Contributions

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission were established and
could be amended by the City of Fayettevilie City Council. Plan members were required to contribute 5.5%
of their annual covered salary. The Public Works Commission was required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. The rate for the final plan year ended March 31, 2003, was 7.55% of annual covered
payroll,

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the July 1, 2002, actuarial
valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actual assumptions included (a) 7.5% invesiment
rate of return {net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5% per year to
retirement age. Both (a) and {b) included an inflation component of 3%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases which are funded by the Public Works Commission’s appropriations when
granted. The actuarial value of assets was determined by using the market value at March 31, 2003. The
Commission uses the aggregate actuarial cost method which does not identify or separately amortize the
unfounded actuarial liability; however, the Schedule of Funding Progress for the Plan included in the
Required Supplementary information portion of these financial statements, is provided for informational
purposes. The Public Works Commission’s prepaid pension benefit, which is included in other assets on the
accompanying balance sheet, in the current year was as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 1,518,506
Interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual pension cost 1,518,506

Contributions made {(1,036,910)
Decrease in prepaid pension benefit 481,596
- Prepaid pension benefit beginning of year {3,196,277)
Prepaid pension benefit — March 31, 2003 {2,714,681)

Transferred to Supplemental Employees’
Retirement Plan 2,714,681
Prepaid pension benefit end of year $ -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

June 30, 2003

Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
A - Public Works Commission Retirement System (continued)
‘Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

Thrée-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net

-~ Year Pension . of APC Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed QObligation
2001 $ - N/A $ (3,453,544)
2002 941,329 72.66% (3,198,277)
2003 1,518,506 68.28% (2,714,681)*

** Prepaid Pension Benefit was transferred to the Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan.

“This benefit plan was a contributory, defined benefit retirement plan, which covered alt full-time employees of
the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds.

B - Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description

As noted above, the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds began participating in this plan during the
2003 fiscai year. The City contributes to the statewide Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
(LGERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North
Carolina. LGERS provides retirement and disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Article 3 of
G. S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controlter; 1410 Mail Service Center; Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410 or
by calling {919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute six percent of their annual covered salary. The City is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the City, exclusive of the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds, the current rate for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement
officers is 4.93% and 4.78%, respectively, of annual covered payroll. The rate for the Electric and Water and
Wastewater funds is 10.03%. The contribution requirements of members and of the City are established and
may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly. The City’s contributions to L GERS for all
employees, including law enforcement officers and Electric and Water and Wastewater funds, for the years
ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $2,517,077, $1,889,545 and $1,884,402, respectively. The
contributions made by the City equaled the reguired contributions for each year. _
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June 30, 2003

Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

C - Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina

The Supplemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public Works Commission of the City of Fayetteville,
North Carolina (“SERP pian”) is a singie-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public
Works Commission Employees’ Retirement Plan Board of Trustees. This plan was established on April 1,
2003 to equalize benefits received under the LGERS plan to those formerly participating in the ERP plan.

The only employees eligible to participate in the SERP plan are those who met the requirements of the ERP
plan. Effective, April 1, 2003 no additional employees will enter this plan. Benefits vest after five years of
credited service. Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employees reaching the defined retirement age
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1.8% of their final
average compensation times years of credited service. The SERP plan provides retirement benefits to plan
members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the
discretion of the Public Works Commission. All benefit payments by the SERP plan will be offset by the
benefits payable from the LGERS plan. The City of Fayetteville City Council has the authority to establish
and amend the retirement plan provisions. The SERP plan does not issue a separate report. Rather, the
financial report of the SERP plan is included as a pension trust fund.

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Public Works Commission are established and
may be amended by the City of Fayetteville City Council. There will be no employee confributions after April
1, 2003. The Public Works Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The
rate for the year ended June 30, 2003 was 0% of annual covered payroll.

As this is the first year of the SERP plan, there is no annual required contribution as of June 30, 2003.

The annual required contribution calculation for June 30, 2004 was determined as part of the July 1, 2003,
actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included {a) 2%
investment rate of refurn (net of administrative expenses) until July 1, 2008 and 5% thereafter and (b)
projected salary increases of 4% per year io retirement age. Both (a) and (b) included an inftation component
of 3%. The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases, which are funded by the
Commission’s appropriations when granted.

The actuaral value of assets was determined by using the market value at June 30, 2003. The
Commission’s prepaid pension benefit, which is included in other assets on the accompanying balance
sheet, for the current year was as follows:

Annual required contribution $ -
interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution - -
Annual pension cost -
Contributions made -
Change in prepaid pension benefit -
Prepaid pension benefit transferred from ERP plan (2,714,681)

Prepaid pension benefit end of year $ (2,714,681)
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June 30, 2003

Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

c= Sup'plemental Employees’ Retirement Plan of the Public’ Works Commission of the City of
Fayetteville, North Carolina (continued) :

As this is the first year of the SERP plan and there was no annual required contribution for the current year
under this plan, the trend information has been omitted from these statements.

This benefit plan is a contributory, defined' benefit retirement plan, which covers all employees who
participated in the ERP plan at April 1, 2003. The 2003 payroll for the Electric and Water and Wastewater
funds amounted to $22,312,597 and included $22,111,443 of salaries for employees covéred by the plan.

D - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Pian Description

The City administers a public employee retirement system (the “Separation Allowance™), a single-employer,
defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the City's qualified sworn law enforcement
officers. The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of
compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be authorized by the
General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit
provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Separation Allowance s reported in the City's
report as a pension trust fund. All full-time City law enforcement officers are covered by the Separation
Affowance.

At December 31, 2002, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of:

Retirees receiving benefits 17
Active plan members 292
Total 309

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting: Financial statements for the Separation Allowance are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting. Employer contributions to the plan are recognized when due and when the City has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used fo Value Investments: Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term debt, deposits, and
the North Carolina Capital Management Trust Investments are reported at cost or amortized cost, which
approximates fair value. Certain longer term United States Government and United States Agency securities
are valued at the last reported sales price.

Contributions

The City is required by Article 12D of G. 8. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making contributions based on actuarial
valuations. For the current year, the City contributed $311,091, or 2.6% of annual covered payroll. There
were no contributions made by employees. The City’s obligation to contribute to this plan is established and
may be amended by the North Carofina General Assembly.
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Note 12 - Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
D - Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance (continued)
Contributions (continued)
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 2001
actuarial valuation using the projected unit cost credit method. ~ The actuarial assumptions included (a)
7.25% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 5.9% -
9.8% per year. Both (a) and (b} included an inflation component of 3.75%. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of assets was market value. The unfunded actuarial
accrued liability is being amortized as a level percent of pay closed basis. The remaining amortization period
at December 31, 2001 was 20 years.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year
were as follows: '

Annual required contribution $ 286,336
Interest on net pension obligation {18.,469)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 13,684
Annual pension cost 281,551
Contributions made : 311,091
Increase (decrease} in net pension obligation (29,540)
Net pension obligation beginning of year (254,741)
Net pension obligation end of year $ (284.281)
Three-Year Trend Information
Annual Percentage
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Net Pension

Ending Cost {APC) Contributed Obligation

2001 $ 149,516 110.93 $(237.672)

2002 255,072 106.69 {254,741}

2003 281,551 110.49 (284,281)

E - Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description

The City contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan {the "Plan”), a defined contribution
pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to jaw enforcement officers employed by the City and also those non-law
employees who choose to make their own contributions. Article 5 of G. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority
to establish and amend benefit provisions for the law enforcement officers to the North Carolina General
Assembly.

Funding Policy

Articte 12E of G. S. Chapter 143 requires the City to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent
of each law enforcement officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. The City does
not make any contributions for non-law employees. All employees may make voluntary contributions to the
Plan. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2003, were $1,476,309, which consisted of $628,106 from
the City and $848,203 from employees.
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Note 12 . Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
F - Defined Contribution Plan and Trust

The Electric and Water and Wastewater funds participate in a Defined Contribution Plan and Trust (Plan),
administered by the Advisory Committee appointed by the City. This Plan became effective July 1, 1999.
Plan provisions are established or amended by City of Fayetteville City Council resolution. The Electric and
Water and Wastewater funds’ employees are not allowed to contribute to this Plan. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003 actual contributions by the City were $44,435. The City currently contributes 0% (5.5% in
2002) of gross pay of each Electric and Water and Wastewater fund employee to the Defined Contribution
Plan or Trust. This funding rate is subject to City Council approval. At June 30, 2003, the Plan included 530
participants. Participants vest at service inception and are entitled to 160% of vested contributions. The
Plan is a profit sharing plan qualified under section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. '

G - Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund
Plan Description

The State of North Carolina contributes, on behalf of the City of Fayetteville, to the Firemen’s and Rescue
Squad Workers’ Pension Fund (Fund), a cost—sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a
special funding situation administered by the State of North Carolina. The Fund provides pension benefits
for eligible fire and rescue squad workers that have elected to become members of the Fund. Article 86 of
G.S. Chapter 58 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina
General Assembly. The Firemen’s and Rescue Squad Workers’ Pension Fund is included in the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Fund. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410,
or by cafling (819) 981-5454.

Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute $10 per month to the Fund. The State, a nonemployer confributor,
funds the plan through appropriations. The City does not contribute to the Fund. Contribution requirements
of plan members and the Siate of North Carolina are established and may be amended Dy the North
Carolina General Assembly.

Note 13 — Post Employment Benefits

in addition to providing pension benefits, the City has elected to provide health care benefits to retirees of the
City who participate in the North Carolina t.ocal Governmental Employees' Retirement System (System) and
have at least ten years of creditable service with the City. The City pays the full cost of coverage for these
benefits. Also, retirees can purchase coverage for their dependents at the City's group rates, as long as the
dependent had been covered at least 5 years prior to employee's retirement. Currently, 117 retirees are
eligible for post-retirement health benefits. and are eligible until each employee reaches the eligible age for
Medicare. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the City made payments for post-retirement health
benefit premiums of $1,312,418.

The City has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for Members of
the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a multiple-employer State
administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The beneficiaries of those employees
who die in active service after one year of contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180
days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service
in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits.
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Note 13 — Pﬁst Empioyment Benefits (continued)

Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months salary in
a row during the 24 months prior fo the employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $20,000. All death
benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan. The City has no liability beyond the payment of
monthly contributions. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll, based upon rates
established annually by the State. Because the benefit payments are made by the Death Benefit Plan and
not by the City, the City does not determine the number of eligible participants. Separate rates are set for
employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2003, the City made contributions to the State for death benefits of $52,813. The City's required
contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers represented
13 percent and .14 percent of covered payroll, respectively. The contributions to the Death Benefit Plan
cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount.

Also, the City has elected to provide death benefits io retirees of the City who participate in the North
Carolina Local Governmental Employees' Refirement System and have at least ten years of creditable
service with the City. After the required 180 days following retirement, the City pays the full cost of coverage
for the retiree. -

The City offers a death benefit equal to $100 for every year of service with the City, up to a maximum of
$3,000. Currently, 302 retirees are eligible for post-retirement death benefits. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003, the City made payments for post-retirement death benefits premiums of $23,001.

In addition to the pension benefifs described in Note 11, the Electric and Water and Wastewater funds
(Public Works Commission) provide post employment benefit options for health care and dental insurance to
eligible retirees and their dependents up through the age of 65. A liability for this obligation is not accrued at
June 30, 2003, as the amount is not material to the financial statements. As of June 30, 2003, 51 retirees
meet the eligibility requirements. Expenses for post employment healthcare benefits are recognized as
retirees report claims and include a provision for estimated claims incurred but not yet reported to the
Commission. For the year ended June 30, 2003, expenses of approximately $325,561 were recognized for
post employment heaithcare.

Note 14 — Inferfund Balances and Activity
Balances Due to/from Other Funds

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2003, consist of the following:

Due to the General Fund from the Airport Fund {loan for capital construction) $ 423,798
Due to the Electric Fund from the Bond Improvement Fund (general government

share of expenses for extending services to recently annexed areas) 369,229

$ 793,027
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Note 14 — Interfund Balances and Activity (continued)
Transfers to/ffrom Other Funds
Transfers to/ffrom other funds at June 30, 2003, consist of the following:

From the General Fund to the Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

for the:local match to various grants $ 278,884
From the General Fund to the Finance Corp Fund for debt service 1,529,229
From the General Fund to the Recreational.and Cultural Fund

for capital construction 109,400
From the General Fund io the Transportation Fund for capitat construction 2,633,857
From the Transportation Fund to the Bond Improvement Fund

for capital construction : 500,000
From the General Fund to the Economic and Physical

Development Fund 170,408
From the General Fund to the Transit Fund for operations and

capital acquisition ' 1,355,726
From the General Fund to the Risk Management Fund for a

one-time insurance premium 329,592
From the Electric Fund to the General Fund for operations . 8,867,130
From the Water and Wastewater Fund to the General Fund for operations 590,787

S 16,165,013

Note 15 — Subsequent Events

Other subsequent events include a Resolution of Intent to annex, a sales tax agreement with Cumbertand
County, and acquisition of land for the Fayetteville Regional Airport.

The Resoiution of Intent to Annex, adopted September 8, 2003, is the first step in annexation of areas with
an estimated population exceeding 43,000. If approved, the annexation could occur as early as June 30,
2004,

In October 2003, the Gity Council approved 2 sales tax agreement with Cumberiand County, and any other
municipalities that will be a party to the agreement, to reimburse each party 50% of its sales tax loss
resulting from annexations occurring on or after July 1, 2003. In addition, the City of Fayetteville will
reimburse Cumberland County $2.1 million in fiscal year 2005 and a relative percentage of sales tax in fiscal
years 2006 and 2007. The agreement has a nine-year term, with opportunities to modify or terminate the
agreement at the end of each three-year period.

in October 2003, the City used $1,065,000 of federal grant funds to acquire land for future expansion at the
airport.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded "Covered % of Covered
Valuation Asseis Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroll
Date {a) {h} (b-a) {a/b) {c) {{b-a)ic)
12131187 .$ 893619 & 1,241,152 $ 347,533 7200% $ 8,419,011 4.13%
12/31/98 878,608 1,337,500 458,892 £85.69% 9,011,331 5.09%
12/31/99 958,824 1,435,311 476,487 66.80% 9,968,890 4.78%
12/31/00 * 1,228,812 2,728,524 1,499,712 45.04% 10,581,205 14.17%
12/31/01 1,382,479 3,074,210 1,691,731 44 .97% 11,197,858 15.11%
12/31/02 1,491,686 3,356,167 1,864,501 44.45% 11,941,930 15.81%

* For the Dacember 31, 2000, valuation date, several actuarial assumptions were revised. These revisions were
due to an experience investigation prepared as of December 31, 1999, for the North Carolina Local Government
Retirement System. Projected salary increases were increased from a rate of 4.4%-8.5% to a range of 5.9%-9.8%.
The remaining amortization period was also increased from 20 to 30 years. These changes in assumptions caused
an increase in the cost of the Separation Allowance for Law Enforcement Gfficers.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance
Required Suplementary Information

Schadule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed
1994 $ 80,583 187.57%
1995 80,084 160.83%
19896 87.240 212.25%
1997 106,748 . 125.18%
1998 107,318 115.48%
1999 111,500 128.32%
2000 127,606 119.29%
2001 145,228 114.21%
2002 259,788 104.76%
2003 286,336 108.65%

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date December 31, 2002
Actuarial cost method Prejected Unit Credit
Amoaortization method Level percent of pay closed
Remaining ameortization period . 28 years

Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

investment rate return® 7.25%
Projected salary increases” 5.9% - 9.8%
* Includes inflation at 3.75%
Cost-of-living adjustments N/A
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

- Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability {AAL) Unfunded UAALas a

Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered

Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroli Payroli

Date {a} (b) : (b-a) {a/b} {c) ({(b-a)/c}
8/30/98 $51,215897 3 50,317,374  § (898,523} 101.79% $ 18,165,064 (4.95%)
6/30/99 57,855,331 55,628,833 (2,226,498) 104.00% 18,872,399 {11.80%)
6/30/00 63,620,358 62,479,563 (1,140,795} 101.83% 19,750,220 {5.78%)
7/01/01 59,186,400 64,924,454 5,738,054 91.16% 19,400,854 29.58%
7/01/02 57,008,791 67,681,200 10,674,409 84.23% 20,099,355 53.11%
3/31/03 53,671,773 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2003 was the final year for this plan.
Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only and assumes the frozen entry

actuarial cost method with a ten-year amortization period. The Commission uses the aggregate
actuarial cost method under which such a schedule is not required.,
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Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Ended Annual Required Percentage

June 30 Conftribution Conftributed
2001 N/A N/A
2002 $ 941,329 72.67%
2003 1,518,506 ** 68.28%

** 2003 was the final year for this plan. As discussed in the notes to the financial statements, assets of
this plan were transferred to two other plans, effective Aprit 1, 2003.

Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date March 31, 2003
Actuarial cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A
Amortization period N/A
Asset valuation method Market value

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return® 7.5%
Projected salary increases® 5.0%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments None
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Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

‘Actuarial Accrued

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded _ UAALasa
Actuarial Value of - Projects Unit AAL Funded Covered % of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
Date {a) {b) {b-a) {a/b) {c) {{b-a)ic)
7/01/03 $ 3,990,343 N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A

Note that this schedule is provided for informational purposes only. The Commission uses the aggregate
actuarial cost method under which such a schedule is not required. Additionally, this is the first year

of this plan.
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Supplemental Public Works Commission Retirement System
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Year Endéd Annuat Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution ' : Contributed

As this is the first year of the plan, there is no annual required contribution as of June 30, 2003.
Notes to the Required Schedules:

The information presented in the required supplementary schedule was determined as part of the actuarial
valuation at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date July 1, 2003
Actﬁarial cost method Aggregate
Amortization method N/A
Amortization peried N/A

Asset valuation method
Actuarial assumptions:

investment rate of return™

Market value

2% until 7/1/08; 5% thereafter

Projected salary increases”™ 4.0%
* Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-living adjustments None
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SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

COMBEINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

These statements/schedules provide a more detailed view of the "Basic
Financial Statements” as presented in the preceding subsection.

Combining Statements are presented where there is mare than one fund
of a given type. Individual fund statements are presented if only one
fund exists in a given fund type.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

ek

Special Revenue Funds

ek

Capital Project Funds

The focus of Governmental Fund measurement is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resourcas) rather than upon net incoms
determination.




GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the principal fund of the City and is used to account
for the receipt and expenditure of rescurces that are traditionally
associated with Jocal governments and that are not required to be
accounted for in another fund.

Resources are provided primarily through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues and transfers, and -are expended for services deemed not
susceptible to a user charge financing method.

The Fund is accounted for on the modified accrual basis of accounting.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Comparative Balénce Sheets
General Fund

June 30, 2003 and 2002
ASSETS 2003 2002
Cash and investmenis $ 25,889,566 24 139,154
Taxes receivable 3,299,863 2,911,754
Accounts receivable 7,430,142 10,806,163
Interfund receivable 423,798 447,229
Assessments receivable 472 269 409,131 -
inventories 81,256 81,347
Total assets $ 38,606,894 38,804,778
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,289,852 3,627,240
Unearned deposiis 39,310 36,010
Deferred revenues 6,021,954 9,540,332
‘Total liabilities 9,351,116 13,203,582
Fund balances
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State staiute 6,078,348 5,566,920
For encumbrances 734,253 545,287 -
For inventories 81,256 81,347
For downtown 283,445 259,669
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 1,673,126 1,713,945
For special purpose 4,000,994 4.553,122
For debt service 1,221,357 1,228,078
Undesignated 15,182,999 11,741,828
Total fund balances 29 255,778 25,691,196
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 38,606,884 38,884,778
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Batances
Budget and Actual - Goneral Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
With Gomparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
- Positive 2003 2002
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Ad valorem taxes ) )
Current vear 32,613,053 $ (90,680) 32,522,373 32,130,662
Prior year 973,350 16,355 989,705 819,078
Penalties 200,200 8,035 208,235 185,075
Total ad vatorem taxes 33,786,603 (66,290) 33,720,313 33,134,815
Other taxes
Local option sales tax 16,568,284 307,863 16,876,147 15,273,911
Litifity franchise tax 4,414,763 824,600 5,239,363 3,033,407
Intangible tax reimbursement - - - 580,752
Tax reimbursements - - - 441,392
Vehicle license tax 397,668 10,348 408,016 401,327
Privilege license 711,400 (19,539) 691,861 691,231
Cablevision franchise tax 1,104,432 144,967 1,249,399 1,103,721
Vehicle gross receipt 271,880 30,795 302,685 299,598
Total other taxes 23,468,437 1,299,034 24,767,471 21,825,339
Intergovernmental
Federal - 31,903 31,903 105,775
State 4,299,727 5,479 4,305,208 4,122,361
Local 474,484 72,765 547,249 456,522
Total intergovernmental 4,774,211 110,147 4,884,358 4,684,658
Other functional
Permits and fees 1,082,856 126,364 1,209,220 1,011,094
Property leases 323,320 {62,634) 260,686 247,654
Engineering services 690,453 37,024 727,477 750,866
Planning services 20,080 3,453 23,503 22,988
Public safety services 685,917 {121,594) 564,323 408,142
Environmental services 58,840 (14,353} 44,487 71,089
Recreation and cultural services 436,491 39,472 475,963 484,835
Parking revenues 50,015 12,672 62,687 67,227
Other fees and services 97,450 29,004 126,454 61,152
Total other functional 3,445,392 49,408 . 3,484,800 3,124,847
Miscellaneocus
Refunds and sundry 112,231 61,850 174,781 ‘603,062
indirect cost allocation 825,992 {111,430} 714,562 808,419
Special use assessment 88,780 {1,854) 86,928 142,086
Sale of assets 185,643 3,876 189,519 102,197
Total miscellaneous 1,213,346 ) (47,558) 1,165,788 1,655,764
interest earned on investments 835,899 31,392 867,21 1,218,402
Total revenues 67,523,388 1,376,133 68;900,021 65,643,825
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GITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA -

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance - :
Positive . 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures
Current
Administration
Legislative
Personnel $ 288,433 Lt 2,148 % 286,287 $ 284,622
QOperating 202,429 21,695 180,734 253,018
Payments {o agencies - {25} 25 -
- 490,862 23,816 467,046 537,640
City attorney.
Persannel 324,049 7,310 316,739 239,462
Operating 385,089 27,939 357,150 398,563
709,138 35,249 673,889 638,025
Executive
Personnel ) 584,684 25,423 559,261 649,609
Operating 328,710 220,895 107,815 149,137
913,394 246,318 667,076 798,746
Support services
Personnel 1,010,236 63,316 946,920 949,347
Operating 783,994 306,002 477,992 494,260 -
Assets 45,000 21,200 23,800 20,419
‘nventory 139,615 16,937 122,678 127,431
Cost redistribution (178,845} {23,349) {155,496} {168,303)
1,800,000 384,108 1,415,894 1,423,154
Human relations
Personnel 207,045 (448) 207,493 193,189
Operating 50,974 ’ 21,683 29,291 . 34,556
Payments to agencies 500 500 - -
258,519 21,735 238,784 227,745
Finance )
Personnel 854,895 56,245 898,650 946,402
Operating 745,105 32,970 712,135 877.680
1,700,000 89,215 1,610,785 1,624,082
General government
Personnel 10,000 (724) 10,724 2,043
Operating 1,461,163 641,524 819,639 837,078
Assets 94,102 94,102 - -
Inventory 687,276 51.582 635,694 510,359
Cost redistribution (750,516) (45,841) (704,675} (576,328)
Payments {o agencies 543,287 122,578 420,709 508,609
2,045,312 863,221 1,182,091 1,282,761
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance )
Positive . 2003 2002
Budget : {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current (continued)
Administration {continued)
Public buildings
Personne] 3 831,851 $ 48,376 $ 782,475 3 845,592
QOperaling 822,179 174,267 647,912 855,669
Assets 60,598 3,315 57,283 5,033
1,714,628 228,958 1,487,670 1,506,294
Project management
Personnel 299,843 50,230 249,613 247,408
Operating 19,922 5,730 14,192 14,235
318,765 55,960 283,805 261,643
Total administration 9,851,618 1,946,578 8,005,040 8,300,090
Public safety
Police
Personnel 20,326,586 58,000 20,268,596 19,363,999
Operating 2,756,286 192,193 2,564,093 2,609,586
Assets 1,000,386 18,096 082,290 423,204
Payments to agencies 3,000 - 3,060 3,000
Cost redistribution {18,289} 12,840 {31,828) {29,970)
24,067,279 281,129 23,786,150 22 369,819
Fire
Personnel 11,837,482 164,923 11,672,539 11,226,196
Operating 1,562,582 177,767 1,384,815 1,379,846
Assets 347,786 281,462 66,324 277,345
Cost redisiribution (87,083) 1,805 (88,698) (87,887}
: 13,660,737 625,757 13,034,980 12,795,500
Inspections
Personnel 1,580,492 143,904 1,436,588 1,459,344
Operating 295,013 25,853 269,160 218,584
1,875,505 169,757 1,705,748 1,678,928
Total public safety 39,603,521 1,076,643 38,526,878 36,844,247
Environmental protection
Solid waste
Personnel 2,362,524 62,505 2,300,012 2,387,852
Operating 2,483,693 208,867 2,274,826 2,115,626
Assets 672,429 647,929 24,500 40
Cost redistribution {52,500) 75,352 (127,852) (58,352)
5,466,146 994,653 4,471,483 4,445,166
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
With Gomparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
) Posifive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Expenditures {continued)
Current (continued)
Environmental protection
{continued)
Cemeteries .
Perscnnel $ 142,521 $ 8,822 $ 133,699 133,970
Operating 14,425 4,634 9,791 13,463
Assets - - - - 16,500
156,946 13,456 143,480 163,933
Total environmental
protection 5,623,082 1,008,108 4.614,983 4,809,009
Transportation
Streets
Personnel 1,822,523 53,493 1,769,030 1,700,711
Operating 2,927,624 289,506 2,638,118 2,924,120
Assets 65,691 36,508 29,183 25,262
Cost redistribution {144,131} 81,515 {225,646} {143,161)
4,671,707 461,022 4,210,685 4,506,932
Engineering .
Personnei 1,085,491 234,539 850,952 1,032,446
Operating 159,765 53,966 105,799 81,848
Assets - - - 9,999
Cost redistribution - 71,091 (71,091) (1,781}
1,245,256 359,596 885,860 1,122,512
Parking
Operaiing 205,264 16,632 188,632 190,278
205,264 16,632 188,832 190,276
Total transporiation 6,122,227 837,250 5,284,977 5,819,720
Economic and physical development
Central business disfrict
Operating 75,000 24,600 51,000 57,402
Community development
Personnel 156,537 6,602 143,845 158,430
Operating 106,425 75,970 30,455 43,608
256,862 82,662 174,300 202,038
Planning and development
Personnel 465,634 77,220 388,414 413,570
Operating 134,516 67,492 67,024 115,253
Payments to agencies 56,977 34,125 22,852 8,944
Cost redistribution - 299 {999) (678}
857,127 179,836 - 477,291 537,089
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARCLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actuat - General Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
With Comparative Actual Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2002

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Expenditures (continued)
Current {continued)
Economic and physical
development {continued)
Total economic and physical
development 3 989,089 $ 286,498 $ 702,591 796,529
Recreation and community facilities
Parks
Personnel 2,362,569 244,150 2,118,419 2,419,216
Operating 1,388,029 336,464 1,051,565 1,125,199
Assets 886,360 . 492,026 394,334 526,065
Cost redistribution (56,681} (3,768} (52,913} {49,327)
4,580,277 1,068,872 3,511,405 4,021,153
Recreation :
Personnel 2,114,963 93,368 2,021,595 2,027,150
Operating 810,317 76.423 733,894 727,053
Assets 22,640 19,061 3,579 5,382
2,947,920 188,852 2,759,068 2,759,585
Total recreation and
cominunity facilities 7,528,197 1,257,724 6,270,473 6,780,738
Debt service 7.797.661 1,779,266 6,018,395 6,306,987
Total expenditures 77.615,405 8,192,068 89,423,337 69,457,410
Revenues over {under)
expendifures (10,091,517} 9,568,201 (523,316) (3,813,585}
Other financing sources {uses}
Approptiated fund balance 4,912,020 (4,912,020} - - -
Transfers in 9,108,070 148,847 9,257,917 8,483,328
Transfers (out} (5,356,217} (1,050,879) {6,407,098) (4,801,624)
Payment to refund bond escrow agent {5,473,441) 4,229 (5,469,212) -
Capital leases, bonds and other debt 6,900,085 {193,796) 6,706,289 785,283
Total other financing
sources (uses) 10,091,517 (6,003,519} 4,087,898 4,466,987
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses) over {under)
expenditures - $ 3,564,582 3,564,582 653,402
fund batance
Beginning of year - July 1 {as previously stated) 30,191,196 29,537,794
Prior period adjustment {4,500,000) {4,500,000)
Beginning of year - July 1 (restated) 25,691,196 25,037,794
End of year - June 30 $ 29,255,778 25,691,186
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2003

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project - Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Assetls
Cash and investments $ 5,216,891 6,236,644 11,453,535
Taxes receivable 117,856 - 117,856
Accounts receivable 4,856,776 480,198 5,336,974
Assessments receivable 6,152 - 6,152
Restricted asset - cash and investmenis . - 4,705,856 4,705,856
Total assets : § 10,197,675 $ 11,422698 $ 21,620,373
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 439,213 572,750 1,011,963
Deferred revenues 4,950,426 1,450 4,951,876
Total liabilities 5,389,639 574,200 5,963,839
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 320,742 478,750 799,492
For encumbrances 1,505,149 4,123,065 5,628,214
For wireless 911 66,208 - 66,208
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 1,184,932 6,246,683 7,431,615
For special purpose 229,330 - 229,330
Undesignaied 1,501,675 - 1,501,675
Total fund balances 4,808,036 10,848,498 15,656,534
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 10,197,675 11,422,698 $ 21,620,373
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, ‘Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
" Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Special Capital Total Nonmajor
Revenue Project Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
Revenues .
Other taxes $ 3083211 % - $ . 3,083211
intergovernmental 3,192,191 407,580 3,699,771
Miscellaneous 324,453 695,543 1,019,996
Interest earned on mvestments 130,447 70,204 200,651
Total revenues C 6,730,302 1,173,327 7,903,629
Expenditures
- Current:
Administration - 200,945 200,945
Public safety -1,908,156 (4,783) 1,803,373
Environmental protection 3,379,044 - 3,379,044
Transportation - 1,846,676 1,846,676
Economic and physical development 2,788,234 3,431,199 6,219,433
Recreation and community facilities - 308,802 308,802
Debt service:
Principal 895,000 : - 895,000
interest and fees 711,035 ' - 711,035
Issue costs ‘ - : 38,248 38,248
Total expenditures 9,681,469 5,821,087 15,502,556
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,951,167) {4,647,760) (7,598,927)
Other financing sources (uses) '
Bonds - 3,644,283 3,644,293
Capital leases - - -
Transfers in 1,808,113 3,413,665 5,221,778
Transfers out - {500,000} {500,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,808,113 8,557,958 8,366,071
Net change in fund balances (1,143,054) 1,910,198 767,144
Fund balance - beginning 5,951,090 8,938,300 14,888,390

Fund balance - ending $ 4808036 % 10,848498 § 15,656,534
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources or to finance specific activities as required by law or
administrative regulation.
The following comprise the-City's Special Revenue Funds:

* Emergency Response Fund

* Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

* Storm Water Management Fund

* Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund

All Special Revenue Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

June 30, 2003
Federal
and State Fayettevilie
_Emergency Financial Storm Water Finance Total Nonmajor
Response Assistance Management Corp Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets .
Cash and investments $ 1,681,457 § 875,477 $ 2,659,957 - % 5,216,891
Taxes receivable : : - - 117,856 - 117,856
Accounts receivable 91,297 4,754,562 - 10,917 - 4,856,776
Assessments receivabie - 6,152 ) - - 6,152
Total assets g 1772754 _§ 5,636,191 $ 2,788,730 - 5 10,197,675
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payabie and accrued expenses % 10,493  $ 125485 §$ 303,235 - % 439,213
Deferred revenues - 4,832,570 117,858 - 4,950,426
Total liabilities : 10,483 4,958,055 421,091 - 5,389,639
Fund balances:
Reserved
By State statute 91,297 218,529 10,916 - 320,742
For encumbrances e 129,573 784,592 590,984 - 1,505,149
For wireless 911 : 66,208 - - - 66,208
Unreserved
Designated
For subsequent years 43,368 - 1,141,564 - 1,184,932
For special purpose . - - 229,330 - 229,330
Undesignated 1,431,815 (324,985} 394,845 - 1,501,675
Total fund balances 1,762,261 678,136 2,367,639 - 4,808,036

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,772,754 % 5636191 $ 2,788,730

$ 10,197,675




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nenmajor Special Revenue Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Federatl

and State Storm Fayetteville
Emergency Financial Water Finance Total Nonmajor
Response Assistance Management Corp Special Revenue
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Other taxes $ 1085952 & - & 2027258 § - 3 3,083,211
Intergovernmental - 3,192,191 - - 3,152,191
Miscellaneous - 324,453 - - 324,453
Interest earnad on invesiments 46,175 - 54,025 247 130,447
Totai revenues 1,102,127 3,516,644 2,111,284 247 6,730,302
Expenditures
Current:
Public safety 990,192 917,564 . - - 1,908,156
Environmental protection - - 3,379,044 - 3,379,044
Ecenomic and physical development oo- 2,784,889 - 3,345 2,788,234
Cebt service: .
Principal : - 60,000 - 835,000 895,000
Interest and fees - 17,618 - 693,517 711,035
Total expenditures 990,152 3,780,371 3,379,044 1,531,862 0,681,469
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 111,935 (263,727) {1,267,760) (1,531,615) {2,95%,167)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in - 278,884 - 1,629,229 1,808,113
Total other financing sources (uses) - 278,884 - 1,529,229 1,808,113
Net change in fund balances 111,935 15,157 (1,267,760} {2,386) (1,143,054)
Fund balance - beginning 1,650,328 662,979 3,635,399 2,386 5,951,080
Fund balance - ending $ 1,762,261 3 678,136 $ 2,367,639 § - & 4,808,036
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Emergency Response Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance .
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes .
Subscribers’ tax $ 898,000 % (18,448) $ 879,552 % 896,241
Wireless 911 funds 127,967 48,433 176,400 146,529
Total other taxes 1,025,967 29,985 1,055,952 1,042,770
Interest earned on investments
Wireless 911 - 689 689 4N
Enhanced 911 58,000 (12,514) 45,486 52,429
Total interest earned on investmenis 58,000 {11,825) 46,175 52,920
‘“Total revenues 1,083,967 18,160 1,102,127 1,005,690
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Wireless 911
Operating 134,078 {19,050} 153,128 155,264
Assets - (3,245) 3,245 24,338
134,078 (22,295) 156,373 179,602
Enhanced 911
Personnel 446,986 73,395 373,591 221,795
Operating 466,195 91,598 374,597 343,481
Assets 180,861 175,983 4,868 36,507
Cost redistribution 91,016 10,253 80,763 103,323
1,185,058 351,239 833,819 705,108
Total public safety 1,319,136 328,944 990,192 884,708
Debt service
Wireless 911 - - - 7,066
Enhanced 911 17,665 17,665 - 10,599
Total debt service 17,665 17,665 - 17,665
Total expenditures ] 1,336,801 346,609 990,192 902,373
Revenues over (under) expenditures (2562,834) 364,769 111,835 183,317
Other financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund bajance 252,834 (252,834) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 252,834 {252,834} - -
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over (under) expenditures $ - % 111,935 111,935 193,317

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 1,650,326 1,457,009
End of year -June 30 $ 1,762,261 §$ 1,850,326
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projecis Year Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental
Federal grants $ 8,264,077 5603112 $ 2,264,880 $ 2,839,100 § 6,267,361
State grants 1,200,971 1,183,187 218,703 341,057 1,305,541
County 46,750 29,673 - 12,025 41,698
Total intergovernmental 4,511,798 6,905,972 2,483,563 3,192,191 7,614,600
Miscellaneous .
Other 849,585 779,742 110,498 324,453 093,687
Total revenues 10,361,483 7,685,714 2,504,061 3,516,844 8,608,297
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 2,881,832 3,106,925 1,816,806 917,964 2,207,983
Econemic and physical development 7,681,672 4,003,888 798,708 2,784,888 5,990,066
Total current 10,563,504 7,110,811 2,615,615 3,702,853 8,198,042
Debt service 294,002 274,583 62,582 77,518 259,519
Total expenditures 10,857,506 7,385,394 2,708,197 3,780,371 8,457,568
Revenues over {undet)
expenditures (496,023) 300,320 (114,136} (263,727} 150,729
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 569,121 596,073 275,357 278,854 600,500
Transfers {cut) (73,088) (234,320) (161,221) - {73,099)
Owner contributions - B - - 6
Total other financing sources
{uses) 496,023 362,659 114,136 278,884 527,407
Revenues and other financing
sources (uses) over (under)
expenditures - 662,979 % - 15157 & 678,136
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 662,979
End of year - June 30 3 678,136
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project

Budget and Actuai - Federal and State Financial Assistance Fund

from Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Public safety
Federal Forfeiture 5 802,090 $ 1,491,664 $ 1128413 $ 171,800 % 535,051
GHSP 15,300 142,135 133,287 4,497 13,345
Juvenite Restitution 215,904 86,837 - 108,206 195,043
Juvenile Assessment Center 188,173 168,215 - {1,478) 166,737
Law Enforcement Block Grant 662,800 840,715 384,722 383,269 639,262
Mobile Data Computer Project 121,478 170,484 170,484 115,448 115,448
Police Block Grant 406,875 406,875 - - 406,875
FEMA Firefighter Grant 439,600 - - 105,026 105,026
Cybercrimes Grant 29,612 - - 31,196 31,196
Total public safety . 2,681,832 3,106,925 1,816,906 917,964 2,207,983
Economic and physical development
Community Development Block Grant 4,663,641 2,280,244 798,709 1,799,187 3,290,722
Arsenal Park Archaeological 43,459 43,382 - - 43,362
Assessment Payment 39,865 10,609 - 29,256 39,865
HOME 2,934,707 1,659,671 - 056,446 2,616,117
Total economic and
physical development 7,681,672 4,003,886 798,709 2,784,889 5,990,066
Total expenditures by project $ 10563504 & 7.110811 § 2615615 _$ 3702853 $ 8,198,049
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Storm Water Management Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003

{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Revenues
Other taxes

Storm water tax . : $& 1996584 § 20303 §$ 2016887 $ 1 ,969,734

Penalties 9,082 1,280 10,372 12,481
Total other taxes . 2,005,676 21,683 2,027,259 1,982,215

Interest earned on investments 183,000 {98,975) 84,025 142,819
Total revenues 2,188,676 (77,392) 2,111,284 2,125,134
Expenditures
Current
Environmental protection
Personnel 1,170,238 195,630 974,608 934,248
Operating 2,692,028 648,831 2,043,197 1,448,605
Assets ' - - - 85,644
Cost redistribution 253,048 {108,191) 361,239 276,189
Total environmental protection . 4,915,314 736,270 3,379,044 2,745,684
Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,926,638) 658.878 {1,267,760) {620,550)
Other financing sources (uses)

Appropriated fund balance 1,926,638 (1,926,638) - -
Total other financing sources {(uses) 1,026,638 {1,926,638) - -
Revenues and other financing sources

(uses) over (under) expenditures g - % (1,267,760) (1,267,760} {620,550)

Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 3,635,399 4,255,949
$ 2,367,639 § 3635399

End of year -June 30
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Fayetteville Finance Corp Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
: Positive 2003 2002
- Budget (Negafive} Actual Actual
Revenues
Interest earned on invesimenis 3 - % 247 $ 247 5 524
Expenditures
Current
Economic and physical development
Qperating 3,825 480 3,345 3,375
Debt service 1,528,518 1 1,528,517 1,523,018
Total expenditures - 1,532,343 481 1,531,862 1,526,393
Revenues over (under) expenditures {1,532,343) 728 (1,531,615) {1,525,869)
Other fintancing sources (uses)
Transfers in 1,532,343 (3,114) 1,529,229 1,526,393
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures 8 - $ {2,386) (2,386} 524
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 2,386 1,862
End of year - June 30 $ - $ 2 386
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

Capital Projeét Funds account for all resources used for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds. .
The following comprise the City's Capital Project Fund.s:

* General Government Fund

* Public Safety Fund

* Recreational and Cultural Fund

* Transportation Fund

* Bond Improvement Fund

* Economic and Physical Development Fund

All Capital Project Funds are accounted for on the modified accrual basis
of accounting.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Government Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues 3 - 5 - 5 - 3 - 8 -
Expenditures
Current
Adminisfration ' .
Inforration technology 756,711 217,134 - 200,945 418,079
Total expenditures 756,711 217,134 - 200,945 418,079
Revenues over {under) expenditures {756,711) {217,134} - {200,945) (418,079}
Other financing sources (uses}
Transfers in 756,711 756,711 - - 756,711
Revenues and other financing sources :
(uses) over (under) expendifures 3 - 8 539,577 % - (200,845) § 338,632
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 539,577
End of year - June 30 $ 338,632
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Budget and Acfual - Public Safety Fund

Revenues
Miscellaneous
Sale of assets

Interest earned on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
Public safety
School Road Fire Station

. Revenues over {under) expenditures

Other financing sources {uses)
Proceeds from capital ieases

Transfers in
Total other financing sources {uses)

Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over {(under) expenditures

Fund baiance
Beginning of year - July 1

End of year - June 30

&7

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
- 1,800 $ $ 272§ 2,072
44,072 47,873 - 47,873
44,072 48,673 272 49,945
1,244,780 1,241,673 {4,783} 1,236,890
{1.200,708) (1,192,000) 5,085 {1.186,945)
1,111,383 1,111,383 - 1,111,383
89,325 89,326 - - 89,325
1,200,708 1,200,708 - - 1,200,768
- 8,708 - % - 5,055 13,763
8,708
8 13,763




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

8chedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Recreational and Cultural Fund

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed . Current
Authorization Yeoars Projecis Year Total
Reventies
Intergovernmental
Federal grants/contributions % 1,270,287 3 - $ 5 83,620 3 83,020
State grants/contributions 550,000 281,447 145,054 426,501
Total intergovernmental 1,820,287 281,447 228.074 509,521
Miscellaneous . ’
Other 70,000 - 70,000 70,000
Donations ) 32,518 - 32,518 32,518
Total miscelianeous 102,518 - 102,518 162,518
Ernterest earned on investments : 114,971 174,168 355 174,523
Total revenues 2,037,776 455,615 330,947 788,562
Expenditures
Current
Recreational and community facilities
Mazarick Partk Gresnway Trail 387,300 31,448 145,054 176,502
Cape Fear River Trail 1,879,687 96,486 108,557 205,053
Park improvements 150,000 9,066 305 9,371
Recreation centars 4,148,006 4,087,629 {6,931) 4,090,698
Arsenal Park 173,826 156,401 - 155,401
Freedom Park 157,518 16,000 61,817 77.817
Seabrook Pool ) 605,000 602,644 - 602,644
Total expenditures 7,501,337 5,008,684 308,802 5,317,486
Revenues over {under) expenditures {5,463,561) (4,553,069} 22,145 {4.530,924)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in ' 825,526 754,844 109,400 .864,244
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt 4,838,035 4,838,036 - 4,638,036
Total other financing sources {uses) 5,463,561 5,392,880 108,400 5,502,280
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over [under) expenditures 3 - $ 839.811 $ 131,645 $ 971,356
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 839,811
£nd of year - June 30 8 871,356
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of 'Reve_nues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Transportation Fund

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Infergovernmental : ’
State grants ' $ 234000 B 231,472 - 3 - $ 231472
Miscellaneous
Owner contribuiion - 31,378 - 979 32,357
Other 68,346 104,823 32,546 16,274 88,551
Total miscellanous 68,346 136,201 32,546 17,253 120,908
Total revenues 302,346 367.673 32,546 17,253 352,380
Expenditures
Current
Transportation
Traffic control system 1,349,068 962,150 - 184,113 1,146,263
Sidewalks 456,463 - - - -
Parking improvements 1,255,744 803,648 - 43 803,691
Transportaiicn improvements 5,656,846 7,670,338 5,696,341 1,662,520 3,636,517
Totzl expenditures 8,718,122 9,436,136 5,606,341 1,846,676 5,586,471
Revenues over (under) expenditures {8,415,776) {9,068,463) (5,663,795} (1,829,423) {5,234,091}
Other financing sources (uses) ]
Transiers in ) 8,935,465 13,119,807 5.663,795 2,633,857 10,089,869
Transfers {out} (519,689) {19,689} . (500,000) (519,689)
Total other financing sources {uses) 8,415,776 13,100,118 5,663,795 2,133,857 9,570,180
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expendifures $ - 8 4,031,855 - 304,434 § 4,336,089
Fund balance-
Baeginning of year - July 1 4,031,655
End of year - June 30 5 4,336,089
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bailance
Budget and Actual - Bond improvement Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Interest earned on investments $ 2,594,033 § 2537327 & - 3 87,839 % 2,604,966
Expenditures.
Current
Economic and physical development
Bond administration 1,747,831 1,099,523 - 380,380 1,489,903
Streets 22,460,741 16,248,047 - 2,033,088 18,282,033
Debt service 656,954 618,705 - 38,248 656,953
Sidewatks 2,411,182 2,244,977 - 162,998 2,407.875
Drainage 6,922 316 6,745,198 - (53,720} 6,691,478
Total expenditures 34,199,024 25,957,350 - 2,570,892 29,528,342
Revenues over (under) expenditures (31,604,991) {24,420,023) - (2,603,353) (26,923,376)
Ofher financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 500,000 - - 500,000 500,000
Capital leases, bonds, and other debt 31,104,991 27,460,698 - 3,644,283 31,104,991
Tota! other financing sources {uses) 31,604,991 27,460,698 - 4,144,293 31,604,891
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses} over (under) expenditures 3 - % 3040675 § - 1,640,840 $ 4,681,615
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 3,040,675
End of year - June 30 3 4,681,615
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - Economic and Physical Development Fund

Erom Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior * Closed Current

Authorization Years Projecis Year Total
Revenues 7
Intergovernmental
Federal grarts . $ 350,000 5 152,241 $ - $ 25,785 5 178,036
State grants 2,625,702 106,192 - 153,714 259,903
Totai intergovernmental 2,875,702 258,433 - 179,508 437,838
Miscelianeous :
Owners contribution 82,266 82,048 - - 82,048
Private donations 1,656,426 202,350 ] - 575,500 777,850
Total miscellaneous 1,738,602 284.398 - 575,500 850,898
Interest earned on investments - - - 2,210 2,210
Total revenues 4,714,394 542,831 - 757,216 1,300,047
Expenditures
Curreni
Economic and physical developmenti .
Brownfieids Pilot Project 350,000 152,241 - 25,796 178,037
Uptown revitalization - 5441,156 5,441,156 - -
USC/Amphitheater Derno/Festival Park 1,170,408 - - 658,168 658,168
Cape Fear & Yadkin Vallay Depot 3,282,128 132,740 - 192,389 325,129
Dam Restoration Project 480,283 212,001 - 22,102 234,103
Total expenditures 5,282,819 5,938,138 5,441,156 898,455 1,385,437
Revenues over [under) expenditures (568,425} (5,395,307) {5.441,156) {141,239} (95,390)
Other financing sources {uses)
Transfers in 568,425 5,873,181 5,441,156 170,408 602,433
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses} over (under}
expenditures ] - $ 477,874 $ - 29,169 5 507,043
Fund balance
Beginning of year - July 1 477,874

End of year - June 30 $ 507,043
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

*  Enterprise Funds

%

Internal Service Funds

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net
income, financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles
“used here are generally accepted in the United States of America and
are applicable to similar businesses in the private sector.




ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds account for operations that are either financed and
operated in a manner similar to private businesses or for operations that
the City has decided that periodic determination of net income is
appropriate for capital maintenance, management control, accountability,
public policy, or other purposes.
The following comprise the City's Enterprise Funds:

*  Electric Fund |

*  Water and Wastewater Fund

*  Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

= Transit Fund

> Airport Fund

All Enterprise Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of
accounting.




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE,V NORTH CAROLINA

Combhining Balance Sheet
Electric Fund
June 30, 2603

Assets
Current unrestricted assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Investments
Receivables
internat balances
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
inventories
Other current assets
Totai current unrestricted assets

Current restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalenis
Investments
Collaterat pledged in lieu of deposits
Receivables
Total current resfricted assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Other assels

Utitity plant
Land
Construction in process
Etectric uiility system
Buiidings
Equipment and machinery
Computer programs
Vehicles
Office equipment

Capital assets, nat

Total noncurrent assefs

Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Current habilities to be paid from unrestricted
current assets
Current portion of long-term debt
Qverdrafl payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total current liabilities to be paid from unrestricted current assets

Current liakilities to be paid from
restricted current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total current liabilities to be paid from
restricted current assets

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt
Total noncusrent liabilities

Total liakilities

Net assets
Capilal assats net of related debt
Restricted for-
Capital Projects
Debt service
Unresticted net assets
Total net assets

TFotal liabilities and net assets

Administration

Uptown Rate Building Capital
Electric Revitalization Stabilization Project
Fund _Special Fund  Special Fund Fund Total
$ 8378775 S - 5 - 5 - $ 9378775
10,703,008 - - - 10,703,006
22,204,041 - - - 22,204,041
122,761 {75,350) (26,926} - 20,485
(292,541) - - - {282 541}
9,929,150 - - - 9,928,150
88,137 - - - 83,137
52.133.328 (75.350) {26,926) - 52,031,053
4,138,030 2,544,794 4,470,601 - 11,153,425
2,245,729 - - - 2,245,729
148,060 - - - 148,060
3,336 - - - 3,336
6,535,155 2,544,794 4,470,601 - 13,550,550
58,668,484 2,469,444 4,443,675 - 55,581,803
2,719,017 - - - 2,719,017
4,385,611 - - - 4,385,611
17,200,707 38,578 - - 17,239,285
155,613,254 - - - 155,813,254
31,615,133 - - - 31,615,133
5,057,242 - - - 5,057,242
1,963,469 - - - 1,963,469
375,455 - - - 375,455
590,693 - - - 530,898
217,701,768 38,578 - - 217,740,347
220,420,788 38,578 - - 220,458,364
$ 273,089,270 $ 2,508,022 $ 4,443,675 3 - $ 286,040,987
$ 3,362,345 5 3 - $ - $ 3,362,345
6,384,188 - - - 5,384,188
17,177,165 - - - 17.177,165
26,523,688 - - - 26,923,688
3,181,032 - - 3,181,032
3,191,032 - - - 3,191,032
30,114,720 - - - 30,114,720
51,750,847 - - - 51,750,847
51,750,847 - - - 51,750,847
51,865,567 - - - 81,865,567
162,588,577 38,578 - - 162,627,155
2,946,957 - - - 2,948,957
31,668,169 2,469,444 4,443,675 - 38,601,288
197,223.703 2,508,022 4,443,675 - 204,175,400
$ 279,08%,27¢  § 2508022 $ 4,443,675 $ - $ 286,040,967
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Electric Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Administration

Uptown Rate Building Capital
Electric Revitalization  Stabilization Project
Fund Special Fund  Special Fund Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 145,617,727 $ - 5 - 3 - $145617,727
Total operating revenues 145,617,727 - - - 145,617,727
Operating expenses
Power supply and generation 105,199,899 - - - 105,199,899
Electric operation 10,704,421 - - - 10,704,421
General and administrative 8,304,691 - - - 8,304,691
Depreciation 12,890,217 - - - 12,890,217
Total operating expensas 137,099,228 - - - 137,099,228
Operating income (loss) 8,518,489 - - - 8,518,499
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Iinterest earned on investments 808,252 - 67,678 - 876,930
Gain (loss} on disposal of assets (864,850) - - - (864,850}
Interest expense (2,955,731} - - - (2,955,731)
Amortization {450,375) - - - (450,375}
Totali nonoperating revenue {expense) (3,461,704} - 67,678 - (3,394,026}
Change in net assets before transfers
and contributions 5,056,795 - 67,678 - 5,124 473
Transfers in 2,595,793 - - 250,000 - 2,845,793
Transfers out (250,000} (1,718,479} (1,000,000} - (2,968,479)
Transfers out - Generatl Fund (8,544,444) - - - (8,544,444
Capital contributions 3,632,702 - - - 3,632,702
Change in net assets 2,490,846 {1,718,479) (682,322) - 90,045
Total net assets - beginning 194,732,857 4,226,501 5,125,997 - 204,085,355
Total net assets - ending $ 197,223,703 § 2,508,022 $ 4,443 675 $ - $204,175,400
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

. Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003

{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002)

Revenues
Operating revenues
Electric operations
Sale of electricity

2003
Variance
Positive 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

$ 144,570,429

$ (3,955,858)

$ 140,613,571

$ 134,959,529

City services 1,584,812 27,838 1,612,650 1,553,055
Mon-uiility charges 552,561 142,275 594 836 537,243
Service charges 1,150,000 83,744 1,233,744 1,236,066
Miscellaneous 1,510,000 {147,074) 1,462,926 1,579,028
Total operating revenues 149,467,802 {3,850,075) 145,817,727 139,814,819
Non-operating revenues
Gain (loss) on asset disposal - (864,850) {864,850) (694,480)
Interest earned on investmants 1,400,000 (590,748) 809,252 1,085,486
Total non-operating revenues 1,400,000 {1,455,558) (55,598) 391,026
Contributions
Contributions 2,545,000 1,087,702 3,632,702 1,586,355
Total contributions 2,545,000 1,087,702 3,832,702 1,596,355
Transfers in
Transfers from Rate Stabilization Fund 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
Total transfers in 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -

Total revenues

Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Electric operations

$ 154,412,802

3 (4,217,971

$ 150,194,831

3 141,802,300

Power supply and generation §103,771,409 $ (1,428, 450) $ 105,199,809 $ 89,549,683
Administration 408,236 141,900 286,336 245,395
Apparaius repair shop 454,985 2,174 452,841 466,515
Efectric meter shop 520,032 {34,242) 554,244 436,242
Construction and maintenance 5,933,793 {821,400} 6,765,193 5,810,906
Substation construction 973,664 79,569 894,095 764,276
Enginsering 1,880,764 99,022 1,781,742 2,185,497

Total electric operations 113,942,883 {1,861,437} 115,904,320 99,458,514
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002)

2003
Variance
Positive 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Expenditures {continued)
General and administrative

Executive $ 524,348 5 114,867 g 509,379 3 322,490
Internal audit 72,581 {35} 72,616 67,888
Public information 370,623 (10,171 380,794 374,875
Financial administration 120,842 8,011 114,831 111,722
Administrative - administration 105,483 23,476 82,007 97,938
Hurnan resources 372,022 {10,698) 382,720 354,618
Accounting 382,580 56 382,534 354,151
Accounts recsivable 573,711 {1,785} 575,495 502,120
Payroll 58,680 1,964 56,718 59,359
Customer service adminstration 973,604 199,227 774,377 787,069
Call center 566,310 2,623 563,787 517,504
Custemer programs and service 196,309 58,333 139,376 138,995
Cashiers 334,387 420 333,967 287,914
Main office ’ 308,146 8,273 299,873 308,920
Meter reading 344,806 14,345 335,461 349,689
Utility field services 381,675 183 391,492 432,587
Risk management 312,271 43,889 268,382 232,730
Capital Projects 162,593 10,548 152,045 164,168
Rates 143,862 (49,416) 193,278 81,436
Budget 92,125 8,442 83,683 80,095
Purchasing 800 801 (1) -
Warehouse 1,000 1,000 - -
Material management 130,165 8,264 121,801 120,086
Investigation 102,410 1,435 100,975 107,841
Fleet maintenance 700 700 “ -
Building and grounds maintenance 169,975 124 169,851 205,144
Metering management 185,548 24 185,524 109,936
Special projects 261,039 26,868 234,173 240,262
Telecommunications systems 304,176 (21,743) 325,919 263,259
Information systems 773,700 112 773,588 640,164
Pensicn expense 1,134,683 708,626 428,057 557,354
Net pension obligation adjustment - (240,798) 240,798 128,634
Medical insurance 1,440,000 {663,172) 2,103,172 1,719,188
Other (99,540) {91,193) (8,347) {357,278)
Benefits cleared to accounts {2,835,233) (361,500) (2,473,733) {2,363.618)

Total general and administrative 8,091,389 (213,302} 8,304,691 8,997,288

Total operating expenditures 122,034,272 (2,174,738) 124,209,011 106,455,802

Non-operating expenditures

Interest expense 2,978,000 22,289 2,655,731 3,165,672

Total non-operating expenditures 2,978,000 22,269 2,955,731 3,165,672

95




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non GAAP) -
Electric Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003

{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002)

2003
Variance
o Positive 2002
Budget {Negative} Actual Actual
Transfers out
Transfers to General Fund $ 8,539,900 3 {4,544) 5 38,544,444 $ 8,483,328
Transfers to Uptown Revitalization Fund - - - 1,000,000
Transfers to Rate Stablilization Fund 250,000 - 250,000 2,250,000
Total transfers out 8,789,900 (4,544) 8,794,444 11,733,328
Budgetary appropriations
Inventory increase - 972,774 (972,774) {176,875}
Bond principal payments 3,598,000 {71,280) 3,669,280 3,355,750
Capital outlay 17,012,630 3,111,130 13,901,500 14,835,297
‘Appropriated net assets - - - -
Total budgetary appropriations 20,610,630 4,012,624 16,598,006 15,114,172
Total expenditures $ 154,412,802 3. 1,855,610 $ 152,557,192 $ 136,468,974

Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues

$ (4,217,871)

$ 150,194,831

§ 141,802,300

Total expenditures 1,855,610 152,557,192 136,468,974

Subtotal 3 (2,362,361) (2,362,361) 5,333,328

Reconciling items:

Budgetary appropriations 16,598,006 15,114,172
Depreciation {12,890,217) (12,881,165)
Amortization {450,375) {447,353)
Transfer of assets from the Administrative Building Capital Project Fund - 54,977
Transfer of assets from the Uptown Revitalization Capital Projsct Fund 1,585,793 164,008

Total reconciling items 4,853,207 2,004,639

Change in net assets 3 2,480,846 $ 7,337,365
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Uptown Revitalization Fund
From inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total
Project . Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues 3 - 3 - 3 -3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures
Museum land acquisition : - 2,348,547 - 2,346,547
Botanical gardens - 55,705 - 55,705
Consulting fees - 132,304 - 132,304
Museum construction - 7,153,453 - 7,153,453
Transportation system - 160,000 - 160,000
Land donation - 175,000 - 175,000
Riverfront development - 79,776 - 79,776
Hydrology study ' - 6,705 - 6,705
Electric system improvements - 1,758,059 40,309 1,798,368
Water/Sewer improvements - 110,453 12,233 122,686
Total expenditures 14,500,000 11,978,002 52,542 12,030,544
Revenues under expenditures (14,500,000} (11,978,002) (52,542) {12,030,544)
Other financing sources
Transfer from Electric Fund 14,500,000 14,500,000 - 14,500,000
Total other financing solrces 14,500,000 14,500,000 - 14,500,000
Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures $ - $ 2,521,998 (52,542) § 2,469,456
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay 52,542
Transfer of assets to the Electric Fund (1,685,793}
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewatsr {122,686)
Change in net assets 3 {1,718,479)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Rate Stabilization Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues
Interest earned on investments
Rate stabilization transfer
Total revenues

Expenditures
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfer from Electric Fund
Transfer to Electric Fund
Appropriated net assets
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Total reconciling items
Change in net assets

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
% 522772 $ 458,272 3 67,678 $ 523,950
4169725 4,168,725 - 4,169,725
4,692 457 4,625,997 67,678 4,693,675
4,692 497 4,625,997 87,678 4 693,675
4,750,000 4,500,000 250,000 4,750,000
{5,000,000) (4,000,000) {1,000,000} (5,000,000)
(4,442 497) - - -
(4,692,497) 500,000 (750,000) {250,000
5 - $ 51250997 (682,322) $ 4,443,675
$ {682,322)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Water and Wastewater Fund
June 30, 20063

Annexation 1987 Annexation Annexation Annexation 2002 State
Water and Capital Supplemental Capital Capitai Capital Ravolving Loan
Wastewater Project Fund  Capitai Project  Project Fund Reserve Project Fund Capital Project
Fund Phase Il Fund Phase IVA Fund Phase VB Fund Total
Assets
Current unrestricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 5,805,906 5 - 3 - $ - 7§ - 5 - § - 5 5695506
Investments 2,391,311 - - - - - - 2,391,311
Receivables 14,708,652 - - - - 3,645 - - 14,712,287
Intemal balancas 1,816,791 (17,556 135,218 426,462 - (1,388,562) (782,838) (20,485)
Less allowanse for doubti accounts {54,056) - - - - - - (54,056}
Inventories 1,138,204 - - - - - - 1,138,204
Other current assets 107,698 - - - - - - 107,658
Total current unrestricted assets 25,604,508 (17,556} 135,218 426,462 - {1,384,917) {762,838) 23,970.875
Current restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,683,761 2,181,279 2,668,470 253,477 556,060 - - 12,654,047
Investments 2,909,268 - - - - - - 9,90g 368
Receivables 37,850 (349} 48,488 275,745 ~ 106.010 - 465,744
Totat current restricted assets 16,930,878 2,180,930 2,715,958 529,222 556,060 106,010 - 23,028,058
Total current assets 42,535,385 2,173,374 2.851,174 955,684 558,080 (1,288,807) (782,838 46,998,834
Noncurrent assets
Qther assels 4,850,382 - - - - - - 4,850,382
Utility plant
Land 6,915,799 - - - - - - 8,915,758
Canstruction in procass 4,769,099 - - 1,914,968 - 782,626 782,836 8,246,529
YWater system 115,548,287 - - - - - - 115,548,287
Sewer system 194,110,254 - - - - - - 191,110,254
Buildings 3,550,196 - - - - - - 3,550,198
Equipment and machinery 1.447415 - - - - - - 1,447,415
Compater programs. 4,673,403 - - - - - - 1,673,403
Vehicies . 771,142 - - - - - - 771142
Office aquipment ' 986,001 - - - - - - 88,001
Capital assets, net 375,882,536 - - 1,911.968 - 782,626 782,838 328,360,026
Total noncurrent assets 330,732,978 - - 1,311,988 - 782,626 782,836 334,210,408
Total assets $373,768,383 $ 2,173,374 3 2,851,174 $ 2887652 $ 556,080 $ 1506,281) 3 - $381,210,342
Liabilities and net assets
Cument portion of long-term debt 5 7,532,411 kS - 3 - 5 - $ - $ - 3 - 5 7,532,411
Accounts payable and accrued expanses 6,081.556 - - - - 75,936 - 6,137,452
Total current liabilities to be paid
fram 13,583,967 - - - - 75,936 - 13,669,803
Current liabilities to be paid from
restricted current assats
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,085.873 - 202119 554,982 - - - 1,842,874
Total current liabilities to be paid
froam 1,085,873 - 202119 554,982 - - - 1,842,874
Tuotal current liabilities 14,679,840 - 202,119 554,982 - 75,9368 - 15,612,877
tong-term debt 125482728 - - - - - - 125,482,728
Uneamned depasits 4,808,753 - - - - - - 4,808,753
Totai noncurrent liabilities 130,381 481 - - - - - - 130,391 481
Total Habitities 146,071,321 - 202,119 554,982 - 75,936 - 145,904,358
Net assets
Capital assets net of related debt 162,867,457 - - 1,911,958 - 782,626 762836 196,344,887
Restricted for -
Capital Projects - 2,173,374 - - - {1,364.843) (782,838) 25895
Debt service 7,554,902 - - - - - - 7,554,902
Unrestricted net assets 27,774,883 - 2,649,055 400,702 556,060 - - 31,350.500
Tota! net assets 238,197,042~ 2,173,374 2,649,055 2,312,670 556,080 {582.217) - 235,305,984
Total liabilities and net assets 5373,268,363 5 2173374 § 2,851,174 § 2867652 3  558.080 $  {506,281) 5 - $381,210,342
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Water and Wastewater Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2003
Annexation 1397 Annexation Annexation Annexaticn 2002 State
Water and Capital Supplemental Capital Capital Capital Revolving Loan
Wastewater Project Fund Capitat Project  Project Fund Reserve Project Fund  Capital Project
Fund Phase Il Fund Phase IVA Fund Phasa WB Fund Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services - $ 43,008,035 § - 5 - 8 - 8 -8 - .5 - % 43,008,035
Total operating revenues 43.008.035 - - - - - - 43,008,035
Operatiing expenses
Water operations 9,222,880 - - - - - - 9,222,880
Sanitary sewer operations 8,220,611 - - - - - - 8,220,611
General and administrative 8,639,521 - - - - - - 8,639,521
Depreciation 14,407,197 - - - - - - 11,407 197
Total aperating expenses 37,490,209 - - - - - - 37.490,209
Qperating income {loss} 5517826 - - - - - - 5,517,826
Nonoperating revenue {expense)
interest earned on investments 802,122 - - - 14,933 - - 817,065
Gain ({loss) on disposal of assets {13,388) - - - - - - {13,386)
interest expense (5,393,205} - - - - - - (5,383,205}
Amortization (753,194) - - - - - - (753,194)
Total nenoperating revenue (expens (5,357,663) - - - 14,933 - - (6,342,730
Change in nat assets before transfers
and contributions (839,837) - - - 14,833 - - (824,904}
Transfers in 8,184,171 3,235,567 - 3,400,000 - - - 12,819,738
Transfers out {452) (5,635,115) {3,103,004) {2,375,2684) {1,000,000) (582,217} - {12,697,052)
Transfers ow - General Fund (713,473) - - - - - - (713,473)
Capital contributions 8,605,351 - - - - - - 8,605,351
GChange in net assets 13,235,760 (2,399,548} (3,103,004} 1,023,736 {985,067) (582.217) - 7,189,660
Total net assets - beginning 214,961,282 4,572,922 5,752,059 1,288,834 1,541,127 - + 228,116,324
Total net assets - ending ] 228'197'04i. $ 2473374 § 28490585 _§ 2312670 § 558080 & (582217) _§ - § 235305984
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROCLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003 _
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002}

2003
Variance
Positive 2002
Budget {Negative)} Actual Actual
Revenues
Operating revenues
Water operations
Water sales $ 19,877,222 - § (1,963,590) $ 17,913,632 F 18,498,072
Connection fees 565,000 51,764 626,764 796,495
City services 109,277 (45,253) 684,024 85,771
Total water operations 20,551,499 {1,947.079) 18,604,420 19,378,338
Sanitary sewer operations
Sewer charges 23,688,987 (716,184) 22,972,803 22,562,172
Connection fees 465,000 (47,031) 417,969 590,038
City services 42,614 (8,028) 34,588 39,598
Total sanitary sewer operations 24,196,601 {771,241) 23,425,380 23,191,808
Other operating revenues )
Naon-utility charges 563,600 301,868 865,458 659,578
Service charges 215,000 65,362 280,362 240,197
Miscellaneous 50,000 {217,575) (167,575) 233,911
Total other operating revenues 828,600 149,655 978,255 1,133,686
Total operating revenues 45,576,700 {2,568,665) 43,008,033 43,703,832
Non-operating revenues
Gain (loss) on asset disposal - (13,386) (13,386) 23,316
Interest earned on investments 450,000 352,122 802,122 802,126
Total non-operating revenues 450,000 338,736 788,736 825,442
Contributions
Contributions 7,694,800 910,551 8,605,351 7,184,899
Total confributions 7,694,800 910,551 8,605,351 7,184,899
Total revenues $ 53,721,500 $ (1,319,378} 5 52,402,122 S 51,714,173
Expenditures
Operating expenditures
Water operations
Administration and engineering 3 1,028,503 $ 114,849 5 913854 $ 978,368
Water meter shop 734,757 85,927 648,830 840,260
Construction ang maintenance 2,976,763 88,310 2,888,453 2,762,887
P. Q. Hoffer water treatment plant 2,975,811 121,051 2,854,760 2,967,586
Glenville Lake water treatment plant 1,214,908 120 1,214,788 1,065,277
Laboratory 243,446 10,163 233,283 212,869
Environmental 95,597 5,288 90,309 76,757
Watersheds 160,545 419 160,128 197,069
Cross Connection 222,643 3,966 218,677 180,450
Total water operations 9,652,973 430,003 $,222,880 9,281,523
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non GAAP} -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
{with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 39, 2002)

2003
Variance
Positive 2002
] Budget {Negative) Actual Actuat
Expenditures {continued)
Operating expenditures {continued)
Sanitary sewer operations

Administration and engineering $ 1,028,504 5 114,853 $ 913,651 $ 978,368
Sewer construction and maintenance 2,854,001 101,096 2,752,805 2,572,135
Lift stations 507,308 {1,704) 509,012 615,587
Cross Creek WW treatment plant 1,994,658 §7,030 4,897,628 1,842,207
Rockfish Creek WW treatment plant 1,680,788 35,295 4,545,493 1,572,153
Residuals mzanagement 175,607 2,104 173,503 147,888
Pretreatment 101,659 (3,168) 104,827 71,787
Laboratory 243,445 10,182 . 233,283 212,870
Environrmental 95,598 5,282 90,309 78,756

Total sanitary sewer operations 8,581,568 360,957 8,220,611 8,188,731

General and administrative .

Executive 418,045 186,330 231,715 197,253
Irsternal audit 72,582 1,275 71,307 86,975
Public information 368,723 (29,700) 399,423 316,875
Financial administration ) 120,843 13,810 107,233 106,283
Administrative administration 105,482 25,383 77,099 89,919
Human resources 364,023 {5,109) 385,132 349,301
Accourting 376,490 1 376,489 340,087
Accounts receivable 584,611 10,937 573,674 485,532
Payroil 63,680 2,102 66,578 58,105
Customer service adminstration 478,004 32,296 445708 453,958
Call center 558,510 2,358 554,152 479,141
Main office 308,145 13,410 284,735 296,131
Customer programs and services 196,311 85,149 111,162 83,951
Cashiers 312,486 (13,572) 326,058 276,458
Meter reading 349,806 22,095 327,711 328,753
Utility fiald services 369,175 233 368,942 402,774
Risk management 315,871 {(14,115) 330,088 223,408
Capital Projects 182,592 12,716 149,878 158,344
Rates 141,862 66,333 75,529 91,550
Budget 92,127 9,375 82,752 77,991
Purchasing 300 801 (1) -
Warehouse 1,000 1,000 - -
Material management 130,165 9,500 120,665 115,687
Fleet maintenance 700 589 1 -
Building and grounds maintenance 165,974 (814) 166,588 147,284
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {Non GAAP) -
Water and Wastewater Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2002)

2003
Variance
Positive 2002
Budget {Megative) Actuat Actual
Expenditures {continued)
Operating expenditures (continued)
General and administrative {continued)
Metering management 3 185,348 3 7,243 i 178,105 3 107,250
Investigation 100,310 4,500 96,210 101,855
Special projects 261,038 27,353 233,688 223,520
Communication sysiem 302,877 27 302,850 232,034
Infarmation systems 765,999 353 765,646 524,080
Pension expenses 1,134,682 706,625 428,057 531,049
Net pension obligation adjustment - (240,799) 242,799 128,634
Medical insurance 1,580,000 (577,898) 2,137,898 1,677,807
Other 1,362,207 52,359 1,300,848 1,114,641
Benefits clearad to accounts (2,952,632} {272,440} (2,680,192) (2,311,683}
Totat general and administrative 8,781,937 142,418 8,639,521 7,575,034
Total operating expenditures 27,016,478 933,466 26,083,012 25,046,288
Non-gperating expenditures
Interest expense 6,570,000 176,785 5,393,205 6,806,568
Total non-operating expenditures 6,570,000 176,795 6,393,205 5,806,568
Transfers out
Transfer to Annexation Reserve Fund - - - 2,000,000
Transfer {0 General Fund 713,480 7 713,473 -
Total transfers out 713,480 7 713,473 2,000,000
Budgetary appropriations
inventory increase - {187.867) 187,867 217,861
Bond principat payments 5,922,000 {808,720} 6,730,720 5,026,006
State loan payments 379,756 - 379,756 -
Capital outiay 10,842,180 4,825,752 6,016,428 5,166,085
Appropriation of net assets 2,277,606 2,277,606 - -
Total budgetary appropriations 19,421,542 5,108,771 13,314,771 11,313,852
Total expenditures $ 53,721,500 $ 7,217,039 § 46,504,454 % 45,166,706
Reconciliation of change in net assets
Total revenues $ (1,319.378) $ 52,402,122 $ 51,714,173
Total expenditures 7,217,038 46,504,461 45,166,706
Subtotal % 5807651 5,897,661 6,547,467
Reconciling items:
Budgstary appropriations 13,314,771 11,313,852
Depreciation {11,407,187) (11,517.250)
Amortizafion (753,194) (602,675)
Transfer of assets from Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase IVA 2,376,264 1,211,066
Transfer of assets fromn Annexation Capital Project Fund Phase IVB 582,217 -
Transfer of assets from Annexation Capitai Project Fund Phase LI (452} 6,295,865
Transfer of assets from 1997 Supplemental Capital Project Fund 3,103,004 - 297,751
Transfer of assets from Uptown Revitalization Fund 122,686 -
Transfer of net assets from the State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund - {7,274,056)
Total reconciling items 7,338,099 {275,447)
Change in net assets 3 13,235,760 $ 6272020
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase il
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues $ 573,115 $ 573,115 $ - $ 573,115
Total revenues 573,115 573,115 - 573,115
Expenditures
Construction 24,251,191 23,371,752 - 23,371,752
Engineering 4,676,163 4 676,163 - 4,676,183
Rights of way - 419,081 - 419,081
Less City of Fayetteville participation {6,954,005) (6,954,005} - (6,954,005)
Financing costs 1,553,409 1,553,408 - 1,553,408
Other - 480,810 {451) 460,359
Total expenditures 23,526,758 23,527,209 (451) 23,526,758
Revenues under expenditures {22,953,643) (22,954,004) 451 (22,953,643)
Other financing sources
1999 Revenue Bond proceeds 18,250,000 16,325,000 - 19,325,000
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (533,058) (533,054) - (533,054)
Transfer from Annexation Phase Il
Captial Project Fund 3,000,000 2,289,028 - 2,289,028
Transfer from 1993 Refunding Bond
Capital Project Fund 810,067 946,087 - 948,087
Transfer from 1297 Supplemental Capital
Project Fund 5,000,000 5,499,951 - 5,499,851
Transfer to Annexation Phase 1V Capital
Project Fund {2,400,000) - {2,400,000) {2,400,000)
Transfer ic Water/Sewer Fund (2,173,366) - - -
Total other financing sources 22,953,843 27,527,012 {2,400,000) 25,127,012
Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures 3 - § 4,572,918 (2,399,549) § 2,173,369
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay (451)
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund 452

Change in net assets 3 (2,399,548)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 1997 Supplemental Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues $ -3 - 5 - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expenditures
Construction - 4,848,045 1,425,588 6,273,633
Engingering - 570,104 122,838 692,042
Rights of way - 7.960 503 8,483
Other - 166,687 37,570 204,257
Total expenditures 7,241,497 5,592,796 1,586,499 7,179,295
Revenues under expenditures {7,241,497) {5,592 796) (1,586,499) (7,179,295)
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Sewer Capital Reserve
Fund 9,828,350 9,828,350 - 9,828,350
Transfer to Water and Wastewater Fund (2,586,853) - - -
Total other financing sources 7,241,497 9,828,350 - 9,828,350
Revenues and other financing sources over
expenditures $ - $ 4,235554 (1,586,499 $ 2,649,055

Reconciling items:
Capital cutlay 1,586,499
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund (3,103,004)
Change in net assets $ (3,103,004)

105




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVA
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures - Phase {V-A
Construction
Engineering
Rights of way
Less City of Fayetteville participation
Other
Total expenditures - Phase IV-A

Expenditures - Phase IV-B
Engineering
Rights of way
Less City of Fayetteville participation
Other
Total expenditures - Phase IV-B

Total expenditures
Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources

Transfer from Annaxation. Reserve Fund

Transfer from Annaxation Phase 1l
Capital Project Fund
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources

over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outtay

Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund

Change in net assets

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
3 - - - _
- 3,619,089 1,850,818 5,469,907
- 842,621 191,800 1,034,221
- 79,305 12,562 91,857
- (724,608) (540,682} (1,265,290)
- 139,334 29,259 168,593
5,300,000 3,855,741 1,543,657 5,499,298
- 457,012 (457,012} -
- 17,072 {17,072) -
- (228,506) 228,506 -
- 127,787 (127,787) -
- 373,365 (373,365) -
5,300,000 4,329,106 1,170,192 5,499,298
(6,300,000) (4,329,106) {1,170,192) (5,499,298)
3,900,000 2,500,000 4,000,000 3,500,000
2,400,000 - 2,400,000 2,400,000
6,300,000 2,600,000 3,400,000 5,900,000
$ - {1,829,1086) 2,229,808 400,702
1,170,192
(2,376,264)
1,023,736
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Reserve Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues
interest earned on investments $ 56,127 3 41,127 5 14,933 $ 58,060
Total revenues 56,127 41,127 14,933 56,060
Revenues under expenditures 56,127 41127 14,933 56,060
Other financing sources
Transfer from Water and Wastewater fund 4,000,000 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Transfer to Annexation Phase IV
Capital Project Fund (3,500,000) (2,500,000) (1,000,000) (3,500,000)
Appropriated net assets (556,127) - - -
Total other financing sources (56,127) 1,500,000 {1,000,000) 500,000
Revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures 3 - $ 1,541127 (985,067) § 556,060
Reéonciling items:
Total reconciling items -
Change in net assets $ (985,0687)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of Annexation Capital Project Fund - Phase IVB
From inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
Revenues 5 - 3 - $ - 3 -
Total revenues - - - -
Expendifures
Construction - ~ 502,470 502,470
Engineering - - 1,031,607 1,031,607
Rights of way - - 146,452 146,452
Less City of Fayetteville participation - - (566,050) (566,050)
Other - - 250,364 250,364
Total expenditures 17,500,000 - 1,364,843 1,364,843
Revenues under expenditures (17,500,000) - {1,364,843) (1,364,843)
Other financing sources
Bond proceeds 17,500,000 - - -
Totai other financing sources 17,500,000 - - -
- Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures 3 - % - (1,364,843) $§  (1,3564,843)
Reconciling items:
Capital outlay 1,364,843
Transfer of assets to the Water and Wastewater fund (582,217)
Change in net assets $ (582,217)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of 2002 State Revolving Loan Capital Project Fund
From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2003

Expenditures
Construction
Engineering
Financing costs
Other
Total expenditures

Revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources (uses}
State revolving loan proceeds
Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over expenditures

Reconciling items:
Capital outlay
Loan proceeds
Change in net assets
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Total
Project Prior Current
Authorization Years Year Total
- - 3 41470 § 41,470
- - 739,460 739,460
- - 1,906 1,806
17,442,000 - 782,836 782,836
(17,442,000} - {782,836) {782,836)
17,442,000 B - -
17,442,000 - - -
- - (782,836) & {782,836)
782,836




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet.
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
June 30, 2003

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments % 734,209 $ 1,967,832 $ 2,702,041
Accounts receivable 139,716 762,510 902,226
Inventories 6,811 1,740 8,551
Total current assets 880,736 2,732,082 3,612,818
Noncurrent assets
Other assets - 132,000 132,000
Capital assets 4,683,654 20,525,622 25,209,276
Total noncurrent assets 4 683,654 20,657,622 25,341,276
Total assets $ 5,564,390 $ 23,389,704 $ 28,954,094
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 127,824 3 450,216 % 578,040
Interfund payables - 423,798 423,798
Accrued vacation 104,579 63,998 168,577
Total current liabilities 232,403 938,012 1,170,415
Noncurrent liabilities
Deferred revenues 84 55,996 56,080
Total noncurrent liabilities 64 55,996 56,060
Total liabilities 232,467 994,008 1,226,475
Net assels
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,683,654 20,525,622 25,208,276
Unrestricted . 648,269 1,870,074 2,518,343
Total net assets 5,331,823 22395696 27,727,619

Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,564,380 $ 23,389,704 3 28,954,004
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Year Ended June 30, 2003

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue from operations
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenue (expense)
interest earned on invesiments
Federal and State grants
Passenger facility charges
Miscellaneous revenue
Interest expense
Amortization
Miscellaneous expense

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

income (loss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in
Capital contributions
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Tota! Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
"Fund Fund Funds
$ 1084170 $ 2,272,110 $ 3,356,280
44,536 81,169 125,705
1,128,706 2,353,279 3,481,985
2,599,728 929,695 3,528,423
1,460,746 859,242 2,319,988
842,009 1,470,562 2,312,571
4.902,483 3,259,499 8,161,982
(3,773,777) (906,220) (4,679,997)

- 41,586 41,586
1,553,753 106,249 1,660,002
- 322,372 322,372

- 84,297 84,297

- (26,196) {(26,196)

- (22,000) (22,000)

- (263,085) (263,085)
1,553,753 243,223 1,796,976
(2,220,024) - {662,997) (2,883,021
1,355,726 - 1,355,726
64,103 1,668,917 1,733,020
{(800,195) 1,005,920 205,725
6,132,118 21,389,776 27,521,894
$ 5331923 $ 22395696 $ 27,727,619
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total Nonmajor

Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund : Fund Funds
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 1,378,956 $ 2,278,594 3 3,657,550
Other operating revenue 44,536 137,165 181,701
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (2,613,221) (932,047} {3,545,288)
Cash paid for goods and services (1,459,893) {623,931} (2,083,624)
Net cash provided by (used in) :
operating activities (2,649,422) 859,781 (1,789,641)
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in 1,355,726 - 1,355,728
Federal and state grants 1,553,753 108,249 1,660,002
Nonoperating revenues - 406,689 406,669
Other - (263,085) {263,085)
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities 2,909,479 249,833 3,159,312
Capitai and related financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance - 40,213 40,213
Contributed capital received 64,103 - 64,103
Capital contributions - State grant - - 78,138 78,138
Capital contributions - Federal grant - 1,466,745 1,468,745
Acquisition and consiruction of capital assets (46,804) (1,493,623) (1,540,427)
Principal paid on debt maturities - (63,644) (63,644)
Interest paid on debt maturities - {26,196) (26,186)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities 17,298 1,633 18,932
Investing activities
interest and dividends - 41,586 41,586
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities - 41,586 41,586
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents/investments 277,356 1,152,833 1,430,188
Cash and cash equivalents/investments
Beginning of year 456,853 814,999 1,271,852
End of year 3 734,208 $ 1,967,832 % 2,702,041
Cash and cash equivalents 3 734,209 $ 1067832 & 2,702,041
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments $ 734,209 967, 5 2,702 041
Unrestricted cash and equivalenis/investmenis $ 734,209 3 1967,832 § 2,702,041
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments 3 734,209 ,967,8 3 2,702,041
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Total Nonmajor
Transit Airport Enterprise
Fund Fund Funds

Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities
Operating income (foss) _ $ (3,773,777) & (908220 % {4,879,997)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss) '
to net cash provided by (used in) operating

activities:
Depreciation 842,009 1,470,562 2,312,571
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase) decrease in accounis receivable 295,068 6,484 302,452
(Increase) decrease in inventory (1,182) (301) {1,483)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities 1,053 235,612 236,665
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated
absences {13,493) (2,352) (15,845)
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenues - 55,056 55,996
Total adjusiments 1,124,355 1,766,001 2,890,356

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities § (2,649,422) § 859,781 $ {1,789,641)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Scheduie of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual {(Non-GAAP)
Transit Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003 .
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
QOperating revenues

Charges for services 3 955,577 § 128,593 $ 1,084,170 § 984,460

Other revenues from operations 94,000 (49,464) 44 536 73,838
Total operating revenues 1,049,577 79,129 1,128,705 4,058,298

Operating expenditures

Personnel 2,613,243 22 2,613,221 2,473,289

Maintenance and operations 1,322,650 (2,643) 1,325,293 1,287,546

Capital outlay - {4,087) 4,087 53,880
Total operating expenditures 3,035,893 (6,708} 3,942,601 3,814,715
Operating loss {2,886,316) 72,421 {2,813,895) (2,756,417)

Nonoperating revenues

Proceeds from sale of assefs - - - 724

Federal and State grants 1,312,377 144,063 1,456,440 1,408,205
Total nonoperating revenues 1,312,377 144,083 1,456,440 1,408,929
Revenues under expenditures (1,573,939) 216,484 (1,357.455) (1,347,488)

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 1,573,839 (233,538) 1,340,401 1,325,858
Total other financing sources {uses) 1,573,93¢ (233,538) 1,340,401 1,325,858
Revenues and other financing

sources (uses) over (under) expenditures 3 - 3 {17.054) % (17,054} % (21,830)
Reconciliation of change in net assets:

Total revenues 3 3,925,547 $ 3,793,085

Total expenditures 3,042,601 3,814,715
Subtotal (17.054) (21,630)

Depreciation (342,009) {845,819)

Capital contributions 4,087 49,716

Change in inventory - 379

Capital ouilay 4,087 53,880

Non-capitalizable items - (469)

Loss on disposal of assets - (432,100)

Proceeds from sale of assets - (724)

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation 13,493 {28,0886)
Subtotal (820,342} (1,203,223}
Change in net assetis 3 (837.396) & (1224853)
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Federat grants 3 2,974575 % 1,246,373 3 - 3 56,036 3§ 1,302,409
State grants 319,272 266,530 123,606 3,980 146,904
County - 10,980 - - 10,980
Miscellaneous - 19,251 - - 19,251
Total revenues 3,293,847 1,543,134 123,606 60,016 1,479,544
Expenditures
FTA Capital 0313 1,239,430 - - - -
FTA Capital 0229 350,000 342,057 - 7,943 350,000
FTA Capital 0244 813,625 762,435 - 11,070 773,505
FTA Capital 0271 1,238,560 453,474 - 51,033 504,507
FTA Capital 0282 35,000 - - - -
AVE Grant - 137,340 137,340 - -
Total expenditures 3,676,615 1,695,306 137,340 70,046 1,628,012
Revenues over {under} expenditures {382,768) {152,172) (13,734) {10,030) (148,468)
Cther financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 342,788 407,603 13,734 - 393,869
Appropriated fund balance 40,000 - - - -
Total other financing sources {uses) 382,768 407,603 13,734 - 393,869
Revenues and other financing
sources {uses) over (under)
expenditures 3 - § 255431 § - 8 (10,030) 3 245,401
Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures $ {10,030}
Capital outlay 70,046
Non-capitalizable items (27.330)
5 32,686

Change in net assets
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Transit |} Capital Project Fund

From inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Intergovernmental .
Federal grants $ 322600 $ 329772 § 200,000 % 86,501 % 216,273
State grants 40,325 41,222 25,000 10,813 27,035
Total intergovernmental 362,925 370,984 225,000 97,314 243,308
Total revenues 362,925 370,854 225,000 97,314 243,308
Expenditures
Current
Transportation ) 403,250 412,218 250,000 108,124 270,340
Total expenditures 403,250 412,218 250,000 108,124 270,340
Revenues over {under}
expenditures (40,325} (41,222) {25,000) (10,810) (27,032)
Other financing sources (uses}

Transfers in 40,325 50,000 25,000 15,325 40,325
Total other financing sources (uses) 40,325 50,000 25,000 15,325 40,325
Revenues and other financing

sources {uses) over (under}
expenditures $ - % 8,778 % - % 4515 % 13,293

Reconciliation of modified accrual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3 4,515
Change in net assets $ 4,515
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures by Project
Transit 1] Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 390, 20023

Project Prior Closed Current
Authorization - Years Projects Year Total
Expenditures by project:
Transportation
FTA 90.2229 $ 100,000 $ 100,000 3§ - 3 - § 100,000
FTA 90.2244 - 100,600 100,000 - -
FTA 90.2271 - 150,000 150,000 - -
FTA 80.2292 150,000 62,216 - 86,591 148,807
FTA 90.2313 153,250 - - 21,533 21,533
Total transportation 403,250 412,216 250,000 108,124 270,340

Total expenditures by project $ 403250 $ 412218 _§ 250000 % 108,124 270,340

17




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Airport Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget (Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 2,217,052 3 55,058 $ 2272110 % 1,915,981
Other revenues from operations 48,339 32,830 81,169 51,934
Total operating revenues 2,265,391 87,888 2,353,279 1,977,915
Operating expenditures
Personnal 1,056,513 124,466 932,047 1,057,356
Maintenance and operations 1,020,628 161,085 859,543 711,095
Capitai outlay 38,629 {17.351) 55,980 4,200
Total operating expenditures 2,115,770 268,200 1,847,570 1,772,650
Operating income (loss) 144,621 356,088 505,769 205,265
Nonoperating revenues
Interast earnad on investments 32,000 {6,146) 25,854 26,254
Passenger facility charge - 234,951 234,951 56,737
Miscelianeous 83,504 . 793 84,297 84,297
Federai and State grants - 106,249 106,249 -
Total nonoperating revenues 115,504 335,847 451,351 167,288
Nonoperating expenditures
Interest expense - (26,196) 26,196 27,558
Miscellaneous 263.086 1 263,085 84 297
Total nonoperating expenditures 263,086 {26,195) 289,281 111,855
Revenues over {under) expenditures 2,039 665,740 667,779 260,698
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers (ouf) (290,985) 43,314 (247,671} -
Appropriated fund balance 288,946 (288,946) - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,039) (245,632) (247.,871) -
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 5 420,108 3 420108 % 260,698
Reconciliation of change in net asseis
Total revenues $ 2,804,630 3 2,145,203
Total expenditures 2,384,522 1,884,505
Subtotal 420,108 260,698
Depreciation (1,470,562) (1,504,290}
Amortization (22,000) (22,000)
Change in accrued vacation 2,352 {3,840)
Change in inveniory 301 331
Capital outlay 55,980 4200
Gain (joss) on disposal of assets - {25,804)
Change in fair market value of investrment 3,666 (4.451)
Subtotal (1,430,263) (1,555,854)

Change in net assets $ (1,010,155) $  (1,295,156)

118




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Changes in the Status of
Airport Capital Project Fund

From Inception And For Year Ended June 30, 2003

Project Prior Closed Current
Autherization Years Projects Year Total
Revenues
Federal grants $ 8,314,807 $ 6,013,574 $ - 3 1,584,251 & 7,597,825
State grants . 458,713 329,488 - 84,666 414,154
Miscellanecus income 308,929 310,140 - 87,421 397,561
Invesiment income - 11,770 - 12,066 23,836
Total revenues 9,083,549 6,664,972 - 1,768,404 8,433,376
Expendifures
T-hangars ) - 505,442 505,442 - -
Airport Road Landscaping 50,000 49,163 - - 49,163
Airport Road Construction 369,164 360,018 - - 360,018
Jet Bridge Medification 46,185 38,887 - - 38,887
Prepian Runway Safety Areas 108,600 108,600 - - 108,600
Security system upgrade 92,815 87,364 - 4147 91,511
Ramp and safety area design/ARFF proximity suits 240,872 238,062 - - 238,062
NLVR#Aerminal rehab 2,366,931 - 299,504 - 1,433,496 1,733,000
" Additional projects 300,000 - - - -
Apron & safety area improvements 6,010,000 5,872,526 - - 5,872,526
Total expenditures 9,584,577 7,569,566 505,442 1,437,643 8,491,767
Revenues over (under) expenditures (501,028) (894,594) (505.442) 330,761 (58,391}
Other financing sources (uses}
Transfers in 501,028 283,733 18,000 247,671 513,404
t oan from general fund - 447,229 487,442 40,213 -
Total other financing sources {uses) 501,028 730,962 505,442 287,884 513,404
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures i - % {163,832) § - 8 618,645 § 455,013
Reconciliation of medified acerual basis
to full accrual basis:
Excess of revenues over expendituras $ 518,645
Loan from generat fund (40,213)
Capital outlay 1,437.643

Change in net assets 3 2,016,075

118



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for the financing of services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City,
on a cost reimbursement basis,
The following comprise the City's Internal Service Funds:

* Warranty Fleet Fund

* Fleet Maintenance Fund

* Insurance Fund

All Internal Service Funds are accounted for-using the accrual basis of
acceunting.



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Balance Sheet
Internal Service Funds
June 30, 2003

Warranty Fleet
Fieet Maintenance Insurance
Fund Fund Fund Total
Assetis
Current assets _
Cash and investments $ 1,307,158 § 330210 § 5877142 § 7,514,510
Accounts receivable 3,467 - 14,441 17,808
Inventories - 309,404 i - 309,404
Prepaid expenses - - 138,400 138,400
Total current assets 1,310,625 639,614 6,029,983 7,980,222
Noncurrent asseis
Capital assets : 9,337 220,784 1,361 231,482
Total noncurrent assets 9,337 220,784 1,361 231,482
Total assets % 1,319962 $ 860,398 $ 6031344 § 8211704
Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses % 1611 8. 139,210 $ 3,768,125 § 3,908846
Accrued vacation - 651,162 20,579 81,741
Total current liabilities 1,611 200,372 3,788,704 3,990,687
Noncurrent fiabilities
Deferred revenues - - 289 289
Total noncurrent liabilities - - 289 289
Total liabililies 1,611 200,372 3,788,993 3,990,976
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 9,337 220,784 1,361 231,482
Unrestricted 1,309,014 439,242 2,240,980 3,989,246
Total net assets 1,318,351 660,026 2,242 351 4,220,728

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1319962 % 860,398 $ 6,031,344 § 8211704
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, an
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

d Changes in Fund Net Assets

Operating revenues
Other revenug from operations

Interfund charges and employese contributions

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Perscnnel
Maintenance and operaticns
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Nonoperating revenue (expense)

interest earned on investmenis
Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Income (ioss) before transfers
and contributions

Transfers in
Change in net assets

Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Warranty Fleet
Fleet Maintenance Insurance

Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - % 550 % 132,805 % 133,355
177,392 1,187,263 5,870,093 11,234,748
177,392 1,187,813 10,002,828 11,368,103
- 1,028,222 383,675 1,411,897
70,964 127,437 8,173,685 9,372,086
18,835 32,771 1,673 53,279
89,798 1,188,430 9,559,033 10,837,262
87,593 (817} 443,865 530,841
34,189 - 148,448 182,637
34,189 - 148,448 182,637
121,782 (617) 592,313 713,478
- - 329,592 329,592
121,782 {617} 921,905 1,043,070
1,196,569 660,643 1,320,446 3,177,658
$ 1318351 % 560,026 § 27242351 § 4220728
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. CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Warranty Flaet
Fieet Maintenance Insurance
Fund Fund Fund TFotal
Operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 180,811 & 1,187,263 § 10229348 § 11,597,423
Other operating revenue - 550 132,805 133,355
Cash received as deferred revenues - - (2,970) (2,970)
Cash paid to or on behalf of empioyees for services - (1,027,605) {380,138) (1,407,743)
Cash paid for goods and services {69,904) {96,376) {9,420.554) (9,586,834)
Net cash provided by (used in}
operating activities 110,907 63,832 558,492 733,231
Noncapital financing activities
Transfers in - - 329,592 329,592
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities - - 329,582 329,592
Capital and related financing activities
Acquisifion and construction of capital assets ° - {4,210} - {4,210)
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities - (4,210) - (4,210)
Investing activities
interest and dividends 34,189 - 148,448 182,637
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 34,189 - 148,448 182,637
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalentsfinvestments 145,096 59,622 1,036,532 1,241,250
Cash and cash eguivalents/investments
Beginning of year 1,162,062 270,588 4,840,610 6,273,260
End of year $ 1,307,158 % 330,210 % 5877142 § 7,514,510
Cash and cash equivalenis $ 1,307,158 % 330,210 5877142 & 7,514,510
Total cash and cash equivalentsf/investments & 1,307,158 3 330,210 § 5,877,142 § 7.514,510
Unrestricied cash and equivaientsfinvestments “§ 1.307,158_ ¢ 330.210 5 877,142 § 7,514,510
Total cash and cash equivalents/investments 5 1,407,108 330,270° 3 877,142 & 7,514,510
Reconciliation of operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by
{used in) ocperating activities
Operating income (loss) $ 37,593 % 617) $ 443865 $ 530,841
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in} operaiing
activities:
Depreciation 18,835 32,771 1,673 53,279
Change in assets and liabilities
{increase) decrease in accounts receivable 3,419 7,176 359,256 368,851
(increase) decrease in prepaid items - - (87,584) {87,584)
increase {decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued liabilities 1,060 23,885 (159,285) {134,340)
increase {decrease) in accrued compensated absence - 817 3,537 4,154
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenues - - (2,970} {2,870)
Total adjustments 23,314 54,449 114,627 202,380
Net cash provided by {used in} operating activities _$ 110,907 § 63,832 § 558482 § 733,231
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
Warranty Fleet Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

Operating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions _$ 187,285 (6,903) % 177,382 $ 187,961

Total operating revenues : 187,295 (9,903) 177,392 187,961
Operating expenditures
Maintenance and operations 217,285 146,331 70,964 72,961
Capital outlay - - - 5,978
Total operating expenditures 217,295 146,331 70,964 78,939
Operating income (loss) {30,000) 136,428 106,428 109,022
Nonoperating revenues
Interest earned on investments 30,000 (8) 29,982 40,660
Total nonoperating revenues 30,000 (8) 29,992 40,660
Revenues over {under) expenditures 3 - % 136420 % 136,420 $ 149,682

Reconciliation to net income (loss):

Total revenues 3 207,384 % 228,621
Total expenditures 70,964 78,939
Subtotal 136,420 149,682
Depreciation (18,835) (54,131)
Capital cutlay - 5,878
Change in fair market vaiue of investments 4197 (3,418)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - (5,250)
Subtotal {14,638) (56,821)
Change In net assets 3 121,782 § 92861
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)

Fleet Maintenance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003

(With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002}

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual
Operating revenues

interfund charges and employee contributions $ 1,606,438 $ (419,175 $ 1,187,263 $ 1,362,871

Other revenues from operations - 550 550 885

_Totai operating revenues 1,608,438 (418,625) 1,187,813 1,363,756

Operating expenditures

Personnel 1,435,802 408,197 1,027,605 1,180,312

Maintenance and operations 160,713 33,276 127,437 119,823

Capital outlay 9,923 5713 4,210 6,045
Total operating expenditures .. 1,606,438 447,186 1,159,252 1,306,180
Operating income (loss) - 28,581 28,581 57,576

Nonoperating expenditures

Interest expense - - - 33

Revenues over (under) expenditures - 28,561 28,561 57,543
Other financing sources (uses)

Principal payments - - - {2,659)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - {2,659)
Revenues and other financing sources

{uses) over (under) expenditures $ - 5 28,561 % 28,561 3 54,884
Reconciliation to net income (ioss):

Total revenues $ 1,187,813 $ 1,363,756

Total expenditures 1,159,252 1,308,872
Subtotal 28,561 54,884

Depreciation (32,771} (50,520}

Principal payments - 2,659

Decrease (increase) in accrued vacation (B17) 12,014

Capital outlay 4,210 6,045

Gain {loss) on disposal of assets - (25,082)
Subtotal (29,178) (54,884)
Change in niet assets 3 617) & -
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP)
insurance Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2003
{With Comparative Actual Amounts For Year Ended June 30, 2002)

Variance
Positive 2003 2002
Budget {Negative) Actual Actual

QOperating revenues
Interfund charges and employee contributions  § 10,263,760  § (393667) % 9870093 3§ 9,241,408

Other revenues from operations 37,000 95,805 132,805 414,939
Total operating revenues 10,300,760 {297,862) 10,002,898 9,656,347
Operating expenditures
Personnel : 377,483 (2,655} 380,138 338,170
Maintenance and operations 10,188,545 741 558 9,446 987 8,557,495
Total operating expenditures 10,566,028 738,903 0,827,125 8,895,665
Operating income (loss) (265,268) 441,041 175,773 760,682
Nonoperating revenues
Interest earnad on invesiments 127,000 2,930 129,930 128,906
Total nonoperating revenue 127,000 2,930 129,930 128,508
Revenues over {under) expenditures (138,268) 443,971 305,703 889,588
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in - 329,592 329,5@2 6,705
Appropriated fund balance 138,268 {138,268) - -
Totat other financing sources (uses) 138,268 191,324 329,592 6,705
Revenues and other financing sources
{uses) over (under) expenditures § - % 635,295 - § 635295 § 896,293
Reconciliation to net income (loss):
Total revenues $ 10,4562420 % 9,791,958
Total expenditures 9,827 125 8,895,665
Subtotal 635,295 896,293
Depreciation (1,673) {1,883)
Decrease {increase) in accrued vacation (3,537} 2,497
Change in fair market value of investments 18,518 (15,989)
increase in insurance liability 273,302 {420,192)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - (5,834)
Subtotal 286,610 (441,401)
Change in net assets 3 921,905 § 454,892
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

* Pension Trust Funds
* Private-purpose Trust Funds

The focus of Fiduciary Fund measurement differs among the various
iypes of funds that may be encompassed by this classification.




TRUST FUNDS

Trust Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee
capacity.

The following comprise the City's Trust Funds:
* Pension Trust Funds
b Special Separation Allowance Fund
* PWC Pension Fund
> Supplemental PWC Pension Fund
* ' Private-purpose Trust Funds
** Potice Benefit Fund

*E Firemen's Relief Fund




City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
June 30, 2003

Special
Separation PWC
Allowance PWC Supplemental
Pension Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments $ 1,584896 3 - $ 3991154 5,576,050
Accounts receivable 4.231% - - 4,231
Total assets 1,589,127 - 3,991,154 5,580,281
Liabilities
Accounts payable 8,885 - - 8,865
Total liabilities 8,865 - - 8,865
Net assets
Pension benefits 1,580,262 - 3,991,154 5,571,416
Total net assets $ 1,580,262 % - %5 3,991,154 5,671,416
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Special
Separation PWC
Aliowance PWC Supplementa!
Pension Pension Pension
Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Contributions % 310072 $ 2,387,028 % - % 2898,000
Investment earnings 41,402 (2,798,297 23,478 (2,733 417)
Total additions 352,374 {411,269) 23,478 (35,417)
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 214,892 2,583,035 32,324 2,830,251
Transfers to Local Government Employee
Retirement System Pian - 49,871,773 - 49.671,773
Transfer in - - (4,000,000) {4,000,000)
Transfer out - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
Total deductions 214,892 56,254,808 (3,967,676) 52,502,024
Change in netassets 137,482 (56,668,077) 3,991,154 {52,537,441)
Total net assets - beginning 1,442 780 56,666,077 - 58,108,857
Total net assets - ending $ 1,580,262 % - % 3991154 $3 5571416
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
June 30, 2003

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Assets
Cash and investments 3 3586 $ 1,328,309 % 1,331.895
Accounts receivable 14 75,310 . 75,324
Total assets 3,600 1,403,619 1,407,219
Liabilities
Accounts payabie - - -
Total liabilities - - -
Net assets :
Pension benefits 3,600 1,403,619 1,407,219

Total net assets 3 3600 $ 1403819 § 1,407,219
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City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Private-purpose Trust Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2003

Police Fireman's
Benefit Benefit
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
Additions
Other revenue from operations 3 - % 20,292 % 20,292
Contripisions 231 71,044 71,275
Invesiment earnings 131 42,297 42 428
Total additions 362 133,633 133,995
Deductions
Benefit payments and premiums 1,614 51,087 52,701
Total deductions 1,614 51,087 52,701
Change in net assets (1,252) - 82,546 81,254
Total net assets - beginning 4,852 1,321,073 1,325,925
Total net assets - ending $ 3600 § 1403819 3§ 1407219
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL DATA

Other supplemental data is presented to provide a more detailed view of
the current tax levy and taxes receivable. These schedules are not
funds and do not measure resulés of operations.




Original levy
General fund

Late listings:
General fund
Subtotal

Discoveries
General fund

Late listings:
General fund
Subtotal

Releases
General fund

Late listings:

General fund
Subtotal

Adjusted tax levy

CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Current Tax Levy

Year Ended June 30, 2003

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2003

City-wide current year's taxes collected

City-wide current levy collection percentage

Property
Excluding
Total Rate Registered Registered
Property Per Amount Motor Motor
Valuation $100 of Levy Vehicles Vehicles
$ 6,487,958,343 § 0.530 $ 34,386,179 $ 30,087,834 § 4,208,345
Per listing 28,840 29,840 -
34,416,019 30,117.674 4,298,345
28,088,207 0.530 148,867 137,987 10,880
Per listing 12,591 12,591 -
161,458 150,578 10,880
{96,979,360) 0.530 (513,991} (108,115) (407,876)
Per listing (3,672) {3,672) -
{517 ,663) {109,787) (407,876)
34,059,814 30,158,485 3,901,349
(1,602,373) (808,730) {793,643)
$ 32457441 $ 29340738 §$ 3,107,706
95.30% 97.32% 79.68%
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Taxes Receivabile

Year Ended June 30, 2003

Uncollected Coliections Uncollected
Balance and Balance

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2002 Additions Credits June 30, 2003
2003 $ - $ 34577478 $ 32975105 $ 1,602,373

2002 1,473,289 1,743 938,720 536,312

2001 386,672 41 93,966 292,747

2000 and prior 1,339,005 654 ' 121,103 1,217 966

. 3,198,966 $ 34579326 $ 34128894 3,649,398

Less allowance for uncollectible taxes

General fund (529,139) ' (687,702)
$ 2669827 $ 2961,696

General fund $ 3,209,863
less: CBTD taxes receivable (5,466)
Less: Vehicle license fee receivable (332,701)
Total taxes receivable $ 2,961,069

Reconciliations of collections and credit
with revenues
Ad valorem taxes:

General fund $ 33,720,313
Releases - current year 517,662
Releases - prior years 93,721
Barred by State statute 71,142
Less penalties and interest (208,235)
Less taxes - CBTD {65,709}

Total collections and credits $ 34,128,894
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OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT
COMPLIANCE SECTION

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control QOver
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Reguirements Applicable to
Fach Major Federal Program and internai Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the
State Single Audit Implementation Act

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major State Program and Internal Control Over
Compliance in Accordance with Applicable Sections of OMB
Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit Implementation
Act

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards
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CHERRY
BEKAERT&

HOLLAND

CERTIFIED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANTS &
CONSULTANTS :

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, ("the City"} as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2003. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comotroller
General of the United States.

Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material

misstatement, we performed tesis of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance that are required {o be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we censidered the City's internal conirol over financial reporting in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not
to provide assurance on the internat contrel over financial reporting.  Our consideration of the internal control
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of cne or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporiing that we have
reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated October 17, 2003.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit commiitee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities,
and is not intendad to be and shauld not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 17, 2003




CHERRY
BEKAERT&
HOLLAND

CERTIFIED FUBLIC .
ACCQUNTANTS &
CONSUETANTS -

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR
A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, ("the City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement and the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the
Loca! Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2003. The City’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the
City's management. Qur responsibifity is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America: the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act.
Those standards, OMB Circular A-133, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those reguirements.

In our opinion, the City compiied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2003.

internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requiremenis of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State Single Audit
Implementation Act.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracis and grants that would be
material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal conirol over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit commitiee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Lhirey, Beleasnd Hollomd, H7

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 17, 2003




CHERRY
| BEKAERT3.

HOLLAND

- CERTIFIED PUBLIC - -
ACCOUNTANTS & |
CONSULTANTS

- REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR STATE
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE
SECTIONS OF OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND THE STATE SINGLE AUDIT IMPLEMENTATION ACT

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued
by the Local Government Commission, that are applicable to each of its major State programs for the year
ended June 30, 2003. The City's major State programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuits
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major State programs is the responsibility
of the City’'s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; applicable sections of OMB Circular A-
133 as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, and the State Single
Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133, and the State
Single Audit tmplementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major State program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referrad to above that are
applicable to each of its major State programs for the year ended June 30, 2003,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internat control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to State programs. In
planning and performing our . audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major State program in order to determine our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with applicable sections of OMB Circular A-133 and the State
Single Audit implementation Act.




The Henorable Mayor

and Members of the City Council
City of Fayeteville, North Carolina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design”
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be
material in relation to a major State program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal controt over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, others within the
organization, members of the City Council, and federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Chiey, Bekant wHsliand, P

Fayetteville, North Carolina
October 17, 2003




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003
SECTION I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal contro! over financial reﬁorﬁng:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Federal Awards
Internal control over maior federal programs:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to federal
awards Yes X No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major federal programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with Section 510{a) of Circular A-133 Yes X No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Names of Federal Program or Cluster
16.592 Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Grant
20.507 Federal Transit -- Formula Grants (Urbanized Area Formula Program)

Doltar threshold used to distinguish

between Type A and Type B Programs $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

State Awards

Internal control over major State programs:

- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified

that are not considered to be
material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to State awards Yes X No
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major State programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disciosed that are

required to be reported in accordance

with the State Single Audit

Irmplementation Act Yes X No

Identification of major State programs:

Program Name
Powell Bill

State Maintenance Assistance for Urban and Small Urban Program
Clean Water Revolving Loan (CFDA 66.458)

Section ll. Financial Statement Findings

None reported.

Section lll. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None reported.

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

None reportable.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2003
: State/
Federal Pass-through Fed. (Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) State Total
Grantor/Program Title nutmber Mumber Expenditures  Expendifures Expendittires

FEDERAL GRANTS:

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Community Development Block Grant
Various Years' Enfilements 14,218  various $ 1,714,098 & - & 1,714,098

HOME investment Partnership Program .
Various Years' Entilements 14,239  various 718,601 - 718,591

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Office of Justice Programs
Butletproof Vest Partnership Program 16,607 ~ Year 2000 and 2001 5,076 - 5,976
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program
Local Law Enforcement Block 2000 16582  2000-LB-VX-1619 222,021 - 222021
{ ocal Law Enforcement Block 2002 16,582  2002-F B-BX-2504 133,554 - 133,554
355,575 - 355,575
Passed through Governor's Crime Commtission
Mobile Data Computer Project 16.579  026-1-02-15B-D-888 89,258 - §9,258
Cyber Crimes Against Children 16.579  026-1-02-018-D-887 19,617 - 19,617
108,875 - 08,875
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Special Programs for the Aging
Passed Through NC Department of Health & Human Services
Senior Citizens Service Center 93.044 N/A 9,882 - 9,982
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Federal Aviation Administration
Airport Improvement Program
Airport Road, Security System, Jetoridge, & Runway 20106 FAA-3-37-0021.21 3,732 - 3732
Non-licensed Vehicle Road, Terminal
Rehailitation, Security System 20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-24 65,009 - 65,000
Rehabilitate Terminal Building, Phase 1l 20.108  FAA-3-37-0021-28 1,189,434 - 1,189,434
Security Enhancements 20.106 FAA-3-37-0021-27 39.673 . 39,673
1,297.848 - 1,297,848
Passed through NC Dept of Transportation
Governor's Highway Safety Program
Strict and Fair £nforcement Program 20.600 QN-02-11-01-02 1,124 - 1,124
1,124 - 1,124
Highway Planning and Construction
Cape Fear River Trail 20.205 45,997 62,560 108,557
Enhancement Agreement - Dapot 20205 [E-4118 153,911 - 153,911
199,908 62,560 282,468
Eederal Transportation Administration
Operating assistance grant 20,507 NC90.4313 840,000 - 840,000
Operating assistance grant 20,507 NC 90.4292 3.451 - 3,451
Capital assistance granis:
Capital/Preventative Mainienance 20.507  NC 90.0228 6,354 - 6,354
Capital/Preventative Maintenance 20.507 NC 90.0244 8,856 - 8,856
Capital/Preventative Maintenance 20,507 NC 90.0271 40,826 - 40,826
Planning 20507 NG 962282 69,273 - 69,273
Planning 20,507 NG 90.2313 17,227 - 17,227
985,987 - 585,957
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2003
Statef
Faderal Pass-through Fed. (Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through) State Total
Grantor/Program Title number Number Expenditures  Expenditures Expenditures
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY )
Assistance {o Firefightars 85.554 EMW-2002-FG-00847 _§ 73,5618 % - 3 73,518
U.S. ENVIROCNMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 4
Brownfiekis Pilots Cooperative Agreement
Region 4 - Direct Program 66.811  V984206-97-0 25,785 - 25795
Vulnerability Assessments and Related Security
Improvements at Large Drinking Water Utilities 66,476 HSE830131-01-0 64,500 - 84,500
1S, DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
National Park Service
Passed through NG Department of Cultural Resources
Municipal Archeological Survay of Land Aleng
the Cape Fear River 15.904 6,000 - 8,000
Fish and Wildlife Service
Fish and Wildlife Service Agreement 15.FFB  1448-40181-99-G-109 5,000 - 5,000
STATE GRANTS:
N.C. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Aviation Division
MNonlicensed Vehicle Road, Terminal
Rehaktilitatior, Sacurity Systam N/A 9.9544020 - 3,612 3,612
Rehabilifate Terminal Building, Phase It N/A 9.9544021 - 66,288 66,288
- 659,800 69,900
Public Transportation Division
State Maintenance Assistance for Urban
and Small Urban Program N/A 9.9051698 - 580,989 580,989
Capital/Planning N/A 9.9051656 - 794 794
Capital N/A 9.9051816 - 1,107 1,107
Capital NIA 9.8051986 - 2,078 2,078
Planning N/A 9.9062267 - 8,669 8,659
Festival of Flight N/A pending - 32,000 32,000
Planning N/A, - 2,153 2,153
- 627,780 627,780
Powell Bilt N/A - 3,768,436 3,758,436
Mazarick Bike Trail N/A, - 145,055 145,058
N,C. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOQURCES
Division of Water Quality
Clean Water State Revolving Fund 66.458 E-SRF-T-89-0088 - 752,836 782,838
N.C. DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES
Passed through Cumberiand County Department of Social Services
Juvenile Court Restitution N/A 826015 - 89,027 89,027
3 5572777 § 5545594 % 11,118,371
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CARQLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2003
State/
Federal Pass-through Fed. {Direct
GRANTOR/PASS-THROUGH CFDA Grantor's & Pass-through} State Total
Grantor/Program Title . number Number Expenditures  Expenditures Expenditures
NOT! CHED ND) FED ND ST,

1. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards includes the Federal and State grant activity of the City of Fayetteville -
and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the reguirements of
OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of Local Gov nd Non-| jzafions." Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule

may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the basic financiai statements.

2. The total local contributions for the State Powell Bill assistance amounted to $568,5628.

3. Of the federal and state expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Fayetteville provided federal and state awards to subrecipients as follows

Federal State
CEDA Number Expenditures  Expenditures
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 $ 93604 % -

4. The total local match requirements for the Faderal ancd State Transit operating assistance granis was $681,135. The actual local match which the
City of Fayetteville expended for the operafions of the transit system was $1,340,401. The required and actual match for the Plarning Grant was
515,325,
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGEﬁ FACIITY
CHARGE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE PROGRAM AUDIT GUIDE

The Honorable Mayor
and Members of the City Council
City of Fayetteville, North Carclina

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Fayetteville, North Carolina, (“the City”) with the compliance

requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the
Federal Aviation Administration {Guide), for its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June
30, 2003. Compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to its passenger facility
charge program is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally acceptad in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the
Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on the passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City’'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those
requirements.

In our apinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2003.

Internal Conirol Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws and regulations applicable to the passenger facility charge program.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide.




The Honorable Mayor

and Members of the City Coungil
City of Fayetteville, North Carolina
Page 2

Our consideration of the internal conirol over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal controf that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws and regutations that wolld be material in
relation to the passenger facility charge program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses. )

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, manégement, others within
the organization, members of the City Council, and the Federal Aviation Administration, and is not intended
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(i, Bekasnt§ Hidlana, =77

Fayetteville, North Carolina
QOctober 17, 2003




CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedute of Findings and Questioned Costs '
Passenger Facility Charge Program
For the Year_Ended June 30, 2003
SECTICN |. Summary of Auditor’s Resuits

Financial Statements

Type of auditbr’s report issued: Unqualified
Internal conirol over financial reporting:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X No
- Reportéb!e conditions(s) identified
that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted Yes X No

Passenger Facility Charge Program

Internal control over passenger facility charge program:
- Material weakness(es) identified Yes X  No
- Reportable conditions(s) identified

that are not considered to be

material weaknesses Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to passenger
facility charge program Yes X No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for passenger facility charge program:
Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed Yes X No

Section Hl. Financial Statement Findings
None reported.
Section lll. Passenger Facility Charge Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Passenger Facility Charge Program

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003

None reported.
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CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA
Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges

Year Ended June 30, 2003

Impaose Use Cumulative - Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revenue  Total PFC
Effective Effective Expenditures Expenditures of Use Used in Used in Revenues
Project Date Date Actuzl for PFCs Approved Prior Years Current Year Used
APPLICATION 1 { % 00-01-C-00-FAY )
Local share reimbursement AlP-12,
Consiruction of a Fire Training Facility
and Rehabilitation of a 1500-Gallon
ARFF Vehicle 11/01/00 110800 $§ 3830753 & 3,830,753 $ 191538 § 11,538 § - % 191,538
Local share reimbursement AIP-12,
install Security Access Controf System  11/01/00 11/01/00 757,595 757,596 37,880 37,880 - 37,880
Local share reimbursement AIP-13, _
Update Airport Master Plan 11/01/00 41/01/00 135,020 67,510 8,751 6,751 - 6,751
Lozal share reimbursement AiP-13,
Design Highway 301 Connector 11/01/00 J301/00 194,655 194,655 9,733 8,733 - 9,733
Local share reimbursement AlP-14,
Installation of Taxiway Guidance Signs
and Runway End Identification Lights 11/04/00 11/01/00 198,191 198,192 9,810 9,910 - 9,510
Locat share reimbursement AlP-14,
Land Acquisition 1101400 11/01/00 134,612 134,452 6,731 - 6,731 8,731
Local share reimbursement AlP-14,
improve Terminal Building 11/01/00 11/01/00 31,224 31,224 1,474 - 1,474 1,474
Leocal share reimbursement AlP-15,
Design New General Aviation Area 11/04/00 11/01/00 206,286 208,286 11,460 - 11,460 ° 11,480
Local share reimbursement AlP-15,
Foreign Object Damage Sweeper 11/01/00 11/04/00 15,632 15,632 782 - 782 782
Laocal share reimbursement AfP-15,
Design Taxiway "K" 11/01/00 11/01/00 16,841 16,841 842 - 842 B42
tocal share reimbursement AiP-15,
Rehabilitate General Aviation Apron 11/01/60 11/01/00 29,875 29,875 1,484 - 1,494 1,494
Local share reimpursement AlP-15,
Land for Development 11/Q01/00 14/01/00 49,001 48,476 2,424 - 2,424 2424
Local share reimbursement AlP-186,
Inetallation of Terminal Loading Bridges  11/01/0C 11/01/00 179,808 179,808 8,880 - 8,880 8,080
Local share reimbursement AlP-17,
New General Aviation Area Constructior  11/01/00 1170100 2,362,380 2,342,378 114,860 21,328 93,531 114,880
Local share reimbursement AlP-18,
Acquire Handicap Lift Device 11/01/00 11/01/00 35,680 35,680 1,784 - 1,784 1,784
Loca! share reimbursernent AIP-18,
Rehabilitate Terminal Building 11/01/00 11104100 1,820,477 1,820,478 83,367 - 83,367 83,367
Local share reimbursement AiP-19,
Aircraft Rescue & Firefighting Vehicle 11/01/00 14/01/00 319,769 319,769 15,088 - 15,988 15,988
Local share reimbursement AlP-20,
Design Non-licensed Vehicle Road 1701100 11/01/00 31,619 30,545 1,527 - 1.527 1,527
Local share reimbursemert AIP-20,
Design of Taxiway "K" (Revised) 11401100 1HG10 13,287 12,887 844 - 644 444

147



CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges

Year Ended June 30, 2003
Impose Use . Gumulative Approved Amount PFC Revenue PFC Revenue Tofal PFC
Effective Effective Expenditures Expenditures of Use Used in Used in Ravenues
Project Date Date Actual X for PFCs Approved Prior Years Current Year tsed
Lacal share reimbursement AlP-20, . :
Installation of Water Main 1%/01/00 11/21/00 3 78565 % 78,299 § 3915 3§ - 8 3915 § 3,915
Local share reimbursement AlP-21,
Airport Entrance Road 11/01/00 11/01/00 360,018 350,000 17,500 17,500 - 17,500
Locai share reimbursement AlP-21,
Jetway System Modifications 11/01/00 11/01/00 38,887 46,195 2,310 1,944 - 1,944
Lacal share reimbursement AlP-21,
Security System Upgrade 1101500 11/04/00 51,512 70,815 3,541 3,541 B 3,541
Local share reimbursement AIP-21,
Preplan Runway Safety Areas 11/0%/00 11/01/00 108,600 109,800 5,480 5,430 - 5,430
Nerth GA Ramp Construction 11/01/00 06/18/02 1,554,453 1,404,170 70,208 68,285 1,924 70,209
Security System Upgrade Phase Il 14/01/00 06/18/02 141,216 139,340 6,867 4,481 2486 6,967
Design & Construct RSA, Runway 4 11/01/00 06/18/02 858,871 949,000 47,450 37,553 5,380 42,943
Acquire Land 11/01/00 06/18/02 . 136,111 13,611 - - -
Rencvate Terminal, Phase LI 11/01/00 06/t8/02 1,364,229 2,475,430 3,433 7.489 54,425 61,914
RSA Construction, Runway 4, Phase il 11/01/00 0BMBI02 858,872 949,000 40,000 37,553 2447 40,000
Land Acquisition 11/01/00 0611802 - 138,111 1411 - - -
Renovate Terminal, Phase 1] 14/01/00 08/18/02 - 2475430 37,500 - - -
RSA Construction, Runway 22 11/01/00 06/18/02 1,855,290 1,263,890 88,389 81,120 5,269 86,389
Acquire Land 11/01/00 06/18/02 - 177,778 17,778 - - -
NLVR Construction 14i01/00 06/18/02 540,322 180,000 25,395 24,124 1,271 25,395
Jet Bridge Modification Construction 11/01/00 06/18/02 - 125,500 6,275 - - -
Taxiway K Construction 11/91/00 06/18/02 483,002 225,000 22,500 21,120 1,380 22,500
TOTAL IMPOSE AND USE 18,696,542 21,564,714 1,009,843 587,281 308,545 896,826
Acquire Land 14/01/00 - 166,700 - - - -
TOTAL IMPOSE ONLY - 166,700 - - - -
PFC's collected during the year bus not applied - - - - 12,827 -
TOTAL APPLICATION 1 . % 18698542 $ 21731414 _§ 1009843 § 587,281 322372 3 BOUEBIS
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